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Vision Values

To be a respected company
that provides best - in its
field - quality and value
services

Integrity and Transparency: Commitment to be
ethical, sincere and open in our dealings
Pursuit of Excellence: Committed to strive
relentlessly to constantly improve ourselves
Fairness: Treat clients, employees and other
stakeholders fairly

Independence: Unbiased and fearless in
expressing our opinion

Thoroughness: Rigorous analysis and research
onevery assignment that we take

Mission

To offer arange of high-quality services to all the stakeholders in the capital
market

To build a pre-eminent position for ourselves in India in securities analysis,
research and information services and to be an international credit rating
agency

To earn customer satisfaction and investor confidence through fairness and
professional excellence

Toremain deeply committed to our internal and external stakeholders

To apply the best possible tools & techniques for securities analysis aimed
toensure efficiency and top quality

Toensure globally comparable quality standards in our rating, research and
information services
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Message from Managing Director & CEO

When 2019-20 began it was laced with
optimism as it was expected that the
economy will recover and be on the path
of higher growth. The two sets of issues
associated with SMEs being put on a firmer
footing and the NBFC crisis which began
in 2018 appeared to be under control.
The government and RBI had taken
various measures to steady the financial
sector involving channeling of credit to
these vulnerable sectors. Therefore, the
preconditions required to be for further
growth seemed to be in place.

However, for CARE Ratings, business
prospects within the traditional credit rating
business depends on how both the credit
and debt market perform. Here we did see
that the emerging picture was not positive.
I would like to mention here that credit
rating business depends on the overall size
of the rateable universe increasing once it
reaches a stage of maturity where almost
all existing paper is rated. GDP growth was
just 4.2% with industrial growth being
negative 0.7%. While overall growth in bank
credit was 6.1% (13.3% last year), the two
segments which matter for our business
i.e. industry and services registered much
lower growth rates of 0.7% (6.9%) and
7.4% (17.8%) respectively. Therefore, the
banking universe was much smaller than
last year in incremental terms as banks
shied from lending even while demand for
funds was low given the surplus capacity
in manufacturing. Further, the NPA levels
tended to be still in the region of 9.5%
which made banks cautious especially
while lending for projects. Our initial rating
business thus got affected.

The other segment, namely, capital market
issuances of corporate debt, witnessed
higher issuances of Rs 6.9 lkh crore as
against Rs 6.5 lkh crore. The financial
and infra sectors accounted for 85% of

issuances and was not quite well spread
across all sectors. The dominance of PSUs
was also noticeable here. Given the fee
structure, earnings on larger borrowings
are not commensurate with volume debt
rated. Therefore, we had to rely more on
surveillance income this year and overall
performance did reflect the same.

This can be a new trend in the coming years.
We do realize that credit rating business is
going to be volatile and uncertain as the
exponential growth one expects in the macro
numbers of the economy cannot be taken for
granted. Similarly, regulatory changes now
dictate that credit rating agencies can do
only credit rating business and nothing else.
All this means that with changing times we
need to adapt with alacrity to the uncertain
environment to generate incremental
shareholder value. Therefore, we will also be
concentrating on other related businesses
which are established in our two domestic
subsidiaries, CART and CRSPL, and two
overseas credit rating subsidiaries in Africa
and Nepal. Just like how the conventional
banking business faces barriers in terms
of growth of credit and deposits and hence
resorts to other avenues of income streams,
like cross-selling of fee based products,
so too have credit rating agencies to
innovate and build client related advisory,
research and analytics businesses. CARE
has traditionally only focused on ratings
business; hence the diversification needs for
CARE Ratings are that much stronger.

[ do see a lot of potential in business
opportunity in the areas of structured
products, impaired
assets resolution and would be focusing
our diversification plans in this direction.
Also, in our business which is knowledge

securitization and

intensive having top-class human resources
is imperative. To leverage this reservoir of
talent which we have, the company will be
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using more of technology to drive processes

in the coming years and the use of Al will be
one of the guiding blocks.

We have recognized the requirement of
having best in class market intelligence
to pick up news of potential disruption in
activities of clients which can affect the
rating. Our business is about prognosis and
to hit the bull’'s eye, we need to be market
savvy and street smart. This is what we have
learnt from the NBFC crisis and are already
working on building this ML system whereby
we are able to detect problems in advance.

Hence, we will be focusing on both more
aggressive through our
subsidiaries robust ratings
processes involving Al and ML. This we

diversification
and more

believe will bring about sustainable growth
in the balance sheet of CARE Ratings Group
in future as well as enhance the accuracy
of our ratings. I do hence look upon the
developments in the last two years in terms
of lower growth and the credit ratings
disruptions in the NBFC sector positively as
wake-up calls which have forced us to think
differently.

I am confident that the past will be behind,
and your company will emerge stronger and
continue to add shareholder value in future.
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| Directors & Committee Members

The board at its meeting held on June 18,2020 reconstituted the Board committee(s) as follows:

Audit Committee

Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Chairman
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran Member
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai Member
Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan Member

Nomination and

Remuneration Mr. Najib Shah Chairman

Committee Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Member
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran Member

Stakeholders

Relation ship Mr. V. Chandrasekaran Chairman

Committee Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan Member
Dr. M. Mathisekaran Member

CSR Committee
Dr. M. Mathisekaran Chairman
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai Member
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran Member

Risk Management

Committee Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai Chairperson
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Member
Dr. M. Mathisekaran Member
Mr. Najib Shah Member

Rating Sub

Committee Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan Chairman
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Member
Mr. Najib Shah Member
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran Member




| Board of Directors

Mr. V. Chandrasekaran
Non Executive Director

Former Executive Director (Investment) LIC of India

Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai
Non Executive Independent Director
Former ED - Refinery Finance - HPCL

Dr. M Mathisekaran
Non Executive Independent Director
Former Director General, Ministry of Labour, Gol

Mr. Ajay Mahajan
Managing Director & CEO,
CARE Ratings
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Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta

Non Executive Independent Director

Former Whole time Director and CFO, Grasim and
Former Director — UltraTech — Aditya Birla Group

Mr. Najib Shah

Non Executive Independent Director

Former Chairman of the Central Board of Excise &
Customs (CBEC)

Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan

Non Executive Independent Director
Associate professor in SPJIMR, Mumbai
Former Co- head Standard Chartered Bank
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| Senior Management Team

Ajay Mahajan
Managing Director & CEO

T. N. Arun Kumar Mehul Pandya Navin Kumar Jain
Executive Director & Executive Director Executive Director &
Chief Ratings Officer Company Secretary

Senior Directors

Revati Milind Swati Sanjay Amod Padmanabh Madan Sabnavis
Kasture Gadkari Agrawal Agarwal Khanorkar Bhagavath Chief Economist

Umesh Ikhe Bharat Adnani Sandeep Palodkar
Chief Technology Officer Chief Financial Officer Director & Head HR
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| 26™ Annual General Meeting

CARE Ratings hosted its 26th Annual General Meeting on 30th September 2019 at Shanmukhananda Hall, Mumbai
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From left: Dr. M. Mathisekaran, Non — Executive Independent Director; Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai, Non Executive Independent Director; Mr. T.
N. Arun Kumar, Former Interim CEO; Mr. S. B. Mainak, Former Chairman; Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Non Executive Independent Director; Mr.
V Chandrasekaran, Non Executive, Director & Mr. Najib Shah, Non Executive Independent Director
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CARE Ratings
ersations

In continuation of our quest to provide a stimulating platform to discuss and deliberate, CARE Ratings hosted its flagship event
“Conversations” across branches:

Q Mumbai:

On 19th December 2019 at Hotel Trident, Bandra Kurla Complex. “Has the financial crisis ended?” was discussed by an expert panel
comprising Mr. Rashesh Shah, Chairman & CEO, Edelweiss Group; Mr. Neelkanth Mishra, Managing Director, India Strategist, Credit
Suisse, Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings and Mr. Mehul Pandya, Executive Director, CARE Ratings. The audience
comprised senior officials across industries.

} & Ratings

CARE Ratings'

Conversations

195 Decernber 7019, Hotal Trident, Bandra Kurlo Comples, Mumbal

Q Ahmedabad:

On 20th February, 2020 at Courtyard by Marriott. “Infrastructure Growth - Key to Economic Revival” was discussed by an expert panel
comprising Mr. Maheswar Sahu, Retd. IAS, Chairman, IRM Energy Limited; Mr. Sunil Parekh Founder Curator, World Economic Forum;
Mr. Ravi B, Former CFO, Adani Port & SEZ Limited and Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings. The discussion panel
was moderated by Mr. Mehul Pandya, Executive Director, CARE Ratings.
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o Delhi: On 19th February 2020 at The Shangri La’s - Eros Hotel, Delhi. Chief Guest and Keynote Speaker was Mr. Najib
) Shah, Chairman of the Central Board Excise & Customs (CBEC) (Retd.). From CARE Ratings Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar,
Executive Director; Mr. Mehul Pandya, Executive Director and Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director were part of the

discussion panel.

Kolkata: of Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan, Professor SPJIMR; Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings

Q On 17th January 2020 at Taj Bengal. “Has the financial crisis ended” was discussed by an expert panel comprising
and Mr. Mehul Pandya, Executive Director, CARE Ratings.

Pune On 3rd June 2019 at JW Marriott Hotel. The speaking panel had Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director and Mr. Mehul
’ Pandya, Executive Director. The panel gave their insightful views about the current happenings in the economy and
the credit rating space.
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| Roads and Renewables Conference

CARE Ratings held its Roads and Renewables Conference on 6th March 2020 at hotel Trident BKC, Mumbai. CARE Ratings released its Knowledge
Paper “Volume Forecasts: Determining Viability or Creating Liability?” at this event. Mr. Sadashiv Rao, CEO, NIIF Infrastructure Finance Ltd.
delivered the keynote address, along with Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings and Mr. Amod Khanorkar, Senior Director,
CARE Ratings. Topical Issues facing Roads and Renewable Sector was discussed by an eminent panel comprising of Mr. Kailash Vaswani,
President and Dy CFO, Renew Power P Ltd.; Mr. Manoj Gupta, Head, Infrastructure Debt Fund, Kotak Group; Mr. Paresh Mehta, CFO, Ashoka
Buildcon Ltd and Mr Shiva Rajaraman, CEO of L&T Infra Debt Fund Ltd. The Session was moderated by Mr. Mehul Pandya, Executive Director,
CARE Ratings Ltd. There were presentations made by CARE Ratings team on Roads Sector by Rajashree Murkute and Maulesh Desai and on
Renewables Sector by Hardik Shah & Kunal Arora. The vote of thanks was delivered by Mr. Milind Gadkari, Senior Director, CARE Ratings.

CARE Ratings'
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Indian Capital Market
A Plinth for Economic Growth

MARCH 2020

ASSO?CHAM

India Electric Vehicles
Conclave 2019

September 5, 2019 | New Delni

) REAL ESTATE AND
HOUSING FINANCE
IN INDIA

SECURITIZATION, MORTGAGE AND INSOLVENCY CODE

November 2019

‘THE ASSOCIATED CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY OF INDIA
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| CARE Ratings Knowledge Partner Representations
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1. Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings, as a panel speaker at Assocham’s 12th Capital Market Summit, “Efficient

Governance and Enhancing Market Participants”, 4th March, 2020 at Hotel Four Seasons, Mumbai

2. Mr. TN Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings at India Green Energy Awards, 21st December 2019. The episode was aired on CNN
18 news channel and he was invited as a panelist. Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director was the jury member for this award selection

3. Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director, CARE Ratings at the National Conference on Real Estate and Housing Finance in India held on 27th
November, 2019 at New Delhi.

4. Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director, CARE Ratings at 16th National Awards for Excellence in Cost Management’ at the behest of Institute
of Cost Accountants of India (ICAI), 25th October 2019. Union Minister of State for Finance and Corporate Affairs Mr. Anurag Thakur and
Mr. S.C. Garg; the Secretary, Ministry of Power distributed the awards to the winners.

5. Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director, CARE Ratings at PHD Chambers’ India Electric Vehicles Conclave 2019 — Challenges & Way Forward,
S5th September, 2019 at New Delhi.

6. Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director, CARE Ratings at India Steel Summit 2019 held on 25th October, 2019. Mr. Ajay Dhaka, Associate
Director, CARE Ratings also spoke on outlook of global and domestic steel industry

7. Mr. Saikat Roy, Director, CARE Ratings as a moderator and panelist at 4th IPF Industrial Excellence Awards 2019, 16th January 2020 at
Mumbai. CARE Ratings was a knowledge partner for this event.

Mr. Saikat Roy, Director, CARE Ratings at Global Real Estate Brand Awards, 16th July, 2019 at ITC, Benagluru

Mr. Karthik Raj K, Associate Director, CARE Ratings at ASSOCHAM'’s Conference on Mining in Karnataka — Raw Material Security for
Sustainable Operations, 29th August 2019, Bengaluru
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CARE Ratings

| Corporate Social Responsibility

On behalf of CARE Ratings Ms. Swati Agrawal, Senior Director & Mr. Sudhir Kumar, Associate Director donated:

1. One Water Cooler with Three Purifiers
and One Projector with Screen to
H.M.D.A.V school ,Daryaganj, New
Delhi on 10th May, 2019

2. One Water Cooler with One Purifier
and One Water Tank was donated

to Govt. Boys Sr. Sec. School,
Connaught Place, New Delhi on 10th

May, 2019.
3. On behalf of CARE Ratings Mr. Anand

Prakash  Jha, Associate Director

donated water coolers to Government
Primary School Dualat Singh wala and
Government Middle School Zirakpur,
District SAS Nagar, Punjab in April,
2019

4. Mr.  Deepak Prajapati, Director,
inaugurated a Multipurpose Hall at
Nareshwadi campus of Somaiya Trust,
which was completely renovated and
refurbished by CARE Ratings - Jan
2020

Ms. Priti Agrawal, Director, Mr. Lalit Sikaria, Associate Director and Mr. Arindam Saha, Associate Director at CARE Ratings’ Kolkata Regional
Office coordinated for the following donations:

5. One Water Cooler & One Water Purifier to KMPC School in Kidderpore, Kolkata, 2nd April 2019.

6. One Water Cooler & One Water Purifier to KMPC School in Park Circus, Kolkata, 19th February 2019.

7. One Water Cooler & One Water Purifier to KMPC School in Kalighat, Kolkata, 18th April, 2019.
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| Events and Representations

India Loan Market Conference
== 20 November 2019

1. Mr.T.N. Arun Kumar, Executive Director, CARE Ratings was invited as a Keynote Speaker for Budget Symposium 2020 event at Symbiosis
Institute of Business Management (SIBM), Pune on 28th Feb 2020.

2. CARE Ratings signed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Bank of Baroda for SME Ratings to assess the credit quality of Bank
of Baroda’s existing and prospective customers in the small and medium enterprises (SME) segment, on 31st January 2020. Mr. Mehul
Pandya, Executive Director represented CARE Ratings and Mr. Vikramaditya Singh Khichi, Executive Director was present on behalf of
Bank of Baroda .

3. Ms. Revati Kasture, Senior Director was a panelist in ICAI Women’s Empowerment Meet, 26th December 2019, Mumbai.

4. Mr. Sanjay Agrawal, Senior Director, CARE Ratings was invited as a speaker at 8th Securitisation Summit 2018, 10th May 2019 at Hotel
Four Seasons, Mumbai.

5. Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Senior Director was invited as speaker at India Loan Market Conference on 20th November 2019. This was organized
by Asia Pacific Loan Market Association (APLMA)

6. Mr. AmodKhanorkar, Senior Director, CARE Ratings was Key Resource Speaker at ACRAA conference on Advanced Analysis of Infrastructure
Projects: Energy and Tollways, 25th & 26th July 2019, Jakarta, Indonesia
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| CARE Ratings (Africa) Pvt. Ltd. (CRAF) e
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During the financial year under review (FY20), the Company has assigned ratings to 28
corporates of Mauritius including renowned Corporates like The Mauritius Commercial Bank
Ltd., Bank One, CIEL, CIM, Leal, Omnicane, Alteo, MUA and ENL. In FY20, CRAF has assigned
credit ratings to bank facilities and bond issue aggregating to around Mur 40.0 billion (Mur
21.0 billion in FY19). There has been an increase in awareness about the concept of Credit
Rating among Banks and Corporates and clear understanding of the benefits from such
Ratings.

Mr. Mehul Pandya, Executive Director, CARE Ratings & Director CARE Ratings Africa (CRAF)
delivered a keynote Presentation at a Seminar on “Development of Bond Market” at Mauritius
on 25th September, 2019. The Seminar was attended by all leading players from the corporate
and financial world of Mauritius. The Second Deputy Governor of Bank of Mauritius (Banking
Regulator), The Director Supervision from Financial Services Commission (Capital Market
Regulator), CEO of MCB Capital Markets, CEO of State Bank of Mauritius and CEO of CARE
Ratings Africa, Saurav Chatterjee, were the other speakers at the event.

| CARE Ratings Nepal Ltd. (CRNL)

CARE Ratings Nepal Ltd. held its 3rd Annual General Meeting on 21st Nov 2019 at Radisson
Hotel, Kathmandu.

(From left - Mr. Sujit Shrestha — Company
Secretary. and Compliance Officer, Mr. Sajan
Goyal — CEO, Mr. Mehul Pandya - Director,
Chairing the AGM, Dr. Binod Atreya- Director)

CARE Ratings Nepal participated in Annual Risk Management Conference at Hotel Hyatt,
Kathmandu in August 2019

From Left: Mr. Sajan Goyal, CEO, CRNL along with
Dr. Chiranjibi Nepal, Ex. Governor of Nepal Rastra
Bank
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| CARE Advisory Research & Training Ltd. (CART) M =y rsviner

Research
Training

Delivering Excellence

CARE Training carried forward its momentum during FY 2019-20. In FY 2020, CARE Training under CARE Advisory Research & Training (CART)
developed and executed pilot programs such as High Value Credit, Credit Risk Pricing, Credit Monitoring, Advanced Trade Finance & SWIFT,
Cash Flow Statement Analysis, Advanced IFRS- IndAS, Wealth Management and Risk Management. CARE Training also executed behavioural

and sales training such as High Pitch Sales Training, Stress Management and Work Life Balance.
——u gy
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CART celebrated 3rd Anniversary of its incorporation at a function held at Courtyard by Marriott, Andheri (E), Mumbai on 6th September, 2019.
During the event, CARE Training (division of CART) also announced the Launch of on-line “Certificate Course in Risk Management (CCRM)”. The
course was launched by Shri Dinabandhu Mohaptra, former MD of Bank of India. CCRM is developed in order to assist in capacity building in
the field of Risk Management. The course is delivered through on-line mode and is designed to fully capture the essence of RBI guidelines on
capacity building in the field of “Risk Management” for Banks and Financial Institutions.
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| CARE Risk Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (CRSPL) c,//é%': Risk

Solutions

CARE Risk has the soul of an agile start up with the maturity of an established specialist in creating and delivering advanced technology
solutions for its customers. Our exceptional product and immaculate implementation framework has helped us to partner with the best names
in the Financial Technology globally and regionally.

The company’s testimony is on 3 important strengths

a. Excellent Thought Leaders supported by an excellent team. We have built state of the art banking products which are successfully

operational across diverse geographies, cultures and banking regulations.
b. The Company has 80+ implementations spread over 10 countries across India, Sri Lanka, Bhutan, ASEAN (Cambodia, Philippines and
Vietnam), in Middle East and Africa region etc., shows the acceptance of the solution offered.

c. CARE Risk has been recognized and rewarded for its pioneering efforts with following awards - Winner of “Best in class IFRS-9 ECL
Modelling’- 2019 and “Technoviti Awards 2020".

Webinars

HIGHLIGHTS FROM CREDIT RISK & RISK BASED
PRICING SESSION

KALYPTO ECL
"WINNER"
Technovitti 2020
Award For Innovation IN
BFSI Sector
o E
e weard 1
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As part of knowledge dissemination initiative CARE Ratings hosted Live 34 Interactive Webinars on Industry &
Economics for the period April 2019 to March 2020



CARE Ratings in Media

CARE Ratings Reports, Insights, Management and Industry Expert quotes were widely covered across media.
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7 Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Senior Director on
BloombergQuint - NHB Report - 22-7-2019
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Even as the government's new amendments will benefit wind
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Seventh Annual Report of your Company along with the audited Financial

Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Financial Performance

Your Company’s Financial Performance for the year ended March 31, 2020, is summarized below:

Summary Financial Performance (Rs crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Income from Operations 219.10 297.36
Other Income 31.34 29.83
Total Income 250.44 327.19
Total Expenditure 150.19 129.15
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 100.25 198.04
Provision for Tax 19.75 63.05
Profit After Tax (PAT) 80.50 134.99
Other comprehensive Income/(loss) -0.70 -2.04
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 79.80 132.95
Appropriations

Interim Dividend 50.08 53.03
Tax on Interim Dividend 10.29 10.90
Final Dividend 35.35 109.01
Tax on final dividend 7.27 22.41
Total (Dividend Outflow) 103.00 195.35
Transferred to General Reserve 3.22 -

* Proposed Dividend of Rs.2.50 per equity share declared in Q4 FY 20 is not considered in FY 20 as per Ind AS Accounting.

e Total income for the year is Rs 250.44 crore compared with Rs 327.19 crore in FY19.
e Otherincome had increased from Rs 29.83 crore in FY19 to Rs 31.34 crore in FY20.

e Total expenditure increased by 16.3% in FY20 largely on account of:

1. Depreciation costs which increased by Rs. 3.84 crore (amortization on leased properties on adoption of Ind AS 116

“Leases” and fresh capitalization of assets);

2. One-time cost on forensic audit, SEBI penalty and COVID 19 provisions (Rs. 7 crore); and
3. Salary expenses which rose by Rs.10.54 crore (due to salary revision, general increments and new hiring) that was offset
by savings on ESOP costs by Rs.7.39 crores since ESOP vesting date ended on August 31, 2019 leading to net increase in

employee cost by Rs. 3.15 crore.

Dividend

Your Company paid a total interim dividend of Rs.17/- per equity share amounting to a payout of Rs. 60.38 crores including
Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT). The Board has recommended final dividend of Rs. 2.50/- per equity share amounting to a payout
of Rs.7.37 crore for FY 2019-20, to be approved at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend would be paid in compliance
with the applicable rules and regulations. In terms of Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Dividend Distribution Policy is appended as Annexure-I to the report and is available on the website of the

Company at www.careratings.com.
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Transfer to Reserves
On account on ESOPs lapsed on resigned employees, Rs.3.22 crore has been transferred to the General Reserve of the Company
during the said period.

Share Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of your Company is 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value Rs.10/- each amounting to
Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crore only ) and the Paid-up Share Capital is 2,94,61,214 Equity Shares amounting to
Rs. 29,46,12,140 /- (Rupees Twenty Nine Crore Forty Six Lakh Twelve Thousand One Hundred and Forty only). During the financial
year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has not issued and allotted any equity shares.

Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 143(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of Annual Return for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 in MGT-9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the website of the Company at www.careratings.com and is also appended as
Annexure- Il.

Economic Backdrop: 2019-20

The Indian economy slowed down with GDP growth moderating to 4.2% in 2019-20, the lowest rate in the 2011-12 GDP series
and lower than 6.1% witnessed in 2018-19. The lockdown in the last week of March 2020 did impact the year end business targets
achievements of several entities.

The slowdown in the economy during the year can be ascribed to sluggish growth in consumption expenditure, sharp decline in
investment activity and negative exports growth. The investment rate in the economy declined during 2019-20 to 26.9%, which is
the lowest rate since 2000-01. The rate is significantly lower than 34.3% achieved in 2011-12. The decline in the investment rate
in the economy is also reflected in the low capacity utilization rates as per the RBI’s survey. The capacity utilization has declined
steeply in Q2 and Q3 of 2019-20 and the utilization rate achieved in Q3 is at its lowest level since Q1 of 2008-09.

Industrial output going by the Index of Industrial production contracted by 0.7% in 2019-20, negative annual growth for the first
time since the commencement of the new series in 2011-12. Industrial production had recorded a growth of 3.8% in 2018-19.

Corporate performance has been subdued during 2019-20. Our study on corporate performance for a sample of 1706 companies
reveals a decline in sales by 0.7% with net profit falling by 37%.

Bank credit growth declined to 33-year low of 6.1% in 2019-20 compared with 13.3% in the previous year. The notable decline
in bank credit growth has been on account of weak growth to the services and industrial segment. Growth to manufacturing
was lower at 0.7% as against 6.9% in FY19, with micro, small and medium units witnessing negative growth. Growth in credit to
services was lower at 7.4% as against 17.8% in FY19.

In 2019-20, total corporate bond issuances aggregated Rs 6.9 lakh crs, 6.6% higher than the issuances of Rs 6.46 lakh crs in
2018-19. Among sectoral issuances, the highest was banking and term lending at 35%, followed by financial services (17%) and
housing finance (13%). In terms of sectoral growth in issuances in 2019-20, 21% growth was recorded in the banking segment,
62% in roads and highways and 40% in the power segment. At the same time, issuances of housing finance and financial services
contracted by 28% and 20% respectively from a year ago.

Commercial Paper (CP) issuances by corporates were lower in 2019-20. Fresh issuances of commercial paper amounted to Rs. 22
lakh crore, 15% lower than in 2018-19. In terms of outstanding CPs, there was a decline of 28.6% on March 31 2020 over March 31
2019. Against the background of the NBFC crisis which started in second half of 2018, interest of mutual funds in such instruments
especially from NBFCs came down.

Inflation in the country recorded mixed trend during the year with retail prices increasing and wholesale prices moderating. The
RBI during the year slashed the repo rate by 185 basis points from 6.25% as of end-period March’2019 to 4.4% as of the end of
2019-20. The RBI has maintained an accommodative monetary policy stance throughout the year. This has continued in the first
quarter of FY21 and is expected to remain so for the rest of the year too.
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The banking system liquidity surplus had widened to almost 4.8 lakh crsin March 2020. Since February 2020, the RBl had commenced
with its new programme of Long-Term Repo Operations (LTRO) to provide a boost to term lending which has subsequently been
targeted to specific sectors in FY21.

GSec yields broadly declined during the year to 6.73% in 2019-20, 1% lower than a year ago. The GSec yields largely fell during the
first half of the fiscal on account of fall in the policy repo rate in the economy, surplus liquidity in the banking system and benign
inflation in the economy. During the second half of the fiscal, GSec yields have been pressured and elevated on account of likely
fiscal slippages, weakness in the domestic currency, foreign investor outflows and growth concerns amidst the COVID-19 outbreak.

The rupee witnessed significant volatility in 2019-20, ranging between Rs.68.4/$ and all-time low of Rs.76.3/S. It ended the year
at around Rs.75.6/S, a depreciation of 9.3% from the start of the fiscal. In March 2020, the rupee depreciated to its all-time low
level on the back of foreign investors pulling out funds and rushing towards safe haven assets amidst global growth concerns.

The performance of your company should be looked at against this background.

Major Developments

Over the past year, your company has taken various measures for strengthening the rating processes as well as analytical rigour.
We had appointed external consultants for suggesting improvements in our processes and systems with a view of modernizing the
same. Going forward, the processes will get augmented with the use of best digital technologies.

During the year, SEBI had directed the company to conduct a forensic audit in the matter of anonymous complaints received by it.
The former MD & CEO was sent on leave and subsequently, his employment was terminated. SEBI has advised CARE to carry out
an investigation in a matter relating to the former Chairman and former MD & CEO and other employees for alleged interference
in the ratings. The same has been initiated.

The Board has appointed Mr Ajay Mahajan, as new MD & CEO of the Company, who has around three decades of experience in
the financial sector. He will henceforth be driving the business strategies of the company.

Business operations

In FY20, in a rather challenging environment, your Company’s focus was on building the client base and widening the coverage of
debt rated in the market. Since inception, your company has completed a total of 81,874 rating assignments till March 31, 2020.
On a cumulative basis, the amount of debt rated instruments increased to Rs. 141.10 lakh crore as of March 31, 2020.

Number of New debt instruments Volume of new debt instruments rated
Assignment Type (New Instruments) rated (Rs. crore)
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Short & Medium term 74 110 2,24,772 326,932
Long term 290 338 6,32,584 813,405
Bank Facility Ratings 4046 8,088 4,15,812 850,170
Others 933 844 -
Total 5,343 9,380 12,73,168 19,90,507

The above table provides information on the various aspects of the business profile and growth during the year. Certain key

aspects are enumerated as under:

1. The total number of new rating assighments declined by 43.0% in 2019-20. The moderation can, in large part, be ascribed to
the decline in bank facility ratings. Bank facilities accounted for around 76% of total assignments in 2019-20. There was a sharp
drop (of about 50%) in bank facility rating assignments in 2019-20. This was more due to the adverse external environment
which was typified by a slower growth rate in growth in bank credit to the manufacturing and services sectors — which are the
segments relevant from a rating perspective.
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2. The total volume of new debt rated decreased by 36.0% from Rs. 19.91 lakh crore in 2018-19 to Rs. 12.73 lakh crore in
2019-20, mainly on account of broad-based decrease in debt rated volume across categories. For the volume of long-term
instruments which relate to the corporate bond market, the higher volume of 2018-19 relative to issuance at the macro level
meant lower spill over for the current year. It must be noted that debt rated by us in a year may not necessarily be issued/
fully issued in the same year and could be done the following year.

3. Interms of number of new debt instruments rated, the bank facility ratings witnessed a decline in share from 86.2% in 2018-
19 to 75.7% in 2019-20. On the other hand, the share of short & medium-term instrument ratings increased from 1.2% to
1.4% and that of long-term instruments ratings increased from 3.6% to 5.4% in 2019-20. Quite clearly, the subdued lending
conditions in the banking system impacted the rateable debt in the market.

Business during the year

Large corporates and Mid-corporates

During the year, there was an industry wide reduction in the number of new clients rated. Our focus on the large and mid-
corporate segments helped in ensuring that the company does not get impacted more than the industry on this count. The
important steps included constant connect with the clients and outreach to prospects.

Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)

The SME rating business is a small component of our business in revenue terms. However, we do attach importance to this
segment considering that the SMEs of today are the large corporates of tomorrow. As highlighted, there was an industry wide
decline in the number of new companies rated during the year compared with the previous year and the SME segment was
relatively more impacted. CARE has put in place technology enabled models both to acquire and provide analytical services to this
set of customers.

Effective from FY21, some of the product offerings on the SME side shall move to CARE’s wholly owned subsidiary as a part of the
regulatory requirements.

IT Initiatives:

In 2019-20, CARE Ratings’ IT initiatives were focused on upgrading the existing IT infrastructure in order to support rating
operations. We also upgraded our Information Security Management System (ISMS) framework and successfully implemented
the rating model application integrated with core rating application. Digitizing of the rating models provided us opportunities
to do assessments online with greater potential towards accuracy. We have enhanced our core business application to add new
features.

The development of digital technology in IT infrastructure by your company has significantly changed the business landscape. As
a result, we have managed entire business operations to run smoothly during the COVID19 epidemic.

IT has successfully enabled all employees to work from home.

The focus for 2020-21 will be on building core business applications on the new technology framework, which will integrate
various applications within the organization and data sourcing tools from the market. This initiative will automate various manual
processes with the help of Al / ML based models.

The COVID-19 crisis has caused unprecedented disruption to normal business activity globally. In 2020-21 the IT initiatives of your
company will be based on the principles of digital transformation and adoption of a holistic digital strategy, to ensure readiness
for any unforeseeable future disruptions.

Knowledge dissemination

CARE Ratings has significant knowledge at an aggregate level of economic, industrial and capital market activities and has been
very proactive in reacting to events and disseminating our views immediately to our clients, regulators, government departments,
opinion makers, and media houses on various issues. For this, we have three independent research teams — Economics, BFSI and
Industry Insights.
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CARE Ratings has continued with its monthly release of CARE Debt Quality Index (CDQI) which tracks the changes in the overall
quality of debt in the economy based on a representative sample of companies in our portfolio, besides the quarterly release of
Modified Credit Ratio (MCR) which looks at the trend of upgrades and downgrades. Employees are also encouraged to conduct
webinars, partake in training programs and engage in outreach programs with clients on their subject, which gives them an
opportunity to discuss their research with other stakeholders.

Economics

The Economics Division has always been consistent in circulating real-time domestic and global economic related updates. The
division also initiates daily and monthly debt market reports- DDMU- Daily Debt Market Update and DMR- Debt Market Review.
In addition, a liquidity report is published on a weekly basis. The issuances and yields in the CP and corporate bond markets are
monitored on a regular basis.

Surveys have been carried out on the impact of COVID on the economy and sectors twice — before and after the lockdown, to
ascertain views from industry and experts.

Sectoral Views

The Industry and BFSI research team covers over 65 sectors. Sector specialists also give their views on various developments from
time to time which blend the expertise of our rating and research specialists. The inputs from Industry research team aid the rating
analysts on understanding the demand-supply and outlook prospects of a particular industry.

The division also publishes thematic reports, reports on developments pertinent to the sector and updates on the tracked sectors
on a regular basis. This year, the research team started publishing an Industry Confidence Index which provides an objective view
of the confidence level present in the industry based on 6 touch points (of which 5 are objectively defined) for 50 industries on a
quarterly basis. The 6 variables looked at are sales, profit margins, pricing power, ratings changes, interest cover and outlook. The
last factor is the only subjective indicator based on our perception. This index hence reflects objectively the confidence level in
industry on a quarterly basis.

Webinars

In continuation of our Knowledge Dissemination series, CARE Ratings conducted 34 webinars during FY2019-20. All key sectors
from economy & public finance, industrials, banking and infrastructure were covered. Each presentation was made by a Senior
Director, Sector specialist from ratings and analyst (ratings or research).

Knowledge Partnerships

CARE Ratings was associated as knowledge partners for various conferences of ASSOCHAM, PHD Chambers of Commerce and
Industry, ICAI, IIPF, and ET Rise. Subjects covered were diverse and included Mining in Karnataka, steel, electric vehicles, real
estate and housing finance, oil and gas and capital markets.

Media interactions

CARE Ratings’ published reports, updates and newscasts on various sectors and economy are widely covered across all media. Our
Senior Management team is regularly seen at prominent news channels and their views and quotes are published across major
print editions and online news portals. CARE Ratings’ reports and insights have often been quoted by prominent columnists,
thought leaders and influencers on social media.

Challenges to industry and our plan of action

There are always two sets of challenges for a credit rating agency. The first is the evolving regulatory framework where we
proactively respond and tune our processes so as to be aligned with the rules laid down. The second is external to the system
where the environment determines the perimeter of business. The lines are drawn by the overall growth impetus in the economy
and the investment taking place. These two factors have a bearing on the rateable universe which in turn sets limits on growth in
our business. FY20 has been challenging on both counts with GDP growth slowing down and investment rate reaching the lowest
level.

Our action plan is to get more diversified through our subsidiaries so that we are better prepared to build the future edifice of
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the CARE Group of companies. This has the potential for growing the overall business of the Group as upside in rating business is
restricted to a large extent by the buoyancy of the economy and hence, it becomes necessary to focus on the other areas to build
shareholder value.

We are also focusing on areas like securitization, structured products and resolution plans within the realm of credit rating to carve
a new niche for the company.

Human Resources

The level of analytical expertise has a bearing on the quality of the ratings assigned by a credit rating agency where human resources
play an important role in the business. We have always believed in picking up the right talent to ensure that the appropriate skills
and competencies are available for executing the business objectives and encouraging them to think independently while working
in teams in order to enhance the quality of rating. We further enrich their talents by way of conducting induction and training
programmes which are conducted by experts in the field. In addition, systematic training programs have been conducted to build
and enhance key functional and behavioural competencies for both new recruits and existing employees.

Ason March 31,2020, we had 646 employees (compared with 633 as of March 31, 2019), with around 90% of the staff professionally
qualified in the areas of management, CA, CS, legal, economics, engineering etc. holding professional or post graduate degrees.

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors met Thirteen (13) times during the Financial Year 2019-2020 on May 21, 2019, June 21, 2019, July 17, 2019,
July 31, 2019, August 19, 2019, October 01, 2019, November 04, 2019, November 18, 2019, December 20, 2019, January 14, 2020,
January 27, 2020, February 07, 2020 and February 14, 2020. The particulars of meetings held and attended by each Director are
detailed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

Directors Responsibility Statement
The Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial
year and of the profit for that period;

iii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2020 on a ‘going concern’ basis;

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and have been operating effectively;

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the declaration of Independence as required under Section 149(7)
of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of independence under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and
expertise in the field of finance, strategy, auditing, tax, risk advisory and financial services and they hold the highest standards of
integrity.

Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration

The Policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178, is appended as Annexure
- Il to this Report and also available on the website of the Company at www.careratings.com
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Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under section 186

The details of Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual
Report.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All transactions entered into during the Financial Year 2019-20 with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any transaction referred to in Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 with related parties which could be considered material. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party
Transactions as required under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

Attention of the members is drawn to the disclosures of transactions with related parties as required under IND AS-24 set out in
Notes to Accounts — Note No 35 of the Standalone Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report

As required under Regulation 23 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company
has formulated a Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions which is available on the website of the
Company at www.careratings.com.

Material Changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position of the Company
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred
between March 31, 2020 and the date of this report other than those disclosed in this report.

Particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo Conservation of
Energy and Technology Absorption

Your Company has taken necessary steps and initiative in respect of conservation of energy to possible extent to conserve the
resources as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. As your Company is not
engaged in any manufacturing activity, the particulars of technology absorption as required under the section are not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
During the year under review, the Company has earned a foreign exchange equivalent to Rs. 2.04 Crore and has spent a foreign
exchange equivalent to Rs. 0.51 Crore.

Business Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee consisting of members of the Board of
the Company to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The composition of the Committee
is in compliance with Regulation 21 of the SEBI LODR Regulations. The Company has a Risk Management framework to identify,
evaluate business risks and opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.

The business risk framework defines the risk identification and its management approach across the enterprise at various levels
including documentation and reporting. The framework helps in identifying risks trend, exposure and potential impact analysis on
a Company’s business.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a part of CARE Ratings’ initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in 2019-20, your Company released payments
amounting to Rs.5.26 Crores (PY.: Rs.3.27 Crores) in areas of education, infrastructure development, community development,
child welfare, art and culture and Healthcare. This also includes contribution Rs. 2 Crores to the PM CARES Fund in our country’s
fight with Covid 19.

The Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies

Act, 2013. The CSR Policy has been devised on the basis of the recommendations made by the CSR Committee. The brief outline
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of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities
during the year under review are set out in Annexure-1V of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR policy is available on the website of the Company at www.careratings.com.

Vigil Mechanism — Whistle Blower

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees in compliance with the provisions of Section 177(10)
of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, to report their genuine concerns and to provide for adequate safeguards
against victimization of persons who may use such mechanism. During the year your Company affirms that no employee of the
Company was denied access to the Audit Committee. The said policy is also available on the website of the Company at www.
careratings.com.

Annual Evaluation of Performance of the Board
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation
of the performance of Board, Individual performance of the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board has defined the evaluation criteria for the Board, its Committees and
Directors.

The Board’s functioning was evaluated after taking inputs from the Directors on various aspects, including inter alia degree of
fulfillment of key responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various
Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning.

The Committees of the Board were evaluated after taking inputs from the Committee members on the basis of criteria such as
degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings.

The Board reviewed the performance of the individual directors on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/
Committee Meetings and guidance/support to the management outside Board/ Committee Meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being
evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent
Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole
and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive director and non-executive director.

Subsidiaries

A. CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited
CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited (CART) is a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company which was incorporated
on September 06, 2016. CART is in the business of Advisory, Research and Training.

Advisory division

CART offers services in the field of transaction advisory (valuation, IM preparation), banking services support (TEV, LIE, vetting
of resolution plans, machinery cost vetting), corporate advisory (DPR, Business plan preparation, financial improvement plan,
financial appraisal) and risk management services (risk related policy documents, credit assessment models).

Research Division
CART services a variety of business needs of its domestic and multinational clients with credible, high-quality research and
analysis on various facets of the economy and industries.

Training Division
The Company caters to the training needs of corporates and professionals through its training programmes which are offered
through on-line as well class room mode.
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B. CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

Our wholly owned subsidiary CARE Risk Solutions Pvt. Ltd (CRSPL) is a leading fin-tech company which provides risk
management and financial compliance software solutions for Banking, Financial Services and Insurance (BFSI) sector with
its Enterprise Risk Management suite (ERM), Asset Liability Management (ALM), Fund Transfer Pricing (FTP), International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) & Financial Reporting Application, lending suite and early warning systems. The focus
of the organization is multi-fold and is directed at innovative disruption, digitization and hence enable financial institutions
meet the compliance norms and move towards leveraging risk management from a strategic perspective. It involves robust
effort on technology R&D and product compliance to central bank’s regulation across geographies and rapid and timely
implementation.

CRSPL has the soul of an agile start up and the maturity of an established specialist in creating and delivering advanced
technology solutions for its customers. CRSPL’s exceptional product and immaculate implementation framework has helped
them to partner with the best names in the Financial Technology globally and regionally.

C. CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited
CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited (CRAF) is the first credit rating agency to be licensed by the Financial Services Commission
of Mauritius from May 7, 2015. It is also recognized by Bank of Mauritius as External Credit Assessment Institution (ECAI)
from May 9, 2016. In February 2020, CRAF has received the approval of the Capital Markets Authority of Kenya to operate as
a Credit Rating Agency in Kenya under the Capital Markets Act and the Regulations and Guidelines issued thereunder.

During FY20, the Company has assigned ratings to 28 corporates of Mauritius including renowned Corporates like The
Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd., Bank One, CIEL, CIM, Leal, Omnicane, Alteo, MUA and ENL. In FY20, CRAF has assigned
credit ratings to bank facilities and bond issues aggregating to around MUR 40.0 billion (MUR 21.0 billion in FY19). There has
been an increase in awareness about the concept of credit rating among Banks and Corporates and clear understanding of
the benefits from ratings.

D. CARE Ratings Nepal Ltd.
CARE Ratings Nepal Ltd. (CRNL) is incorporated in Kathmandu, Nepal as a credit rating agency and is licensed by Securities
Board of Nepal w.e.f. November 16, 2017. CRNL has done 93 rating assignments in FY20. In a short span of time, CRNL has
been able to expand its operations and has, since inception, added more than 200 clients till March 31, 2020.

Material Non-Listed Indian Subsidiary
There is no material (non-listed) Indian subsidiary of your Company as on March 31, 2020

Performance and Financial Position of Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Company and their contribution to the overall
performance of the Company

As required under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the applicable Accounting Standards and form part of the Annual Report. Statement on the highlights of performance of the
subsidiary companies and their contribution to the overall performance of the Company are given in the Form AOC-1 has been
appended as Annexure-XI to this report.

Details relating to Deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
Your company has not accepted any deposits within the purview of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under
review.

Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going concern status of your
Company and its future operations.

Instances of fraud, if any reported by the Auditors
There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Adequacy of Internal Control with reference to Financial Statements
The Company has an Internal Financial Control System commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.

The Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Company in preparing its financial statements makes judgments and estimates based on sound policies and uses external
agencies to verify/ validate them as and when appropriate. The basis of such judgments and estimates are also approved by the
Statutory Auditors and Audit Committee.

The Internal Auditor evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system, accounting procedures and policies adopted
by the Company for efficient conduct of its business, adherence to Company’s policies, safeguarding of Company’s assets,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors and timely preparation of reliable financial information etc. Based on the report of
internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and provisions of the Section 152(6) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran (DIN: 03126243) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Further, Mr. Nitin Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer of the Company resigned from the services of the Company with effect
from July 18, 2019, and your Company has appointed Mr. Bharat Adnani, as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from August 19,
2019.

During the year, Mr. Najib Shah, Dr. M Mathisekaran and Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan were appointed as Non-Executive
(Independent Directors) and whose appointment was also approved by the shareholders at the 26" AGM held on September 30,
2019. Further, Ms. Sadhana Dhamane, Non-Executive Director and Mr. S B Mainak, Non-Executive (Independent Directors) of the
company resigned from the Board on August 08, 2019 and February 11, 2020 respectively.

During the year, the Company initiated forensic audit as advised by SEBI in the matter of anonymous complaints received by it.
Pending investigation, Mr Rajesh Mokashi, the former MD and CEO was sent on leave on July 17, 2019.

Mr. Rajesh Mokashi suo-moto resigned from the services of the Company with effect from December 20, 2019. The Board of
CARE took the resignation on record, without prejudice to the ongoing examination of anonymous complaints and any action, if
required, to be taken pursuant thereto. Mr S.B. Mainak also tendered his resignation as Director of CARE on February 11, 2020,
which was accepted by the Board.

In February, 2020, the Board considered the forensic audit report and independent of any legal assessment, decided to terminate
the employment of Mr. Rajesh Mokashi with effect from the date he was sent on leave in July, 2019. The Board also reviewed
various measures for improvement in its systems and processes to ensure that CARE maintains highest standards of professional
quality and integrity.

As advised by SEBI, the Company has instituted a full-fledged inquiry by Justice (Retd) B. N. Srikrishna, a retired Supreme Court
Justice, for alleged interference in the ratings by erstwhile Chairman and MD and other employees and to take appropriate action,
if required. The said inquiry is going on.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Ajay
Mahajan as an Additional Director and as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from April 15,
2020 for a period of five years subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Detailed profile of Mr. Mahajan in line with Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations is forming a part of the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.
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Auditor and Auditor’s Report

M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 105146W) were reappointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company at the 23rd Annual General Meeting to hold office from the conclusion of 23rd Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 28th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2021.

Your Company has received a confirmation from Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 105146W)
to the effect that that they are not disqualified within the meaning of Section 141 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditors, in their report.

Status of Investors Compliant
During the financial year 2019-20, your Company has received complaints with regard to non-receipt of annual report and non-
receipt of dividend. The details of complaints are appended to this Report as Annexure-V.

Secretarial Audit Report
The Board of Directors of your Company have appointed M/s A. K. Jain & Co., Company Secretaries, Mumbai, to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is appended to this Report as Annexure-VI.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s A K Jain & Co., Company Secretaries,
Mumbai in their secretarial audit report.

Maintenance of Cost Records & Cost Audit
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, are not
applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company.

Change in the Nature of Business
During the financial year 2019-20, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Employees Stock Option Schemes
As required in terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, the
disclosure relating to CARE Ratings Limited (“ESOS - 2013”) is appended as Annexure-VII to this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2) (e) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, is annexed as Annexure-VIIl to this
report.

Particulars of Employees

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been appended
as Annexure-IX to this Report.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of managerial Personnel) Amended Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of your Company is
available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days up to the
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such member may write to
the Company Secretary, whereupon a copy would be sent.
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Business Responsibility Statement

A Business Responsibility Report as per regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, detailing the various initiatives taken by the Company on the environmental, social and governance front. annexed as
Annexure-X and forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhering to the Corporate
Governance requirements as set out by Securities and Exchange Board of India. The Report on Corporate Governance as per
regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part
of the Annual Report. The Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Schedule V (E) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Committee of the Company
Your Company’s Audit Committee comprises the following directors as its members:

1. Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai Member (Independent Director)
3. Mr. V. Chandrasekaran Member (Non-Executive Director)
4., Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan Member (Independent Director)

The composition of the Audit Committee is in compliance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working in the Company’s
premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment
that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

Your Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. The policy aims at prevention of harassment
of employees and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of undesired behaviour. An Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up as per the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 in order to investigate any complaints / issues related to sexual harassment. The ICC is
responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the Policy.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the ICC did not receive any complaint pertaining to sexual harassment.

Compliance of the Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 Issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)
The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI related to the Board and General Meetings have been complied by the Company.

Acknowledgements
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On behalf of the Board of Directors
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Place: July 10, 2020 Managing Director & CEO Director Director
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ANNEXURE-I

CARE RATINGS LIMITED
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Board shall declare & pay dividends out of

e The Current year’s profit after (a) transferring to the reserves such amount of profit as may be prescribed and (b) provid-
ing for depreciation in accordance with the applicable laws; or

e The profits for any previous financial year(s) that remain undistributed after providing for depreciation in accordance
with applicable laws; or

e Combination of (i) and (ii) above

The following shall be considered by the Board prior to any recommendation in relation to declaration of dividends:

¢ Plough back of profits i.e. for future capital expenditure for expansion programme; for acquisition of premises if any and
for renovation and major repairs and maintenance.

e  Crystallization of contingent liabilities, if any

e Acquisition or sale of business

Interim dividends may be declared by the Board based on the review of profits earned during the current year to date. Decla-
ration of final dividends based on review of profits as per the audited financial statements for the year are to be recommend-

ed by the Board to shareholders for approval.

The above dividend policy is subject to provisions of the Companies Act 2013 & SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re-
quirements) Regulations, 2015.

This policy will be reviewed annually and as and when changes take place in the regulations.
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ANNEXURE-II
Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended March 31, 2020 [Pursuant to section 92(3) and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

i. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

L67190MH1993PLC0O71691

Registration Date

April 21, 1993

Name of the Company

CARE Ratings Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Com-
pany

Company Limited by shares / Indian Non-Government Company.

Address of the Registered office and
contact detail

4™ Floor, Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital Road, Off. Eastern Express Highway,
Sion (East),

Mumbai — 400 022

Tel No: 022 — 67543456

Fax No: 022 — 67543457

Email : care@careratings.com Website: www.careratings.com

Vi.

Whether listed company (Yes / No)

Yes

vii.

Name, Address and Contact details
of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

Unit: CARE Ratings Limited

Selenium Tower - B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, Gachibowli, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad — 500 032.

Tel. No. 040 — 67162222

Fax No. 040 — 23001153

Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com Website: www.kfintech.com

ii. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl. No. | Name and Description of main products / services HE G el ti_re Product/ | % to total turnover of the
service Company
1. Financial Services other than securities dealing activities 66190 100%
iii. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Holding/ | , .
Sl. No. | Name and Address of the Company | CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ SIS | Al Ilc'able
y held Section
Associate
1. CARE Risk Solutions Pvt. Ltd. U74210MH1999PTC118349 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
2. CARE Ratings Mauritius (Africa) Pvt. | - Subsidiary 78% 2(87)
Ltd.,
3. CARE Advisory Research and Training | U74999MH2016PLC285575 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Limited
4. CARE Ratings Nepal Limited - Subsidiary 51% 2(87)




iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
a. Category-wise Share Holding

e Annual Report 2019-20

Category of share- hold-
ers

No. of shares held at the beginning of the
year —01/04/2019

No. of shares held at the end of the year
—-31/03/2020

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
total
shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
total
shares

%
change
during

the
year

A. Promoters & Pro- mot-
er Group

(1) Indian

Individual/HUF

Central Govt.

State Govt.(s)

Bodies Corp.

Banks / FI

Any Other

Sub-total (A)(1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs — Individuals

b) Other — Individuals

Bodies Corp.

Banks / Fl

Any Other

Sub-total (A)(2)

Total shareholding of Pro-
moter (A) = (A) (1)+(A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

3213791

3213791

10.91

4270572

4270572

14.50

3.59

b) Banks / Financial Insti-
tutions

3168956

3168956

10.76

2992806

2992806

10.16

-0.60

c) Central Govt.

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Foreign Institutional /
Portfolio Investors

13742878

13742878

46.65

8670042

8670042

29.43

-17.22

h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds
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No. of shares held at the beginning of the | No. of shares held at the end of the year %

year — 01/04/2019 -31/03/2020 change
Category of share- duri
holders % of % of uring
Demat | Physical Total total Demat | Physical Total total the
shares shares year

i) Others - Qualified For-
eign Investor

Sub-total (B)(1) 20125625 20125625 68.31| 17011932 17011932 57.74| -10.57

2. Non-Institutions

5283495 17.93| 5349188 5349188 18.16 0.22

Bodies Corporate 5283495

Individuals

(i) Individuals holding
nominal share capital upto | 3257294 301, 3257595 11.06| 5252510 301, 5252811 17.83 6.77
Rs.1 lakh

(i)  Individuals holding
nominal share capital in 355481
excess of Rs.1 lakh

355481 1.21| 1096259 1096259 3.72 2.51

Others

Clearing Members 58970 . 58970 020 141106 | 141106] 048] 0.8
Directors 76721 . 76721 026 76721 . 76721 026|  0.00
Non Resident Indians 212157 . 212157| 072 407192 . 407192] 138 066
Nri Non-Repatriation 88838 .| sss38| 030 123673 (o o123673]  042] 012
Trusts 2332 ] 2332|001 2332 ] 2332|001 0.00
Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total B(2) : 9335288 301| 9335589 31.69| 12448981 301| 12449282 4226 10.57
(T;)ta:' ('; ‘;:’ll;if:)a(:;mw'"g 29460913 301| 29461214 100.00 | 29460913 301| 29461214 100.00|  0.00
C. Shares held by Custodi-

an for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 29460913 301| 29461214 100.00 | 29460913 301| 29461214 100.00|  0.00

b. Shareholding of Promoters

No. of shares held at the beginning of | No. of shares held at the end of the year
the year (01.04.2019) (31.03.2020)
Category of % of % change during the
shareholders i 00, ear
Demat AT Total Zoefitotal Demat | Physical Total total 4
cal shares
shares
NIL

*During the year under review in promoter’s category the shareholding is Nil.
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c. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. No. Particulars

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulative Shareholding during the

the year year
% of total o
No. of Shares Shares of the No. of Shares % of total Shares of
C the Company
ompany

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase / decrease in
Promoters Shareholding

during the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease

(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.)

No Change

At the end of the year

d. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Name of the shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(31.03.2020)

No. of Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

% of total Shares

No. of Shares of the Company

1) Life Insurance Corporation of India

At the beginning of the year

2902136

9.85

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year

2902136 9.85

2) CRISIL Limited

At the beginning of the year

2622431

8.90

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year

2622431 8.90

3) Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited
A/C

At the beginning of the year

5000

0.02

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

12/04/2019 Sale

300

0.00

4700 0.02

07/06/2019 Sale

2000

0.01

2700 0.01

19/07/2019 Sale

2700

0.01

0 0.00

24/01/2020 Purchase

1066887

3.62

1066887 3.62
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Name of the shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(31.03.2020)

No. of Shares y; ﬁ{;)??g;g‘;;? No. of Shares ﬁ fog;,?ggns’zzzeys
31/01/2020 Purchase 319943 1.09 1386830 4,71
07/02/2020 Purchase 70591 0.24 1457421 4.95
14/02/2020 Purchase 329656 1.12 1787077 6.07
At the end of the year 1787077 6.07
4) L & T Mutual Fund Trustee Ltd - L & T Tax
Advantage Fund
At the beginning of the year 1214792 4.12
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
26/07/2019 Purchase 15000 0.05 1229792 4.17
09/08/2019 Purchase 66170 0.22 1295962 4.40
16/08/2019 Purchase 1759 0.01 1297721 4.40
23/08/2019 Purchase 27461 0.09 1325182 4.50
30/08/2019 Purchase 40000 0.14 1365182 4.63
27/09/2019 Purchase 25000 0.08 1390182 4.72
18/10/2019 Purchase 25000 0.08 1415182 4.80
03/01/2020 Purchase 109608 0.37 1524790 5.18
14/02/2020 Sale 173433 0.59 1351357 4.59
27/03/2020 Sale 73528 0.25 1277829 4.34
At the end of the year 1277829 4.34
5) Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore)
Pte. - ODI
At the beginning of the year 216668 0.74
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
05/04/2019 Purchase 129442 0.44 346110 1.17
12/04/2019 Purchase 25755 0.09 371865 1.26
19/04/2019 Purchase 23909 0.08 395774 1.34
26/04/2019 Purchase 54662 0.19 450436 1.53
03/05/2019 Purchase 20904 0.07 471340 1.60
10/05/2019 Purchase 45976 0.16 517316 1.76
17/05/2019 Purchase 37230 0.13 554546 1.88
24/05/2019 Purchase 17667 0.06 572213 1.94
14/06/2019 Sale 91 0.00 572122 1.94
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Name of the shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(31.03.2020)

No. of Shares f foz;,??gniZZ;? No. of Shares ﬁ foff;,?tc‘g;’;ZZ?
21/06/2019 Purchase 82 0.00 572204 1.94
26/07/2019 Sale 100 0.00 572104 1.94
02/08/2019 Purchase 100 0.00 572204 1.94
09/08/2019 Sale 82 0.00 572122 1.94
23/08/2019 Purchase 11343 0.04 583465 1.98
30/08/2019 Purchase 37330 0.13 620795 211
13/09/2019 Purchase 2308 0.01 623103 211
20/09/2019 Purchase 33117 0.11 656220 2.23
27/09/2019 Purchase 43545 0.15 699765 2.38
04/10/2019 Purchase 47821 0.16 747586 2.54
11/10/2019 Purchase 33301 0.11 780887 2.65
18/10/2019 Purchase 33121 0.11 814008 2.76
25/10/2019 Purchase 51361 0.17 865369 2.94
01/11/2019 Purchase 61441 0.21 926810 3.15
08/11/2019 Purchase 156115 0.53 1082925 3.68
15/11/2019 Purchase 167075 0.57 1250000 4.24
29/11/2019 Purchase 4787 0.02 1254787 4.26
06/12/2019 Sale 4787 0.02 1250000 4.24
21/02/2020 Purchase 14000 0.05 1264000 4.29
20/03/2020 Sale 8400 0.03 1255600 4.26
27/03/2020 Sale 5600 0.02 1250000 4.24
At the end of the year 1250000 4.24
6) Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund A/C
Franklin India
At the beginning of the year 1214044 4.12
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
13/12/2019 Purchase 1054044 3.58 2268088 7.70
13/12/2019 Sale 1214044 4.12 1054044 3.58
At the end of the year 1054044 3.58
7) Franklin Templeton Investment Funds
At the beginning of the year 1180846 4.01

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.
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Name of the shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(31.03.2020)

No. of Shares y; ﬁ{;)??g;g‘;;? No. of Shares ﬁ fog;,?ggns’zzzeys
17/01/2020 Sale 180846 0.61 1000000 3.39
At the end of the year 1000000 3.39
8) Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd.
At the beginning of the year 114217 0.39
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.
07/06/2019 Sale 5100 0.02 109117 0.37
14/06/2019 Sale 3000 0.01 106117 0.36
12/07/2019 Sale 6500 0.02 99617 0.34
26/07/2019 Sale 10400 0.04 89217 0.30
20/09/2019 Purchase 115000 0.39 204217 0.69
01/11/2019 Purchase 10000 0.03 214217 0.73
29/11/2019 Purchase 100000 0.34 314217 1.07
06/12/2019 Purchase 200000 0.68 514217 1.75
13/12/2019 Purchase 50000 0.17 564217 1.92
24/01/2020 Purchase 230763 0.78 794980 2.70
13/03/2020 Purchase 50000 0.17 844980 2.87
20/03/2020 Purchase 25000 0.08 869980 2.95
At the end of the year 869980 2.95
9) Lloyd George Investment Company Public
Limited Company
At the beginning of the year 866004 2.94
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / !
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
26/04/2019 Sale 3541 0.01 862463 2.93
09/08/2019 Purchase 84874 0.29 947337 3.22
16/08/2019 Purchase 154927 0.53 1102264 3.74
23/08/2019 Purchase 885 0.00 1103149 3.74
06/09/2019 Purchase 65688 0.22 1168837 3.97
13/09/2019 Purchase 20955 0.07 1189792 4.04
11/10/2019 Purchase 762 0.00 1190554 4.04
03/01/2020 Sale 93000 0.32 1097554 3.73
10/01/2020 Sale 1515 0.01 1096039 3.72
14/02/2020 Sale 227205 0.77 868834 2.95
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=]
Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the year 5
the year (01.04.2019) (31.03.2020) o
Name of the shareholder % of total Sh % of total Sh e
% of total Shares % of total Shares <
No. of Shares of the Company No. of Shares of the Company E
At the end of the year 868834 2.95 2
10) Pinebridge Global Funds - Pinebridge India
Equity
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
09/08/2019 Purchase 288000 0.98 288000 0.98
22/11/2019 Purchase 140000 0.48 428000 1.45
29/11/2019 Purchase 175000 0.59 603000 2.05
31/01/2020 Purchase 25959 0.09 628959 2.13
07/02/2020 Purchase 151372 0.51 780331 2.65
21/02/2020 Purchase 50000 0.17 830331 2.82
At the end of the year 830331 2.82

e. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during
of the year the year
Name of Director /Key Managerial Personnel % of total % of total
Shares of the Shares of the
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Company Company

1) Mr. Rajesh Mokashi, Managing Director & CEO
At the beginning of the year (01.04.2019) 76721 0.26
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease
At the end of the year (20.12.2019) 76,721 0.26
2) Mr. Mehul Pandya
At the beginning of the year (01.04.2019) 18855 0.06
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
At the end of the year (31.03.2020) 18855 0.06
3) Mr. T. N. Arun Kumar
At the beginning of the year (01.04.2019) 28960 0.10
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
At the end of the year (31.03.2020) 28960 0.10




CARE Ratings Limited e

v. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured l:oans ' Total
excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits
et Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL
Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL
Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
i) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Amount in Rs.)
Name of MD / WTD / MANAGER
SI No. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Rajesh Mokashi, Managing

Director & CEO

1 Gross salary

Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
1,01,46,539
Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option -—--

Sweat Equity -—--

4 Commission —-
as % of profit
others, specify

5 Others, please specify
Provident Fund 5,11,570
Superannuation 4,69,708
Total (A) 1,11,27,817

Overall Ceiling as per the Act (%) - 5% of the Net Profits equivalent to Rs. 5,48,14,245/- with respect to the ceiling for the
Company applicable for the financial year covered by this Report
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C. TOTAL MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS:

No. Name Amount (Rs)
1. Mr. S. B. Mainak, Chairman & Independent Director 19,50,000
2. Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Independent Director 22,50,000
3. Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai, Independent Director 20,00,000
4, Mr. Najib Shah, Independent Director 12,00,000
5. Dr. M Mathisekaran, Independent Director 9,00,000
6. Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan, Independent Director 12,00,000
7. Mr. Rajesh Mokashi, Managing Director & CEO 1,11,27,817
8. Ms. Sadhana Dhamane, Non Executive Director 8,00,000
9. Mr. V. Chandrasekaran, Non Executive Director 20,50,000

TOTAL REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS 2,34,77,817

Overall Ceiling as per the Act (%) - 11% of the Net Profits equivalent to Rs.12,05,91,335/- with respect to the ceiling for the

Company applicable for the financial year covered by this Report.

D. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD:

(Amount in Rs.)

Key Managerial Personnel
M%\;zwn Mr. Nitin Mr. Bharat
Mr. T. Mr. Mehul E i Kumar Adnani
S r. | Particulars of N. Arun Livienu Xecutive Agrawal, Chief Total
No. | Remuneration Kumar, Pandy.a, Director Chief Finan- Financial Amount
g Executive & . . :
Executive . cial Officer | Officer (From
Di Director Company
irector Secretar (upto July 18, | August 19,
/ 2019) 2019)
Gross salary
1 (a) Salary as per provisions
) contained in section 17(1) of 98,39,739 | 94,68,056 71,95,169 13,05,450 26,72,838 | 3,04,81,252
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 0.00
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ’
Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Variable Pay
Leave Encashment
2. Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Commission as % of profit
4, others, specify... 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Others, please  specify
Provident Fund Performance 3,49,985 3,09,256 3,03,920 54,411 1,16,378 11,33,950
5 Related Pay
Total 1,01,89,724 | 97,77,312 74,99,089 13,59,861 27,89,216 | 3,16,15,202
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Secti th DI .of Renaity Authority [RD/ | Appeal made,
Type AR Brief Description | / Punishment/ NcLT ifany
Companies Act Compounding ive detail
[ / COURT] (give details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

47

1oday ,s10308.110



CARE Ratings Limited e

ANNEXURE-III
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY (DIRECTORS, KMP & SENIOR MANAGEMENT)

INTRODUCTION

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable remuneration to all
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees ovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) and Senior Management has been formulated.

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE

CARE had two separate committees, 1) Remuneration Committee and 2) Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee. To
comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and revised clause 49 of the Listing agreement, the Board of Directors at its
114" Board Meeting held on May 20, 2014 merged the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committee and named it as ‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’.

OBJECTIVE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 under the Listing Agreement / Part D of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to
remuneration of directors, KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The terms of reference of the Committee as defined by the Board are as follows:

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with
the criteria laid down,

2. Recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

4. Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.

w

Part D of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

4. ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

5. Whetherto extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of independent directors. The company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its
Annual Report.

w

APPLICABILITY

a) Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)
b) Key Managerial Personnel

¢) Senior Management Personnel

DEFINITIONS

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.

“Executive Director” means a director who is in full time employment and involved in the day to day management of the company.
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“Non- Executive Director” means a director who is not in employment of the Company but is involved in policy making and
planning exercises.

“Independent Directors” means a non- executive director who apart from receiving sitting fees ,does not have any material
pecuniary relationships or transactions with the company, its promoter, its senior management or its holding company, its
subsidiaries and associates which may affect the independence of director.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means

* Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
e Executive Director(s);

e Company Secretary;

e Chief Financial Officer and

e Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Management Personnel” means personnel of the company who are members of its core management team excluding
Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the Whole-time Directors, including the functional
heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the
Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications

a. The Board of Directors of CARE to consist of eminent professionals from the disciplines of banking, finance, accounts,
economics, etc.

b. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

c. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for
appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a
person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

d. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained
the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age
of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

2. Positive Attributes
a. Excellent interpersonal, communication, leadership and representational skills.
b. Having continuous professional development to refresh knowledge and skills.
c. Commitment of high standard of ethics, personal integrity and probity.

3. Independence of Director
CARE is a professionally managed company. It does not have any nominee director or any director holding any substantial
shareholding in the Company.

The Directors do not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company during
the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year.

Further, the Directors have not been an employee or partner of a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or a partner of any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any
transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent or more of the gross
turnover of such firm in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is appointed.
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Evaluation of Performance
The Committee shall recommend to the Board on appropriate performance criteria for the directors. It shall also carry out
evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel at regular interval.

Term / Tenure

a. Managing Director/Whole-time Director: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one
year before the expiry of term.

b. Independent Director: An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of
such appointment in the Board’s report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent
Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such Inde-
pendent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies
as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other
number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations there
under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing
policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the
same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Board Diversity
The Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that diversity of gender, thought, experience, knowledge and perspective is
maintained in the Board nomination process in accordance with the Policy on Board Diversity.

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS / KMP / SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Executive Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel:

The Remuneration / Compensation etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc. shall be governed as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The remuneration
with regard to Senior Management Personnel will be as per the policy of the Company.

Performance Evaluation and Variable pay to Managing Director & CEO and Key Mangerial Personnel:

The performance evaluation of the Managing Director & CEO and other Key Managerial Personnel will be decided on the
basis of financial and technical parameters and its achievement to the budgeted targets fixed by the Board. Further, the
overall performance of the Company, retention of the clients, new additions of the client, recovery of outstanding dues,
growth in profit, growth in revenue and control over management expenses will also be considered.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Director and Independent Director:

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Director are paid sitting fees subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and after passing of a
resolution by the Board.
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Commission:

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Director may be paid commission subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and after passing of a
resolution by the Shareholders.

Stock Options:
Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options of the Company.

Minimum remuneration to Managing Director and Executive Director in case of no profits or inadequate profits:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its
Managing Director and Executive Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or, if
it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the approval of the Central Government.

Post-retirement Benefits:
The Managing Director, Executive Director and Senior management Personnel are entitled for retirement benefits such as

encashment of leave, leave travel concession, provident fund, superannuation fund and gratuity.

DUTIES IN RELATION TO NOMINATION MATTERS

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

C.

a. Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and
reviewing its effectiveness;

b. Ensuring that on appointment as Independent Directors at the Annual General Meeting, the Independent Directors

receive a formal letter of appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation.

Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the plan;

Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company’s performance

from business and compliance perspective;

g. Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at
any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company
subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

h. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;

i.  Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and

j.  Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

o oo

DUTIES IN RELATION TO REMUNERATION MATTERS

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

D.

a. Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as
the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board.

Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining

C. a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company.

d. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

e. Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

a. The Committee or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems ecessary.

b. The Committee may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in supplement and
better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

C. This Policy may be amended or substituted by the Committee or by the Board as and when required and also by the
Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the change in the policy.
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ANNEXURE-IV

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1. | A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including
overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs

Primary theme: To contribute towards promotion of financial
education.

Concurrent Theme: To contribute towards local

community development.

area

As a part of its primary theme, CARE shall look at opportunities
for funding higher education for the students in the field of
finance. Such funding could also be for training of students in
the field of finance.

To implement its concurrent theme, CARE may look to provide
for development of Local Area (area in the city in which
CARE’s office is located) in terms providing assistance and
infrastructure to local bodies, government offices, schools and
public places.

Taking the gravity of the COVID -19 pandemic situation,
company has also contributed to PM CARES Fund over and
above the amount eligible for CSR activities

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website -
www.careratings.com

2. | The Composition of the CSR Committee

Dr. M. Mathisekaran, Chairman (Independent Director)
Mr. V Chandrasekaran, Member (Independent Director)
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai, Member (Independent Director)

3. | Average net profit of the company for last three
financial years

Rs. 1,94,35,72,052/-

4. | Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the
amount as in item 3 above)

Rs. 3,88,71,441/-

5. | Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a)

Total amount spent during the financial year;

Rs. 5,26,81,675/-

(b)

Amount unspent, if any;

Nil
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Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

S. | CSR project Sector in Projects or Amount outlay | Amount spent | Cumulative Amount
No. | or activity which the programs (budget) on the projects | expenditure | spent: Direct
identified Project is Local area project or pro- | or programs- upto to the or through
covered or other grams wise Sub- heads: repf)rtmg implementing
Specify the (I) Direct period agency
State and expent':llt:re
district where on projects or
projects or programs-
programs was (2) Overheads:
undertaken
1) | To fight against | Contribution Across the 200.00 200.00 Nil Direct
CovID- 49 to‘the prime Country
Pandemic — minister’s
PM Cares Fund | Citizen
Assistance
and Relief in
Emergency
Situations
Fund (PM
CARES Fund)
2) | Child welfare — | Eradicating The funds will 20.00 20.00 Nil Through
Balgruh hunger, be utilised implementing
poverty.a.nd for carlng agency - NGO
malnutrition & nurturing .
. —K.J. Somaiya
100 destitute trust
children living in
Balgruh.

3) | Mid day meal | Eradicating The funds will 11.00 11.00 Nil Through
hunger, be utilised for implementing
poverty .a'nd Mid day m'eal agency - NGO
malnutrition sponsorship of

. - Akshay Patra
1000 childrens. .
Foundation
4) | Sponsoring Promoting The funds will 19.00 19.00 Nil Through
h:jgher. f education be utilisgd for implementing
education o sponsorlng agency - NGO
students higher .
. —K.J. Somaiya
education of
Trust

students for
courses above
the 10*" grade.
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enhancing
vocation skills

child rights, life
skills with youth
and women

in Mumbai &
Thane.

5) | Training to Promoting The funds will 16.80 16.80 Nil Through

youths education be utilised to implementing
train 550 Youths agency - NGO —
across various Pratham
sectors located
at Mumbai &
Amravati

6) | Scholarships to | Promoting The Funds will 30.00 30.00 Nil Through

students education be utilised for implementing
providing We . agency - NSDL
Care scholarship
to students e-Governance

. Infrastructure

from different Limited
parts of the
country.

7) | Providing Promoting The Funds will 6.00 6.00 Nil Through
e-learning education be utilised for implementing
classrooms converting 4 . agency - NGO

classrooms with - Girivanvasi
smart board for Educational
e-learning. Trust

8) | study centres Promoting The Funds will 11.25 11.25 Nil Through
for socio- education be utilised implementing
economically | jncluding for providing agency - NGO
challenged special exposure — Seva Sahyog
students education and | to socio- Foundation

employment economically

enhancing challenged

vocation skills | students
towards value
education,
personality
development,
art & craft
activities, story
telling, etc.

9) | Financial Promoting The Funds will 20.00 20.00 Nil Through
literacy education be utilised implementing
programs including for prgwdmg agency - NGO —

special ﬁnanaél Meljol
education and | education
employment | Programme,
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10) | Water purifier | Promoting The Funds will 12.58 12.58 Nil Through
for school health care be utilised for implementing
students mcIudmg proyl.dmg Water agency - NGO

preventive purifier for 26
- Seva Sahyog
health care schools. Foundation

11) | Mobile science | Promoting The Funds will 27.19 27.19 Nil Through
Laboratory and | education be utilised for implementing
library mobile science agency - NGO

laboratory )

. Seva Sahyog
and library Foundation
to inducing
interest in
education &
awareness.

12) | Financial Protection The Funds will 23.00 23.00 Nil Through
assistance to of national be utilised for implementing
Music School heritage, art promoting

. agency - The
and culture Indian Art .
Fine Arts
& culture .
heritage Society,
’ Chembur

13) | Social and Promoting The Funds will | 20.00 20.00 Nil Through
Financial education be utilised implementing
Literacy including for chnal - agency - NGO -
programs special and Financial Concern India

education and | Literacy Foundation
employment programs for
enhancing underprivileged
vocation skills | children and
Adolescents.

14) | Infrastructure | Promoting The Funds will 25.00 25.00 Nil Through
development | education be utilised implementing
of school for improving agency - NGO -

infrastructure .
Concern India
at the school by Foundation

refurbishment
of classrooms,
sanitation
facilities at Zilla
Parishad School
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planted at
school.

15) | Special care Promoting The Funds will 17.50 17.50 Nil Through
centre for education be utilised implementing
hearlpg for.prowdlng agency - NGO
impaired and assistance —Save the
intellectually to a school Children India
disabled for hearing
children impaired and

intellectually
disabled
children

16) | Employment Promoting The Funds will 7.50 7.50 Nil Through
opportunities | education, be utilised implementing
fc?r adolescent |nc|u'd|ng for enhancing agency- NGO
girls & young special employment —Save the
women education and | opportunities . .

Children India

employment for adolescent
enhancing girls and young
vocation skills | women from
especially low income
among background
children, by providing
women vocational

training

17) | Child Heart Promoting The Funds will 6.00 6.00 Nil Through

Care health care be utilised for implementing
|ncIud|ng sponsoring child agency - NGO
preventive heart care and - Sri Sathya
health care operation cost. Sai Health &
Education Trust
18) | Drinking Water | Promoting The Funds will 3.50 3.50 Nil Through
health care be utilised for implementing
mcIudmg drinking water agency - NGO -
preventive for school and Rotary Club of
health care orphanage Navi l\ilumbai
centre in Navi (Vashi)
Mumbai.
19) | Tree Ensuring The Funds will 0.50 0.50 Nil Through
maintenance environmental | be utilised for implementing
sustainability Fencmg.apd agency - NGO -
water piping for Rotary Club of
maintenance Navi Mumbai
of 180 trees (Vashi)
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patients and
BPL patients

20) | COVID- 19 Promoting The funds will 50.00 50.00 Nil Through
Treatment .health. care be utiliset.:i implementing
mcIudmg for dpnanng agency - NGO
preventive Ventilators,
- Bombay
health care treatment Hospital Trust
of Covid-19 P

6. |In case the company has failed to spend the two per
cent, of the average net profit of the last three financial
years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

Not-Applicable

7. | A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that
the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is
in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the

We hereby confirm that implementation and monitoring of
the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and
policy of the Company.

company.
Ajay Mahajan Dr. M Mathisekaran
Managing Director & CEO Chairman — CSR Committee

DIN: 05108777 DIN: 03584338
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STATUS OF THE INVESTORS COMPLAINT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-2020

ANNEXURE-V

The Company has received 102 complaints from the shareholders during the financial year ended 31.03.2020. The details are as

follows:
.. Complaints Complaints Complaints
D | DB received Attended pending
1. Non-receipt of refund order NIL NIL NIL
2. Non-receipt of Annual Report 82 82 NIL
3. Non-receipt of dividend 20 20 NIL
4, Non-receipt of Securities NIL NIL NIL
Non-receipt of refund order (Compliant received through SEBI
5. SCORES) NIL NIL NIL
Non-receipt of dividend (Compliant received through SEBI
6. SCORES) NIL NIL NIL
7 Non-receipt of Annual Report (Complaint received through Stock NIL NIL NIL
Ex- Change)
TOTAL 102 102 NIL

The Company has promptly attended to all the complaints and there were no pending complaints at the end of the year.
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ANNEXURE - VI
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The financial year ended on 315 March, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Care Ratings Limited

Godrej Coliseum, 4th Floor, Somaiya Hospital Road
Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion East

Mumbai 400022.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Care Ratings Limited (CIN: L67190MH1993PLC071691) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification electronically of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, in wake of the countrywide lockdown due to the outbreak of the Novel Covid-19 and we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for

the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

C. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period) and;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

vi. The Management has identified and confirmed the compliance of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Credit Rating
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Agencies) Regulations, 1999 which is specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
standards etc.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in ad-
vance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors were carried through on the basis of majority. There were no dissenting views
by any member of the Board of Directors during the period under review.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there is no specific events/actions which may have major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. except that during the year, the SEBI
had directed the Company to conduct a forensic audit in the matter of Whistle Blower Complaints received by it. The former MD
and CEO was sent on leave and subsequently, his employment was terminated. SEBI has asked for an investigation in the matter
related to the former Chairman and former MD and CEO and other employees for alleged interference in the ratings. The same
has been initiated as per the directions laid down by the SEBI.

For A. K. Jain & Co.
Company Secretaries

Ashish Kumar Jain
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date:10" July, 2020 FCS: 6058. CP: 6124
UDIN: FO06058B000438358

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms an integral part of this
report.
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Annexure A

The Members

Care Ratings Limited,

Godrej Coliseum 4" Floor, Somaiya Hospital Road,
Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion East,

Mumbai 400022.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. Duetothe outbreak of COVID 19 and a country wide lock down, we have conducted the audit and relied upon the information,
documents, forms, returns, papers and other records maintained by Company and provided to us electronically.

For A. K. Jain & Co.
Company Secretaries
Ashish Kumar Jain
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date:10" July, 2020 FCS: 6058. CP: 6124

UDIN: F006058B000438358
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ANNEXURE-VII
Information to be disclosed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
(“the Regulations”) with regards to options which are in force as on March 31, 2020.
Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)
There is no change in the scheme as approved by the Shareholders. The Scheme is in compliance with the Regulations as amended

from time to time.

A. Relevant disclosures in terms of the ‘Guidance note on accounting for employee share-based payments’ issued by ICAl or any
other relevant accounting standards as prescribed from time to time are provided on the web link: www.careratings.com

B. Diluted EPS on issue of shares in accordance with ‘Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share’ issued by ICAI - Rs. 27.32

C. Details related to Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) -Tranche I

(i) | A description of ESOS that existed at any time during the year:

(a) | Date of shareholders’ approval September 27, 2013
(b) | Total number of options approved under ESOS 1,000,000

Two (2) years from the date of Options granted i.e.,
September 01, 2017

(c) | Vesting requirements

(d) | Exercise price or pricing formula Rs. 1,139 per share

(e) | Maximum term of options granted 3 years

(f) | Source of shares (primary, secondary or combination) Primary (Direct allotment)
(g) | Variation in terms of options None

(ii) | Method used to account for ESOS - Intrinsic or fair value:- Fair Value

Where the company opts for expensing of the options using the
intrinsic value of the options, the difference between the employee
(iii) | compensation cost so computed and the employee compensation
cost that shall have been recognized if it had used the fair value of
the options shall be disclosed.

Not applicable since the company has followed Fair
Value method

(iv) | Option movement during the year:

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the year NIL
Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the year 477,458
Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year 61,838
Number of options vested during the year NIL
Number of options exercised during the year NIL
Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options NIL

Money realized by exercise of options (INR), if scheme is implement-

ed directly by the company NIL

Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price received | Not Applicable

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year 415,620

Number of options exercisable at the end of the year NIL

Weighted-average exercise prices and weighted- average fair values
of options shall be disclosed separately for options whose exercise
price either equals or exceeds or is less than the market price of the
stock.

Weighted Average Exercise Price Rs. 1,139/- per
share. Weighted-Average Fair Values Rs.565.79/-
per share.

(v)
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(vi)

Employee wise details (name of employee, designation, number of
options granted during the year, exercise price) of options granted to
— (a) senior managerial personnel;

(b) any other employee who receives a grant in any one year of op-
tion amounting to 5% or more of option granted during that year;
and

(c) identified employees who were granted option, during any one
year, equal to or exceeding

1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

Refer Note 1 below

NIL

NIL

(vii)

A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair value of options

including the following information:

(a)

weighted-average share price

exercise price

expected volatility

Option life (Comprising vesting period + exercise period) (In Years)
expected dividends,

risk-free interest rate

Rs 1139/-
31.80%

4 years
1.86% (yield)
6.39%

the method used and the assumptions made to incorporate the
effects of expected early exercise;

The options will vest in 2 years after grant and
exercise period is for 2 years from the date of
vesting, hence the average exercise period is
calculated asfollows

Grant .
. Time to
Date/ Vestin Exercise maturity(-
Valuation & period ears;/
date y
Septem- | Septem- | Septem-
ber 01, ber 01, ber 01, 3 years
2017 2019 2020

(c)

how expected volatility was determined, including an explanation
of the extent to which expected volatility was based on historical
volatility; and

CARE Ratings Limited being a listed company, the
annual volatility of the stock price for the period
September 2, 2016 to September 1, 2017 which is
31.80%.

(d)

Whether and how any other features of the option grant were in-
corporated into the measurement of fair value, such as a market
condition.

The methodology followed is Black Scholes model

Note 1

Employee wise details of options granted to Senior Management Personnel (KMP)

Number of options granted

Exercise Price of options Rs.

Name Relareer under ESOS 2013 — Tranche 2 Per share

Rajesh Mokashi * MD & CEO 32538 Rs. 1139/-
T N Arunkumar Executive Director 28185 Rs. 1139/-
Mehul Pandya Executive Director 28185 Rs. 1139/-

*Mr. Rajesh Mokashi was associated with the company till July 17, 2019.
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ANNEXURE-VIII
Management Discussion & Analysis

A. Industry Structure and Developments

Economic Backdrop

FY20 was probably one of the most challenging years in the past decade or so for the entire economy that ended on the note of a
shutdown which affected the yearend plans of all enterprises as the usual business targets which are met towards the end of the
month could not be fulfilled for most of them. GDP growth slowed down to an all-time low of 4.2% which was much below the 6%
plus number projected at the beginning of the year. Lower economic growth has also gone with a major decline in the investment
rate as defined by the gross fixed capital formation rate which was down to 26.9%. Investment was affected by lower private sec-
tor investment as the government remained the most active player in this space. Capacity utilization for the manufacturing sector
was also lower at 68.6% as of the quarter ended December 2019. This was reflective of lower demand conditions in the economy
which pushed back capacity expansion.

Overall level of economic activity is important for us at CARE Ratings as it impacts the credit and debt markets which in turn has
a bearing on our business. Now with the RBI being fairly active in lowering the repo rate and increasing liquidity, one would have
expected the growth in credit to pick up. Yet growth in bank credit was lower in FY20 at 6.8% compared with 12.2% last year. But
for us, the lower growth in credit to manufacturing and services, which are the segments primarily rated by CRAs, impacted our
bank loan business. Banks were more circumspect when it came to lending against the backdrop of the NPA episode following the
AQR. Also, the demand for credit was lower with fewer projects in the infra space.

Interestingly, while the debt market witnessed higher issuances in FY20 at Rs. 6.89 lakh crore as against Rs. 6.46 lakh crore in FY19,
the bulk came from the BFSI sector. Also, the PSU component dominated. Both these factors get linked on our ability to charge
fees which has a bearing on our topline.

Hence, our overall performance on standalone basis has to be viewed against this background. We had to work harder to generate
our revenue in FY20 under these conditions where the overall size of the rateable universe was not growing at an adequate pace.

Impact on our business

The subdued conditions in the debt and credit markets did have an impact on our volume of business. The volume of new debt
rated by us came down from Rs 19.91 lakh crore in FY19 to Rs 12.73 lakh crore in FY20. This was mainly due to a decline in the
volume of new bank loans rated. The volume of debt issuances was also lower this year but given that we had rated substantially
higher volume than the issuances in FY19 (as what is rated is not necessarily issued in the year), the spillover effect was witnessed.

This had an impact on our rating income as the new debt rated volume had come down. Also, the increase in the number of Issuer
Not Cooperating (INC) cases during the year meant that the company did not receive fees for surveillances which had to be done
with the available information for these companies. Therefore, in a way, it was dual challenge for the company as the prevailing
regulatory structure requires credit rating agencies to continue to provide ratings based on best available information in case of
non-cooperation from the client. This may be an issue to contend with progressively even in FY21 where the INC cases could
increase given that the overall economic conditions are likely to be downbeat for the entire year.

Further, on account of the NBFC crisis which started in FY19, several companies which had defaulted had moved out of the surveil-
lance bucket which affected our surveillance income. On our part, we have taken several steps to strengthen our processes and
enhance our market intelligence mechanisms.

Developments on the Regulatory front
The regulators have undertaken various measures to enhance governance standards in CRAs as well as the disclosure norms in
rating press releases. Some of the measures are as follow:

e InJune 2019, SEBI revised the method of computation of cumulative default rates (CDRs) for CRAs, in variance to the earlier
method prevalent from March 2010. As per the new method, CRAs are to calculate CDRs on issuer weighted, marginal default
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rate basis with monthly cohorts. This, we believe, would bring in granularity to the calculation of CDRs. Further, CRAs are to
disclose CDRs in two forms — Long run average of 10 years and short run average of last two years. The regulator has also
introduced Probability of Default (PD) benchmarks, to enable investors discern performance of CRA vis-a-vis the standardized
benchmark.

e Rating symbols for credit enhanced instruments have been changed from Structured Obligation (SO) symbol to Credit
Enhanced (CE). The CE symbol is to be suffixed (instead of SO) to all instruments which are credit enhanced from an external
party. Securitization transactions would continue to carry the SO symbol.

e Interms of disclosures, SEBI has introduced new factors that should form a part of the press release — like rating sensitivities
(to be quantified to the extent possible) and liquidity indicators.

e CRAs have been advised to devise models to track bond spreads.

e Towards enhancing governance norms, SEBI, in November 2019, stipulated the following

e Constitution of a ‘Rating Sub Committee’ of Directors, to whom the Chief Rating officer of a CRA would report. In line
with the above, CARE has constituted the committee and also devised a charter for the committee detailing the duties
and responsibilities of the Sub Committee as well as the CRO.

e One third of the Board of a CRA shall comprise independent Directors, if the Board is chaired by a non-executive
Director. In case the Board of the CRA is chaired by an executive Director, half of the Board shall comprise independent
Directors. The Board of a CRA shall also have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee which shall be chaired by an
independent Director. Being a listed company, CARE Ratings is already in compliance with all of the above.

e CRAs shall meet the audit committee of the rated entity (which carries rating to its listed NCDs), at least once in a year,
to discuss issues including related party transactions, internal financial control and other material disclosures made by
the management, which have a bearing on rating.

e In order to address this critical gap in the availability of information to investors, listed entities (which are equity listed or
have any of their debt securities listed) have been mandated to disclose defaults in their unlisted debt obligations like bank
facilities, albeit after persistent default of 30 days.

e To address the issue of ‘Issuer Non-Cooperating’ (INC) cases, SEBI, in January 2020 mandated that all issuers who are in
investment grade and continue to be in INC status for 6 months as of July 1 2020, would necessarily have to be downgraded
to sub investment grade. Secondly, no new CRA can rate a facility/instrument if the issuer is in INC status with CRAs for 12
months. We believe that this, especially the second move, would act as a deterrent to issuers for failing to cooperate with
CRAs in the rating process and thus, would tend to reduce the INC incidence to an extent.

e These apart, as per SEBI CRA (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, CRAs cannot carry out any activity other than those prescribed
by a financial sector regulator, two years from the date of the above notification (i.e., from May 30 2020). Other activities are
to be segregated to a separate entity from the above date.

e In March 2020, as a reprieve to issuers due to the onset of Covid-19, SEBI relaxed norms with respect to default recognition
and allowed CRAs a differentiation in treatment of default, on a case to case basis to ascertain if such default occurred solely
due to the lockdown or loan moratorium.

B. Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities

Our strategy continues to be in the direction of enhancing the rating business by widening the client base and deepening
relationships. Both of these elements help in enhancing our business field. The number of clients is very important for us because
even if the business procured is of a smaller magnitude, it has the potential to grow in future.

Our conventional businesses covering bank loan and corporate debt would continue to be the focal points and our business teams
are classified into various groups to build relations with clients. We do have plans to further strengthen our presence in three
areas: securitization, structured products and distressed assets. This we believe will offer more avenues for earning revenue in the
coming years and there will be dedicated focus here.

At the same time, going forward, we would like to employ cutting edge technologies in the field of analytics to enhance the efficacy
of the rating determination process, through the use of Artificial Intelligence. We would be building capabilities to enhance fraud
monitoring systems and also explore partnerships in this area.
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For our clients, we would also be offering other services in the fields of customized research, advisory and training through CART,
which has already made inroads in these domains. The regulatory fallout of a rating agency allowed to carry out only ratings would
mean that the grading products would be handled by CART.

We would also be focusing on our other subsidiary CARE Risk Solutions to augment our Group’s business through selling risk
solution products to various lending institutions in India and overseas, as well as build on our valuations business.

Going ahead, all diversification of business activity would be channeled through these two subsidiaries as CARE would be involved
only with credit ratings. Therefore, growing this business will mean even greater concentration of resources and management
time on CART and CRSPL.

Threats
The threats confronting our business have their foundation in such risks and concerns as are discussed in Section “Risks and
Concerns” of this report.

C. Segment-wise or product-wise performance

CARE Ratings

CARE Ratings is the flagship company of CARE ratings Group and was established in 1993. In FY20, in a rather challenging environ-
ment, your Company’s focus was on building the client base and widening the coverage of debt rated in the market. Since incep-
tion, your company has completed a total of 81,874 rating assignments till March 31, 2020. On a cumulative basis, the amount of
debt rated instruments increased to Rs. 141.10 lakh crore as of March 31, 2020. The total number of new rating assignments de-
clined by 43.0% in 2019-20. The moderation can, in large part, be ascribed to the decline in bank facility ratings. The total volume
of new debt rated decreased by 36.0% from Rs. 19.91 lakh crore in 2018-19 to Rs. 12.73 lakh crore in 2019-20, mainly on account
of broad-based decrease in debt rated volume across categories.

CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited
CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited (CART) is a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company which was incorporated on
September 06, 2016. CART is in the business of Advisory, Research and Training.

Advisory division

CART offers services in the field of transaction advisory (Valuation, IM preparation), Banking services support (TEV, LIE, vetting
of resolution plans, Machinery Cost vetting), Corporate Advisory (DPR, Business plan preparation, Financial Improvement Plan,
Financial Appraisal) and Risk Management Services (Risk related policy documents, Credit assessment models).

Research Division
CART services a variety of business needs of its Domestic and Multinational clients with credible, high-quality research and analysis
on various facets of the Economy and Industries.

Training Division
The Company caters to the training needs of corporates and professionals through its training programmes which are offered
through on-line as well class room mode.

CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited (CRSPL)

Our wholly owned subsidiary CARE Risk Solutions Pvt. Ltd (CRSPL) is a leading fin-tech company which provides Risk Management
and financial compliance software solutions for Banking, Financial Services and Insurance (BFSI) sectors with its Enterprise Risk
Management suite (ERM), Asset Liability Management (ALM), Fund Transfer Pricing (FTP), International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) & Financial Reporting Application, Lending suite and Early Warning systems. The focus of the organization is
multi-fold and is directed at innovative disruption and digitization to enable financial institutions meet the compliance norms and
move towards leveraging risk management from a strategic perspective. It involves robust effort on technology R&D and product
compliance to central bank’s regulation across geographies and rapid and timely implementation.

66




e Annual Report 2019-20

CRSPL has the soul of an agile start up and the maturity of an established specialist in creating and delivering advanced technology
solutions for its customers. CRSPL’s exceptional product and immaculate implementation framework has helped them to partner
with the best names in the Financial Technology globally and regionally.

Global ventures

Our global subsidiaries such as CARE Ratings Africa and CARE Ratings Nepal Limited are already in operation and would be gradually
seeking a wider market in ratings and other allied services. We believe that these companies would become progressively larger
in the next few years with their operations becoming scalable. We are also exploring other regions too as part of widening our
presence in the global rating space.

CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited (CRAF)

CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited (CRAF) is the first credit rating agency to be licensed by the Financial Services Commission of
Mauritius from May 7, 2015. It is also recognized by Bank of Mauritius as External Credit Assessment Institution (ECAI) from May
9, 2016. In February 2020, CRAF has received the approval of the Capital Markets Authority of Kenya to operate as a Credit Rating
Agency in Kenya under the Capital Markets Act and the Regulations and Guidelines issued thereunder.

During FY20, the Company has assigned ratings to 28 corporates of Mauritius including renowned Corporates like The Mauritius
Commercial Bank Ltd., Bank One, CIEL, CIM, Leal, Omnicane, Alteo, MUA and ENL. In FY20, CRAF has assigned credit ratings to
bank facilities and bond issue aggregating to around MUR 40.0 billion (MUR 21.0 billion in FY19). There has been an increase in
awareness about the concept of Credit Rating among Banks and Corporates and clear understanding of the benefits from such
Ratings.

CARE Ratings Nepal Ltd. (CRNL)

CRNL is incorporated in Kathmandu, Nepal as a credit rating agency and is licensed by Securities Board of Nepal w.e.f. November
16, 2017. CRNL has done 93 rating assignments in FY20. In short span of time, CRNL has been able to expand its operations and
has added more than 200 clients till March 31, 2020 since inception.

D. Outlook

The outlook for FY21 is likely to be exceptionally challenging as it started with the further continuation of a lockdown which was
almost absolute in April 2020 and was relaxed only partially in some segments and states in May and June 2020. With the services
sector being particularly being affected by social distancing norms, it would take time for most of them to commence even at
minimal capacity utilization rate. Labour problems and logistics issues have further compounded problems for industry. The RBI
has been proactive in further lowering rates and inducing liquidity into the system but the preference of banks has been for higher
rated companies as there is a fairly significant modicum of risk-aversion that is evident.

The government’s economic package which includes loan guarantees bodes well for industry and could be a positive for bank
credit. The same holds for the guarantee being given for NBFC borrowing in the bond market. But with economic growth for FY21
to be negative for sure, investment would drop further and hence buoyancy in the debt and credit markets will be limited and
confined to specific sectors and higher rated companies that have not been adversely affected by the lockdown.

While we do expect the third and fourth quarters to show some signs of recovery in specific sectors like infrastructure and related
industries, a lot depends on how the government pursues the Unlock policy. This would have a bearing on the funds raised in the
system which drives rating business. We would hence be guarded about the overall economic picture for FY21 as we do see neg-
ative economic growth and limited upside to credit growth consequently. The actions of the government and RBI would mitigate
the effects to an extent but the year for the credit rating business will remain challenging.

We are embarking on a multi-pronged approach to expand business at the subsidiaries. We would be offering services in the fields
of customized research and advisory through our subsidiary CART. Our other subsidiary CARE Risk Solutions would augment our
Group’s business through selling risk solution products to various lending institutions in India and overseas.

This year will remain volatile in terms of opening up of the economy to be interspaced with periodic and localized lockdowns

which may also mean disruption in the way we do business including working from home which may be more of a norm than an
exception until a solution to counter the pandemic.
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We do however believe that the strategies that have been outlined will work significantly to de-risk our business and while the
results may not be apparent in the short run will lay the foundation firmly during this period.

It must be mentioned that the Board has appointed Mr. Ajay Mahajan as Managing Director and CEO of our company to steer the
ship through these challenging times. He comes with a wealth of experience in the banking and financial sector and would be
driving the campaign of taking your company to a new level.

E. Risks and Concerns
As a credit rating agency registered with SEBI, CARE Ratings is subject to various types of risks, in its business and operations. The
risk factors may be classified under four headings: operational, business, market and compliance.

Operational Risks

Operational risks encompass people, process, fraud and technology risks. These have all been addressed by your company with

appropriate measures.

e Talent is harnessed with continuous training for upgradation of skills and creation of an empowering environment for every
individual to ensure that we attract and retain talent.

e The Ratings Operations manual provides a rigorous SOP to be adhered to while executing an assignment with periodic audits
to ensure compliance. We have also used the services of an external consultant in this year to make our system even more
robust.

e Our fairly comprehensive code of conduct to address issues of fraud and maintenance of confidentiality is ingrained in every
employee at the time of joining the organization and buttressed through the year in various sessions organized by the senior
Group Heads to drive home these principles.

e CARE has in place a comprehensive IT security policy to address risks involving significant security breaches, breakdowns in
computer systems and network infrastructure. We employ security systems, including firewalls and intrusion detection sys-
tems, conduct periodic penetration testing for identification and assessment of potential vulnerabilities and use encryption
technology for transmitting and storing critical data. We are pleased to inform you that when the nation went for a lockdown,
we were able to work from home with minimal disruption especially to our ratings related work which had to be completed
by March end.

Business Risk

Business risk is in the areas of competition, availability of information, Issuers not cooperating, reputation risk and non-payment
of fees by clients. These have been addressed by working towards creating a niche for ourselves to stay ahead of competition. As
there are a total of 7 rating agencies in the rating space, there are challenges on acquiring and retaining clients as well as being
able to charge the requisite fee. Non-availability of information impacts the quality of our ratings as is the case with the INC rat-
ings where we have to work with minimum information in the public space. Further, non-payment of fees is a challenge for us as
surveillance income is a very important component of our rating income. To address issues on reputation related to our ratings
we have streamlined the process even further to ensure that there is more robustness in our processes and hence ratings. Going
forward, the processes will get augmented with the use of best digital technologies.

Market Intelligence Risk

Market Intelligence risk includes the ability to have superior prognosis in detecting declining ability of companies to service their
debt and sending the signal well in advance. This is something which can also affect the reputation of the firm as any default
especially of a market instrument like a bond can affect the individual investor. We are, therefore, working towards strengthening
our market intelligence systems to ensure that we are ahead of the curve.

Market Risk (Investment)

We also run the risk of our investment portfolio being affected by changes in interest rates as we do have a fairly sizeable invest-
ment portfolio. Here we do have a very conservative investment policy which concentrates more on preserving the shareholders’
assets by balancing risk with returns.

Compliance and Other Related Risks
The compliance and other related risks arise due to the regulatory structure in which we operate. CARE’s software interface maps
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the entire workflow in the rating process, affixing responsibility of various stakeholders and captures timelines of key activities.
The interface also sends out periodic alerts to supervisors on deviations and gives comprehensive MIS reports for monitoring. We
also have an internal audit department to look into on an ongoing basis, compliance of various internal and external guidelines.
Also, the legal risk arising from companies not being satisfied with our ratings is possible and we do try and ensure that all are
processes are robust so that we are ringfenced well in every respect.

Further, there could be a possibility of regulatory actions in the form of adjudication proceedings against CARE on account of any
defaults or sharp rating transitions. In the past, such an action has been initiated against CARE and penalty levied. Such actions
by the regulator can have adverse impact on the company’s performance since it can create negative perception about CARE’s
ratings in the minds of issuers and investors. We are committed towards strengthening our systems and processes continuously
in tune with market requirements and our own studies to critically study past instances and identify root causes of sharp rating
transitions.

It may also be noted that a major portion of CARE’s ratings business is driven by regulatory requirements or requires accreditation,
recognition or approval from government authorities. CARE is recognized by RBI as an eligible credit rating agency for Basel Il im-
plementation in India; and commercial paper is mandatorily rated in India. In the event that there are changes to these regulations
or norms, there may be a decrease in the demand for ratings. Implementation of the Internal Rating Based (IRB) approach by RBI
may make rating non-mandatory by those banks for whom IRB approach is approved by RBI.

During the year, we had appointed external consultants for suggesting improvements to our processes and systems with a view to
modernizing the same. During the year, the rating process was also strengthened with sectoral committees and enhanced trans-
parency aided by technology.

Governance and oversight

Your company has a revamped Board of Directors with majority of independent Directors who bring with them rich experience
in finance, economics, regulatory affairs and insurance industry. This ensures the provision of cutting-edge guidance to the
management to take some innovative decisions.

F. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

CARE has implemented an internal control framework to ensure all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from un-
authorized use or disposition, and transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The framework includes internal
controls over financial reporting, which ensures the integrity of financial statements of the company and reduces the possibility
of frauds.

The Internal Audit and Criteria Team issues well documented operating procedures and authorizations with adequate built-in
controls. These are carried out at the beginning of any activity and all through the process, to keep track of any major changes. As
part of the audits, they also review the design of key processes, from the point of view of adequacy of controls.

Company'’s statutory auditors have audited the financial statements and issued a report on your Company'’s internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’). The said report is annexed to the independent
auditor’s report.

G. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

Our performance in Financial Year 2019-20

Total income on a standalone basis for the year ended March 31, 2020, was at Rs.250.44 crore, compared with Rs.327.19 crore for
the year ended March 2019. PAT for the year was at Rs. 80.50 crore, compared with Rs.134.99 crore in the corresponding previous
year.

The volume of debt rated decreased by 36.1% from Rs. 19.91 lakh crore in 2018-19 to Rs. 12.73 lakh crore in 2019-20. During the
year, your company rated 5,343 instruments. The decline in the volume of debt rated was on account of decrease of 51.1% in the
bank loan rating and long-term instruments by 22.1% compared with that in the previous year. The BFSI sector was dominant in
debt issuances as were PSUs in terms of ownership. Being large borrowers in the market, the fees charged is not proportional to
the rated amounts.
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Operating performance
CARE Group’s operating performance at the end of the year were as follows:

Group Operating Performance (Rupees in Crore)

Details At March 31, 2020 | At March 31, 2019 Growth %
Income
Revenue from operations 243.64 318.97 -23.6
Other Income 31.47 30.39 3.6
(A) Total 275.11 349.36 -21.3
Expenses
Employee Cost 109.27 102.81 6.3
Depreciation & Amortization 7.77 3.33 1333
Finance Cost 0.93 -
Other Expenses 53.05 41.50 27.8
(B) Total Expenses 171.02 147.63 15.8
Profit Before Tax (A-B) 104.09 201.73 -48.4
Tax Expenses 20.61 63.66 -67.6
Profit After Tax 83.48 138.07 -39.5

For the group as a whole, the total income came down by 21.3% from Rs 349.36 crore in FY19 to Rs 275.11 crore in FY20. The

share of CARE Ratings in the Group’s total income is around 90%. As can be seen in the table above, the decline in total income on

a consolidated basis was due to a decline in revenue from operations by 23.6%. Total expenses increased by 15.8% mainly due to

1. Increase in employee cost by 13% which was offset by savings on ESOP cost by Rs. 7.39 Crores leading to net increase in
employee cost by 6.3% during FY20.

2. Increase in ‘Other expenses’ by 27.8% in FY20 due to one-time expenses incurred on forensic audit and consultants engaged
for process improvement assignments.

With total expenses increasing and total income coming down, profits before tax declined by 48.4% and PAT by 39.5%.

The table below gives some important ratios for the CARE Group of companies.
Important ratios: Group Companies

Ratios FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Debtors Turnover 5.96 6.75
Current Ratio 4.95 5.71
Operating Profit Margin (%) 29.8% 53.7%
PAT Margin (%) 30.3% 39.5%
Return on Net worth (%) 15.4% 25.0%

Due to the decline in profits, the profitability ratios have been affected as can be seen in the table above where Operating Profit
Margin, PAT margin and RoNW have declined in FY20. PAT margin stood at 30.3% (39.5% last year) and return on net worth was
15.4% (25.0% last year).

Property, Plant, Equipment
Group’s Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible assets at the end of the last two years were as follows:
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e Annual Report 2019-20

Particulars 2020 2019 Growth %

Property, plant, equipment etc. 109.40 92.32 19
Less accumulated depreciation 15.77 9.22 71
Net Block 93.63 83.10 13
Depreciation as % Total income 3 1 196
Accumulated depreciation as % gross block 14 10 44

There was a 18.5% increase in property, plant and equipment mainly due to IND-AS 116 impact for right to use assets.

Investments
The Group’s investment and treasury position as of the end of the year and comparable figures for previous year is presented
below.
Group Investments as of March 31 (Rs. Crore)
Particulars 2020 2019 Growth %
Non-Current Investments
Investments in Equity instruments (Unquoted) 13.80 13.66 1.0
Investment in Mutual Funds & Others (Quoted) 212.30 235.81 -10.0
(A) Total 226.10 249.47 -9.4
Current Investments & Treasury
Investment in Mutual Funds & Others (Quoted) 112.85 189.19 -40.4
Cash and Bank Balances 6.99 19.82 -64.7
Fixed Deposits 107.28 10.02 1051.76
(B) Total 227.13 219.03 3.7
Grand Total (A) + (B) 453.23 468.50 -3.3

Overall, there was a minor decline in total investments from Rs 468.50 crore as on March 31, 2019 to Rs 453.23 crore as on March
31, 2020. There was a decline in non-current investments by 9.4% while current investments and treasury increased by 3.7%.
Within non-current investments, there was a decline in investment in mutual funds and others from Rs.235.81 crore to Rs.212.30
crore. Within current investments, there was a decline of 40.4% in investments in mutual funds & others (by Rs 76.34 crore) and

an increase in fixed deposits by Rs 97.26 crore.

Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables are presented below.

Group’s Trade Receivables as of March 31 (Rs. Crore)

Particulars 2020 2019 Growth %
Ratings & other services (Net) 36.02 43.14 -16.5
Non-Ratings 4.87 4.12 18.2
Total 40.89 47.26 -13.4

There was a decline in receivables on ratings business by Rs 7.12 crore while those on non-ratings increased marginally by Rs 0.75

crore. Reduction in trade receivable is due to consistent efforts for recovery through the year.
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H. Material Development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed.

The level of analytical expertise has a bearing on the quality of the ratings assigned by a credit rating agency wherein human
resources play an important role in the business. We have always believed in picking up the right talent to ensure that the right
skills and competencies are available for executing the business objectives and encouraging them to think independently while
working in teams in order to enhance the quality of rating. We further enrich their talents by way of conducting induction and
training programmes which are conducted by experts in the field. In addition, systematic training programs have been conducted
to build and enhance key functional and behavioural competencies for both new recruits and existing employees.

As on March 31, 2020, we had 646 employees (PY.:633). Around 90% of the staff is professionally qualified in the areas of man-
agement, CA, CS, legal, economics, engineering etc. holding professional or post graduate degrees.
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ANNEXURE-IX

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

1oday ,s10308.110

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial
year 2019-20, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for the financial year 2019-20 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the

performance of the Company are as under:

Remuneration Remuneration e Ratio of Remu-
of Director / of Director . 4 neration of each
Sr. , , X KMP for finan- / KMP for (decrease) n Director
Name of the Director / KMP & Designation . . . Remuneration .
No. cial year 2019- | financial year . . . / to median re-
in the financial .
20 2018-19 ear 2019-20 muneration of
(Amt in Rs.) (Amt in Rs.) 4 employees
Mr. S. B. Mainak,
1. | Chairman & Independent Director 19,50,000 23,00,000 (15.22%) 2.45:1
(upto February 11, 2020)
0,
o | Mr Adesh Kumar Gupta 22,50,000 13,50,000 66.67% 2.83:1
Independent Director
Mr. Najib Shah
3. Independent Director 12,00,000 - N.A. 1.51:1
(w.e.f. July 17, 2019)
Dr. M Mathisekaran
4, Independent Director 9,00,000 - N.A. 1.13:1
(w.e.f. August 19,2019)
Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan
5. Independent Director 12,00,000 - N.A. 1.51:1
(w.e.f. August 19, 2019)
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai
6. Independent Director 20,00,000 - N.A. 2.51:1
(w.e.f. March 30, 2019)
Mrs. Sadhana Dhamane,
7. Non-Executive Director 8,00,000 18,00,000 (55.56%) 1:1
(upto August 06, 2019)
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran,
8. Non-Executive Director 20,50,000 12,00,000 70.83% 2,57:1
(w.e.f. November 15, 2017)
Mr. Rajesh Mokashi,
9. | Managing Director & CEO 1,11,27,817 2,79,25,430 (60.15%) 13.98:1
(upto July 17, 2019)
0,
10, | M T.N. Arun Kumar, 1,01,89,724 | 1,053,503 (3.08%) 12.80:1
Executive Director
11, | Mr. Mehul Pandya, 97,77,312 93,29,511 4.80% 12.28:1
Executive Director
Mr. Navin Kumar Jain
12. | Executive Director & Company Secretary 74,99,089 8,57,181 774.85% 9.42:1
(w.e.f. Feb 12, 2019)
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Mr. Bharat Assudomal Adnani
13. | Chief Financial Officer 27,89,216 - N.A. 3.50:1
(w.e.f. August 19, 2019)

Mr. Nitinkumar Agrawal,
14. | Chief Financial Officer 13,59,861 11,92,032 14.08% 1.72:1
(Upto July 18, 2019)

2. The remuneration to Non-Executive & the Independent Directors is sitting fees paid to them for attending the Board and the
Committee meetings in the financial year 2019-20. The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive and the Independent Directors
were Rs. 1,00,000/- for attending each Board meeting and Rs. 50,000 for attending each Committee Meeting.

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2019-20 was Rs. 7,96,000/-

There were 646 employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2020

Increment/revision yet to be decided for the FY 2019-20

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.

oukw
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ANNEXURE - X

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Pursuant to regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (amended from time to time)

INTRODUCTION

We, CARE Ratings Limited entrust our people with responsibility and freedom to operate, and empower them by creating an
environment that is conducive to performance, thus motivating them to perform better each year. We have a strong record of
shareholder value creation through regular dividends. As one of the pioneers of credit rating in Indian market, we are responsible

for several rating innovations for our customers.

This Business Responsibility Report articulates our activities based on the nine-principle framework of National Voluntary
Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business. The policy and practice under each principle
is explained in subsequent paragraphs with correlation to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) reporting format,

appended at the end of the Report.

Section A: General Information about the Company

1. | Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L67190MH1993PLC071691
2. | Name of the Company CARE Ratings Limited
. . 4™ Floor, Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital Road,
3. | Registered Office Address Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion East, Mumbai - 400022
4. | Website www.careratings.com
Email id Investor.relations@careratings.com
Financial Year reported 2019-20
4 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (Code - 66190 - Financial Services other than securities dealing
" | Wise) activities
Ratings: Providing credit ratings including Debt ratings, Bank
8 List three key products/services that the Company Is.zf\zcz:tlngs, Recovery ratings, SME ratings, other grading
manufactures / provides (as in balance sheet) Information services Economic and Industrial Research (avail-
able to all on website)
Total number of locations where business activity is The Company currently operates with 10 branches across
undertaken by the Company:- all over India. Further, the Company is having a subsidiary
company in Mauritius and Nepal. One each wholly owned
9. subsidiaries in Mumbai & Navi Mumbai.
Number of International Locations 2 (Subsidiary Companies)
Number of National Locations 10 (Branches)
10 Market Served by the Company — Local/State/ Domestic : India
National / International International : Mauritius and Nepal
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Section B: Financial Details of the Company

1. Paid up Capital: Rs. 29.46 crore.

2 Total Turnover (Rs): Rs. 219.10 crore.

3. Total Profit after taxes (FY19) (Rs): Rs. 80.50 core.

4 Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR] The Company has spent Rs.5.27 crore — 135.82% of the
as percentage of average Net Profit of the company for prescribed CSR expenditure of Rs.3.88 crore (being the
last 3 financial years: 2% of the average net profit of the Company for the last

three years as mandated in the Companies Act, 2013.)

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been As per Annexure VI forming part of Directors Report
incurred:-

Section C: Other Details

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Com- Yes. The Company has 4 subsidiaries:
pany/ Companies? CARE Risk Solutions Private Ltd

CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited
CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited
CARE Ratings Nepal Limited

2. Subsidiaries  participating in Company’s Nil
Business Responsibility (BR) Initiatives

3. Other entities ((e.g. Suppliers, distributors Nil
etc.) participating in Company’s BR initiatives

Section D: Other Details

1. Director responsible for implementation of BR policies -
Director Identification Number (DIN) 05108777
Name Ajay Mahajan
Designation Managing Director and CEO
2. (a) Details of BR Head No director has yet been nominated.

DIN Number (if applicable)
Name

Designation

Telephone number

Email id

Mehul Pandya

Executive Director

022 - 67543456
mehul.pandya@careratings.com
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Section D (2) : BR Information

Principle - wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/ Policies (YES / NO)

No. | Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 Do you have a policy/policies for | Y Y
Business Responsibility

2 Has the policy being formulated
in consultation with the relevant | Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y
stakeholders?

3. Does the policy conform to any | The policies of the Company are developed and aligned to applicable legal require-
national / international stan-| ments, guidelines and the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
dards? If yes, specify? (50 words) | Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to time). CARE has aligned

its code of conduct with ‘Code of Conduct Fundamentals for credit rating agencies’
(the ‘10SCO Code’) issued by the International Organization of Securities Commissions
(10SCO), as amended upto July 2018. These are available at http://www.careratings.
com/pdf/aboutus/I0SCOCode-24Jul18.pdf

4 Has the policy being approved by | Ap- Ap- Ap- Ap- Ap- Ap- - Ap- Ap-
the Board? proved at | proved proved proved | proved proved proved | proved

desired at at at de- at de- at de- at de- at
. X level as desired | desired | sired sired sired sired desired
If yes, has it been signed by MD/ required | level levelas | levelas | levelas | level as level as | level as
owner /CEOQ/ appropriate Board by law as required | re- required | re- re- required
Director? required | by law quired | by law quired quired | by law
by law by law by law by law

5 Does the company have a
specified committee of the
Board/ Director/ official to|Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y
oversee the implementation of
the policy?

6 Indicate the link for the policy to | The following policies are available on the Company’s website www.careratings.com
be viewed online? 1. CARE’s Code of Conduct for Directors, Rating Committee Members and Employees

of CARE.
(http://www.careratings.com/about-us.aspx#CodeOfConduct)

2. Whistle Blower Policy
(http://www.careratings.com/pdf/investor/WhistleBlowerPolicy-2019.pdf)

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
(http://www.careratings.com/pdf/investor/CSR-Policy-on-website.pdf)

4. Gift policy
(http://www.careratings.com/pdf/resources/CARE’sGiftPolicy27June2017.pdf)

7 Has the policy been formally

communicated to all relevant
internal and external
stakeholders?
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8 Does the Company have in -
house structure to implement |Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y
the policy/ policies.

9 Does the Company have a
grievance redressal mecha-
nism related to the policy/ pol-
icies to address stakeholders’
grievances related to the poli-
cy/ policies?

10 | Has the company carried out | The Head of Departments are responsible for the effective implementation of the
independent audit / evaluation | policies. The Compliance Department monitors the adherence to the implementation
of the working of this policy by | of these policies as mandated by the respective Regulators.

an internal or external agency?

If answer to S.No.1 against any principle, is “No” please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options):

No. | Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1 The company has not understood the

Principles -- -- - - - - -- -- -
2 The company is not at a stage where it finds

itself in a position to formulate and implement | -- -- -- -- -- -- - - --
the policies on specified principles

3 The company does not have financial or man- | -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
power resources available for the task

4 It is planned to be done within next 6 months | -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
It is planned to be done within the next 1 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
year

6 Any other reason (please specify) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

# Principle — wise policies

P1 | Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

P2 | Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.

P3 | Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disad-

P4 .
vantaged, vulnerable and marginalised.

P5 | Businesses should respect and promote human rights

P6 | Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

P7 | Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

P8 | Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

P9 | Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner
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Section D (3) : BR Governance

a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of | The policies are reviewed by the Board once in a year and as and
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to as- | when the changes are made in these policies, the same are placed
sess the BR performance of the Company. Within | before the Board.

3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year
b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability | Business Responsibility Report forms part of the Annual Report

Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this re-

port? How frequently it is published?

which is published every year and also uploaded on the website of
the Company www.careratings.com.

Section E: Principle - wise Performance

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery
and corruption cover only the company?
Yes/ No.

Does it extend to the Group/Joint
Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/ NGOs/
Others?

Yes, the Company has a Code of Conduct (Code of Ethics) for Directors
and Senior Management. Further, the Company has a Code of Conduct for
Directors and Employees of CARE. This Code of Conduct is circulated to all the
employees at the beginning of the financial year and to the new employees at
the time of their induction. Each individual employee and Director is required
to confirm his/ her acceptance of the Code of Conduct. Further, the Company
has a Whistle Blower Policy which establishes the necessary mechanism for
employees to report to the management concerns about unethical behavior
or actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or
ethics policy. We also have a gift policy which details the circumstances under
which gifts can be accepted and also a monetary ceiling has been stipulated.
The Company has many Channels of communications, including grievance
redressal mechanisms, for stakeholders to communicate their expectations
and concerns.

Yes, it applicable to subsidiaries.

How many stakeholder complaints have
been received in the past financial year
and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management? If so,
provide details thereof, in about 50
words or so.

CARE has formulated the Whistle Blower Policy, with a view to establishing
a vigil mechanism whereby all the stakeholders, directors and employees,
are encouraged to report illegal, unethical or improper activities through
established channels, enabling an ethical and corruption free work
environment and also safeguarding stakeholders, directors and employees
against victimisation.

In the financial year 2019-2020, 102 complaints with respect to Non-receipt
of Annual Report and Dividend were received by the company and the same
were satisfactorily (100%) resolved by the management.
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Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life
cycle

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.
CARE Ratings is a credit rating agency being in the services sector where business operations take place in office space and
is not directly involved with the environment. However, as we are very cognizant of the environment there are specialized
products that we deal with which evaluate how companies deal with it. Also we do look at the impact companies have on
environment when do our ratings assignments.

We do have various grading products that are directed to improvement of the environment. These are:

ESCO grading specializes in energy audits and implementation of energy efficiency practices in a particular organization.
Under Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) platform CARE Ratings carries out assessment of Energy Service Companies (ESCO)
ESCOs are the entities which by way of engaging in a performance based contract with a client firm to implement energy
conservation measures and costs in a technically and financially viable manner.

CARE Ratings also carries out the Accreditation/Grading exercise for Renewable Energy Service Companies (RESCOs) and
System Integrators (Sl).

On the social front CARE Ratings has dedicated teams for rating infrastructure projects which have social implications. Two
special products which need mention are:

e  Expected Loss ratings which has been developed in consultation with the Ministry of Finance and provides an addition-
al input of recovery prospects to assess expected loss.

e Infrastructure investment trusts (InvITs) which involves rating of debt of these trusts including partial guarantees struc-
tures.

Outside the business frontier, a social good provided by the company is high quality incisive research in economics and
industry to the general public. This can be used for information purposes as well as for taking business decisions by the
consumers. Also the functions organized on various subjects relating to ratings and the debt market is complimentary as
the objective is to spread awareness.

Further, being in the business of credit rating, the Company has launched all its products taking into consideration the SEBI
guidelines. The Company while assigning its ratings does take into consideration any stricture passed by any Government
agency such as pollution control board etc. to the extent it may affect the client company’s business. The details of the new
product and its rationale are submitted to SEBI before its launch. Further, the Company has a Corporate Social Responsibil-
ity Policy as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per unit
of product(optional):
Reduction during sourcing / production / distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value chain?
— Not applicable

b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?
— Not applicable

3. Does the company have procedures in place for Sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?
a) If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
CARE Ratings, being a credit rating agency belongs to services sector and therefore, is relatively less resource intensive in
terms of material requirements. Typically the consumables are office stationery, IT-related material, etc. However, despite
the volume consumed, the strategy has been localised sourcing, a practise which is followed by every regional office so as
to avoid unnecessary transportation and creation of carbon footprint.
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As an organization we do work towards less use of paper in the company keeping in mind the environment. All rating notes
are circulated by email and use of paper is minimized. Also all rating meetings are held across the country through video
conferencing which helps to save on travel costs and reduces environmental degradation to this extent.

4. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities
surrounding their place of work?
If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?
To the extent we print business material; we do use the services of SME level printers in relevant locations. In this way we
have helped the small enterprises to grow their business. Also to the extent that we procure material for our functions, we
do tend to rely on local vendors which helps sustain relevant communities. Prompt and timely payment is ensured while
doing any business with them.

5. Doesthe company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products
and waste (separately as 10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
Given the nature of our business, we do not have any recyclable waste as the only waste is the regular disposal of garbage.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

Employees are the main asset of the company as the business of credit rating is based on knowledge which is manifested in the
skills of the employees. CARE Ratings hires its staff at both the entry level as well as laterally based on requirement and merit.
As the focus is on merit the company is agnostic to the background and hence is an equal opportunity employer for potential
candidates. Once recruited the employees are put through internal training and given a very good open learning environment
which helps in personal development. Higher levels of responsibility are allocated to the deserving employees while a career
path is chalked out for everyone. When required, lateral recruitment takes place so that there is continuity and there is never a
shortfall of leadership at various levels.

Besides a competitive remuneration the company offers several employee engagement activities which fosters team building.
Celebrating functions, giving gifts on birthdays, gift cards for festivals, organizing games etc. are all part of this process. The
company also offers a flexible work from home policy for those who require such a facility.

1. Please indicate the Total number of employees as on 31.03.2020
646

2. Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary basis / Contractual / casual basis as on 31.03.2020
222 Contractual Employees

3. Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees as on 31.03.2020
219

4. Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities.
There are no employees with disabilities.

5. Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management
The Company does not have any employee association. All the grievances of employees are resolved directly with the
concerned departments.

6. What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee Association?
Not Applicable

7. Please indicate the Number of Complaints relating to Child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment

in the last financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year
No complaints related to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment were received during the year.
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8. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill upgradation training in the last year?
Safety training for contingencies like fire has been carried out for the employees. Skill upgradation is an ongoing process
and given the niche business we are in, there is on the job training and several lecture sessions given on various subjects
by senior analysts.

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?

Yes, the company has mapped both the internal and external stakeholders. These are shareholders, clients, employees,
regulators and society at large.

The company is constantly in touch with shareholders and potential investors apprising them of the developments on the
business front. We attend several investors’ conferences and address queries of investors and the MD & CEO represents
the company in most of these gatherings. All investor grievances are attended to immediately. CARE also has provided
the email id on which the stakeholders can send their queries or grievances. These mails are discussed by the executives
responsible and are replied accordingly.

Clients are provided high quality service and provided with information intense research on the economy and industries
as a value added service.

Employees are engaged in different activities to make the working environment more agreeable. Town hall sessions are
also held with employees to get a feedback on how to make CARE a good place to work for.

The company is in constant touch with the regulators appraising them on developments in the rating business.

Our information sharing exercise in the form of economics and industry research is available to everyone on the web site.
This is used by business and student community extensively. Also our outreach programmes in the form of awareness
sessions especially for SMEs is an ongoing process to reach out to this community which is at the core of all government
programmes. The company participates as knowledge partners in several conferences on debt markets and specific
industries like steel, roads, commodities etc. conducted by industry associations like ASSOCHAM, PHDCCI etc.

Our spread of financial literacy through training programmes in the field of credit risk management is a step in this direction
which is undertaken by our subsidiary CART.

2. Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized Stakeholders

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy as this principle enunciates the aspect of being responsive
towards all stakeholders especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized. We have provided funds
for scholarship and infrastructure improvement to trusts who are involved in benefit of under previlaged children.
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Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

At the professional level, we also provide ratings for SMEs which are the disadvantaged business group when it comes
to sourcing credit from the financial system. Such ratings do help in their development, there are special teams which
are tuned to working towards understanding their requirements and addressing them. We believe that helping the SMEs
with customized products will help them to join the mainstream as they grow in size, which is also the objective of the
government which has focused on this segment.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human right

1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Groups / Joint Ventures /
Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

Yes, the Company’s policy on Corporate Social Responsibility which incorporates human rights thought process is
directed to identify areas where the Company can contribute to benefit the society. Further, the Company has a grievance
redress mechanism in place where any stakeholder can send an email to ‘investor.relations@careratings.com’ with their
query or grievance which are responded to promptly. The report is further put up to the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of the Company. These principles and policy holds for all group companies too.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

The details of the complaints received during the year are mentioned in Principle 1.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

1

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers /
Contractors /NGOs/ others.

CARE Ratings is committed to comply with all applicable environmental, health and safety laws and regulations prevailing
in the country.

Considering the nature of business, this principle has limited applicability to the Company. As part of our Code of
Conduct (Code of Ethics) for Directors and Senior Management, the Company encourages the protection and proper use
of its assets. Further, the Company complies with applicable environmental regulations in respect of its premises and
operations.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global
warming, etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Yes. The Company is consciously striving to be responsible in terms of its actions/ operations and its impact on the
environment.

CARE has taken certain initiatives to create constant awareness about conservation of resources such as paper, water,
electricity etc. In all our offices posters carrying meaningful messages have been placed. The idea is to continually
rein- force these messages so as not to lose its impact and awareness in the minds of the audience just like any other
advertising or promotional campaign. Encouraging efficient usage of resources by conserving paper, electricity and water
and avoiding /preventing pollution is most important for sustainability of the environment.

In all our offices, in order to reduce paper usage a lot of processes involving manual documentation across different
organisational functions have been moved on to the IT platforms. The key members of the analytical and business teams,
who historically used to print notes and circulate hugely aided in reducing paper footprints by obviating the need of
printing.

1oday ,s10308.110



CARE Ratings Limited e

3. Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N
Not applicable as we are in service sector.

4. Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in about
50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?
Not applicable.

5. Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on — clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. Y/N.
If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

Not applicable.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial
year being reported?
Not applicable

Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 7. satisfaction) as
on end of Financial Year.

Nil

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

The interactions with external agencies by CARE Ratings are with the sole purpose of developing the credit rating market
which involves both the corporate debt market and bank loan market. This, it is believed will help in the development of
the financial sector that will in turn work towards improving the growth prospects of the economy.

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:
Yes. Association of Credit Rating Agencies in Asia (ACRAA) and Confederation of Indian Industries (Cll) etc.

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/
No;
if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development
Policies, Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

The Company does not take part in lobbying for pecuniary gains.

Participation in ACRAA involves working with other rating agencies in Asia to exchange views on rating and methodologies.
The idea is to learn about the global best practices in rating and assessing changing trends.

CARE Ratings regularly engages with the regulators and participates in regular dialogues which them to promote enhanced
standards for rating agencies.

The company is working with the regulators to develop the debt market and brings out studies, papers and holds seminars
for the same to educate the participants and spread knowledge.
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Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

Does the company have specified programmes / initiatives/ projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If yes
details thereof.

SMEs and Microfinance Institutions (MFI) are an integral part of the inclusive growth paradigm and CARE Ratings is actively
involved in addressing the requirements of this constituency. There are special products customized to the requirements of
SMEs/MFI’s which will assist them to procure finance. Also ratings for these enterprises are useful for bringing about self-
improvement which is what is critical in addressing their structures.

Besides, the Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which guides all the CSR activities and includes all the
activities which the Company can undertake with regard to social and economic development.

Financial literacy is propagated through extensive training programmes in credit risk management by the subsidiary CART.
Also continuous flow of research to the community helps business take decisions which in turn bring about growth.

Are the programmes / projects undertaken through in- house team / own foundation / external NGO / government
structures/ any other organization?

The SME and MFI rating business is handled by separate divisions within the company. The dedicated set of professionals
is located across the country and is in regular correspondence with the SME//MFI community. They organize workshops,
awareness programmes and provide all the research inputs including newsletters from the in-house research teams to these
units.

For the CSR activity, there is a special team handling the planning and implementation of various schemes.

Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
For the SME business there are regular performance parameters which are monitored on a periodic basis. For the CSR activity
the provision of facilities has been targeted and end use is monitored by the team.

What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the

projects undertaken.
We have a separate SME division which works closely with SMEs.

The CSR allocations are already covered in detail as Annexure IV to the Directors Report

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community?
Given the nature of our business, educating the SME is a constant endeavour and the ideology is to have a constant dialogue
with them so that they would start getting rated which will help them to manage their finances better.

Amongst the CSR initiatives being conceived are those which are broadly measureable.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

Our business enables companies to raise funds in the market, investors to choose their financial options of investment and
banks their capital requirements. Customers see value in the ratings and this is the raison d’étre of our business. We are
therefore constantly in the process of engagement with this spectrum of customers which form the core of our business.

What percentage of customer complaints / consumer cases is pending as on the end of financial year
NIL

Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws?
The Company complies with all disclosures requirements for its product and services and the web site www.careratings.com
is a reservoir of such information and knowledge.
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The Criteria and methodology used to assign ratings are available on the website in great detail for each and every product.

Each press release also specifies applicable list of criteria for rating. The rationale provided explains the reason for the rating.
All changes in ratings are clearly spelt out in the relevant section.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising
and/ or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

No, the company has not received any case filed by any stakeholder against the company for unfair trade practices,
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year.

Did your company carry out any consumer survey/consumer satisfaction trends?
Yes. The company seeks feedback from its clients on a regular basis.

Detailed surveys are carried out periodically in this context so that it provides inputs to the management to focus on areas
where improvement is required.
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ANNEXURE-XI

(Pursuant to first provisio to sub- section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Statement

containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A” : Subsidiaries

Name of the Subsidiary

CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

Reporting period

April to March

As on March 31, 2020

As on March 31, 2019

Share Capital 8,01,35,000 8,01,35,000
Other Equity -5,90,93,594 -6,11,78,006
Total Assets (Non-Current Assets + Current Assets) 20,01,29,860 13,36,26,178

Total Liabilities (Non-Current Liabilities + Current Liabilities)

17,90,88,131

11,46,69,184

Details of Investments (excluding investments in subsidiary
company)

5,14,926

Revenue from Operations

15,53,07,902

15,49,10,967

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 40,90,219 1,51,72,845
Tax Expenses (Deferred Tax) 10,40,657 22,08,737
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 30,49,562 1,29,64,108
Proposed / Interim Dividend (including Dividend Tax) - -
% of shareholding 100% 100%

Name of the Subsidiary

CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited

Reporting period

April to March

As on March 31, 2020

As on March 31, 2019

Share Capital 2,63,01,565 2,64,18,912
Reserves and Surplus 1,52,48,223 (1,41,127)
Total Assets (Non-Current Assets + Current Assets) 5,50,86,869 2,73,20,314
Total Liabilities (Non-Current Liabilities + Current Liabilities) 1,35,37,080 10,42,529

Details of Investments (excluding investments in subsidiary
company)

Revenue from Operations 3,71,94,593 2,28,00,859
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1,91,03,034 1,13,17,224
Tax Expenses (Deferred Tax) 25,20,291 -

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

1,65,82,743

1,13,17,224

Proposed / Interim Dividend (including Dividend Tax)

% of shareholding

78%

78%
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3. | Name of the Subsidiary CARE Advisory Research And Training Limited

Reporting period April to March
As on March 31, 2020 As on March 31, 2019

Share Capital 4,09,54,500 4,09,54,500
Other Equity 1,75,71,310 1,75,49,594
Total Assets (Non-Current Assets + Current Assets) 6,62,40,212 6,50,54,512
Total Liabilities (Non-Current Liabilities + Current Liabilities) 77,14,324 65,50,418
CD(;ert:Ki)lasnyc;f Investments (excluding investments in subsidiary 4,99,62,203 531,08,351
Revenue from Operations 3,28,61,996 3,23,96,045
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 73,689 1,02,00,051
Tax Expenses including Deferred Tax 52,737 20,880,474
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 20,953 81,19,576
Proposed / Interim Dividend (including Dividend Tax) - -
% of shareholding 100% 100%

4. | Name of the Subsidiary CARE Ratings Nepal Limited

Reporting period

April to March

As on March 31, 2020

As on March 31, 2019

Share Capital 3,12,50,000 3,12,50,000
Other Equity 1,35,65,920 49,47,682
Total Assets (Non-Current Assets + Current Assets) 7,73,52,949 5,47,12,238

Total Liabilities (Non-Current Liabilities + Current Liabilities)

3,24,23,869

1,85,14,556

Details of Investments (excluding investments in subsidiary
company)

Revenue from Operations 3,20,31,719 1,53,54,406
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2,02,62,915 88,00,714
Tax Expenses including Deferred Tax 50,65,729 17,29,762
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 1,51,97,187 70,70,952
Proposed / Interim Dividend (including Dividend Tax) 65,78,948 -
% of shareholding 51% 51%

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of the Associate: Not applicable

1.
2.

hw

Latest Audited Balance Sheet

and the extent of Holding %
Description of how there is significant influence
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet Profit/Loss for the year

(Statement pursuant to first proviso to section 129 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end Amount of Investment in Associate/ Joint Venture
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company'’s philosophy on corporate governance

Corporate governance is about maximizing shareholders value legally, ethically and on a sustainable basis. At CARE Ratings
Limited, the goal of corporate governance is to ensure fairness for every stakeholder i.e. our customers, investors, employees,
vendor-partners, the community, and the government. We believe that sound corporate governance is critical in enhancing and
retaining investor trust. It is a reflection of our culture, our policies, our relationship with stakeholders and our commitment to
values. Accordingly, we always seek to ensure that our performance is driven by integrity.

Good governance encompasses conduct of the Company’s business in an ethical, transparent, fair and equitable manner with
due regard to the interests of the various stakeholders, and exercising proper control over the Company’s assets and transactions.

The Company seeks to adopt good corporate governance practices and to ensure compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.
The Company conducts its activities in a manner that is fair and transparent and also perceived to be such by others.

Recognizing the need to incorporate the best practices being followed in the corporate space, a CARE ‘BOARD CHARTER’ has been
adopted by the Board of Directors. The Board Charter spells out the membership/composition/term of the Board, rights and
obligations of the Board, the various committees of the Board, role of chairman and office, meetings of the Board, etc.

Board of Directors (BOD) of ‘CARE’ has the obligations for the stewardship of the Company. Accordingly, the BOD shall be
responsible for the overall direction, supervision and control of CARE.

The Company has executed Uniform Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

A report on compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as on March 31, 2020 as prescribed by Regulation 34 (3) read
with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(Listing Regulations) as amended from time to time with the stock exchanges is given below:

1. Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors of your Company are expected to possess the required expertise, skill and experience to
effectively manage and direct your Company so that it can attain its organizational goals. They are expected to be persons with
vision, leadership qualities, a strategic bent of mind, proven competence and integrity.

Each member of the Board of Directors of your Company is expected to ensure that his/her personal interest does not run in
conflict with your Company’s interest. Moreover, each member is expected to use his/her professional judgment to maintain both
the substance and appearance of independence and objectivity.

1.1. Composition, category of directors and other directorship details as on March 31, 2020 are as follows:

As on March 31, 2020, in compliance of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Board has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Board has Six (6)
Directors, of whom Five (5) are Independent Directors, One (1) of them is Non- Executive Directors. The Board has one woman
director and more than one third of the Board consists of Independent Directors of the total number of Directors.

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience which enables the Board
to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business.

All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), rules
made therein and Listing Regulations. The terms and conditions of their appointment are disclosed on the Company’s website.

The Board has constituted various Committees with an optimum representation of its members and has assigned them specific
terms of reference in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. These Committees meet at such fre-
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quency as is deemed necessary, to effectively undertake and deliver upon the responsibilities and tasks assigned to them. The
Company currently has Six (6) Committees of the Board viz., (i) Audit Committee (ii) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (iii)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (iv) Risk Management Committee (v) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (vi)
Rating Sub Committee.

None of the Directors is a member of more than Ten (10) Board-level committees or Chairman of more than Five (5) such com-
mittees (Committees includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee) as required under Regulation 26 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further none of the non-executive and independent
directors are independent director in more than Seven (7) listed entities and none of the whole time directors are independent
directors in more than Three (3) listed entities as required under Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

None of the Directors hold office in more than Twenty (20) companies and in more than Ten (10) public companies as prescribed
under Section 165 of the Act. The Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in Section 149 of
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and are Independent of the management.

None of the Directors of the Company are inter-se related to each other.

Category Name of Director DIN

Non-Executive Director Mr. V. Chandrasekaran 03126243
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta 00020403
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai 08095343

Independent Directors Mr. Najib Shah 08120210
Dr. M. Mathisekaran 03584338
Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan 05250681

Note:

1. Mr. V. Chandrasekaran (DIN 03126243) who retired by rotation was re-appointed as a Non-Executive Director on the Board
2. w.e.f. September 30, 2019.

3. Mr. Najib Shah (DIN 08120210) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board w.e.f. July 17, 2019.

4. Dr. M. Mathisekaran (DIN 03584338) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board w.e.f. August 19, 2019.

5. Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan (DIN 05250681) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board w.e.f. August
6. 19,2019.

1.2. Familiarization program for independent directors

The Company has conducted the familiarisation program for Independent Directors during the year. The Program aims to provide
insights into the Company to enable the Independent Directors to understand its business in depth, to acclimatize them with the
processes, businesses and functionaries of the Company and to assist them in performing their role as Independent Directors of
the Company.

The familiarization Programme for Independent Directors is disclosed on the Company’s website and the same may be accessed
at the link www.careratings.com/Investors.

1.3. Disclosure regarding appointment or re-appointment of directors.
At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. V Chandrasekaran,
Non-Executive Director retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Detailed profile of Mr. V Chandrasekaran in line with Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations is forming a part of the Notice of
the Annual General Meeting.
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Resume of Mr. V Chandrasekaran

Mr. V Chandrasekaran is a Non-Executive Director of our Company. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and retired Executive
Director (Investment) LIC of India. He has more than 3 decades of experience in Life Insurance, Housing Finance and Mutual Fund
Investment, with adequate exposure to a gamut of Investments. He was also involved in Investment decision making processes,
Investment Monitoring & Accounting and Investment Research and Risk Management. He is also a Board Member of various
companies.

1.4. Appointment of Mr. Ajay Mahajan as a Managing Director & CEO

At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 it is proposed to appoint
Mr. Ajay Mahajan as a Managing Director & CEO of the company. Mr. Ajay Mahajan has been appointed as an Additional Director
and as a Managing Director & CEO of the company of your Company with effect from April 15, 2020.

Resume of Mr. Ajay Mahajan

Mr. Ajay Mahajan is a widely experienced banker with 30 years of experience; worked in organizations like Bank of America where
he started his career in 1990 and went on to becoming MD & Country Head of Global Markets Group. In Bank of America, he led
the initiative of building the first 100% foreign owned NBFC in the country in the area of primary dealership and credit fixed in-
come. Thereafter, he worked in various entrepreneurial assignments including being a part of the management team at inception
of Yes Bank in 2004, building UBS’ maiden branch in India in 2008 and then working in a hugely transformative role in IDFC which
converted from being an Infrastructure Financing NBFC to a full-service commercial bank. Ajay spent the last 7 years at IDFC Bank,
building teams, systems, processes and cutting-edge technologies to support the wholesale bank’s growth.

Mr. Ajay Mahajan has .a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Electrical & Electronics Engineering from BITS Pilani and MBA from FMS
(where he was a Gold Medalist). He is also CFA Charter holder from CFA Institute, USA.

1.5. Resignation

During the year 2019- 2020 Mr. S B Mainak, Independent Director of the company resigned from the Board on February 11,
2020 due to personal reasons and necessary confirmation received from Director that there are no other material reasons other
than those provided . Mr. Rajesh Mokashi resigned from the services of the Company with effect from December 20, 2019 and
subsequently his employment was terminated with effect from July 17, 2019.

1.6. Board Procedure

A detailed agenda circulated to each Director in advance of Board and Committee meetings as prescribed in the Act and Secretarial
Standards, All major agenda items are backed by comprehensive background notes and other material information to enable the
Board to take informed decisions. Agenda papers (except unpublished price sensitive information) are circulated in advance to
the Board and Committee meeting. The Board members, in consultation with the Chairman, may also bring up any other matter
for the consideration of the Board.

1.7. Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors met 13 times during the financial year 2019-2020 on May 21, 2019, June 21, 2019, July 17, 2019, July
31, 2019, August 19, 2019, October 01, 2019, November 04, 2019, November 18, 2019, December 20, 2019, January 14, 2020,
January 27, 2020, February 07, 2020 and February 14, 2020. The maximum gap between two Board Meetings was not more than
one hundred and twenty days.
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Details of attendance

Number of Com-
Number of mittee positions Directorship in other
No. of AGM Directorshipsin |  held in Audit/ listed entity (Category
. Board No. of Held on other Compa- | Stakeholder com- of Directorship)
Name of the Directors meetings | meetings | September nies mit_tee in othe-r
held | attended | 30,2019 Public Companies
Public Pri- Chair- Mem-
vate man ber
Mr. S. B. Mainak 12 11 Yes 5 - 2 5
Zee Entertainment
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta 13 13 Yes 4 1 1 3 Enterprises Ltd
Vinati Organics Ltd
Ms. Sadhana Dhamane 4 4 Yes - 1
Tamilnadu News-
print and Paper Ltd.
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran 13 13 Yes 8 1 1 3 TATA Investment
Corporation Limited
Ms. Stonal Gunvant 13 13 Yes 1 1 i 3 Sharda Cropchem
Desai Ltd
Mr. Rajesh Mokashi 3 3 No 1 1 - -
Mr. Najib Shah 10 10 Yes - 2 - -
Dr. M Mathisekaran 8 8 Yes - - - -
Mr. Ananth Narayan 8 8 No 4 - - 2 Yes Bank Limited
Gopalakrishnan

None of the Directors of the Company holds Membership in more than ten Committees or act as a Chairperson of more than Five
Committees as per Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As on 31 March, 2020, Board confirm that in the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the condition specified by
SEBI (LODR) and are independent of management.

a.

Information provided to the Board

Apart from the items that are required under the statutes, to be placed before the Board for its approval, the following infor-
mation is placed before the Board periodically for its review / information in compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015

Vi.
Vii.
viii.
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Annual operating plans and budgets

Capital expenditure budgets and any updates thereon.

Capital budgets and any updates Quarterly results of the Company & its subsidiaries.

Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board.

The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the board level, including appointment or
removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

Materially important show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty action.

Fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences.

Any unplanned materially relevant default in financial obligations to and by the Company.

Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any judgement or order
which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise
that can have negative implications on the company. Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

Transaction that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property.
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Xi. Significant employee related problems and their proposed solutions.

Xii. Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is not in the normal course of business.

Xiii. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposure and the steps taken by the management to limit the risk of adverse ex
change rate movement.

Xiv. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as non-payment of divi
dend and delay in share transfer etc.

b. Post - meeting follow - up systems
The Governance system in the Company includes an effective post - meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for action
taken / pending on decisions of the Board and its Committees.

c. Board Support
The Company Secretary of the Company attends all the meetings of the Board and its Committees and advises / assures the Board
and Committees on compliance and governance principles.

d. Relationships between directors inter-se
None of the Directors of the Company or their relatives are inter-related with each other.

e. Code of conduct
The Board of Directors had laid down Code of Conduct for all Directors of the Board, Employee and the Senior Management
of your Company. The same has been posted on the website of the Company.

All the Directors of the Board, Employees and the Senior Management personnel of your Company have confirmed their compli-
ance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2020. A declaration to this effect, signed by the Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer forms part of the certification.

(A) Board Skills, Capabilities and Experiences

The Company recognizes the importance of having a board comprising directors who have a range of experiences, capabilities
and diverse points of view. This helps the Company create an effective and well-rounded board. The capabilities and experiences
sought in the directors are outlined here:

i. Strategy & Business - Is or has been the Chief Executive Officer or held any other leadership position in an organization
leading to significant experience in strategy or business management. Brings the ability to identify and assess strategic
opportunities and threats in the context of the business.

ii. Industry Expertise — Has expertise with respect to the sector the organization operates in. Has an understanding of the ‘big
picture’ in the given industry and recognizes the development of industry segments, trends, emerging issues and opportunities.

iii. Market Expertise —Has expertise with respect to the geography the organization operates in. Understands the macro- economic
environment, the nuances of the business, consumers and trade in the geography, and has the knowledge of the regulations
& legislations of the market/(s) the business operates in.

iv. Technology Perspective —Has expertise with respect to business specific technologies such as in the field of R&D, Manufacturing
etc. Has experience and adds perspective on the future ready skills required by the organization such as E-Commerce, Digital,
and Sustainability etc.

V. People & Talent Understanding — Has experience in human resource management such that they bring in a considered
approach to the effective management of people in an organization.

vi. Governance, Finance & Risk — Has an understanding of the law and application of corporate governance principles in a
commercial enterprise of similar scale. Capability to provide inputs for strategic financial planning, assess financial statements
and oversee budgets for the efficient use of resources. Ability to identify key risks for the business in a wide range of areas
including legal and regulatory.

vii. Diversity of Perspective — Provides a diversity of views to the board that is valuable to manage our customer, consumer, em-
ployee, key stakeholder or shareholders.

1oday ,s10308.110



CARE Ratings Limited e

(B) Board Membership Criteria and list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified in the context of the business

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible for selection of a Member on the Board. In terms of requirement of Listing
Regulations, the Board has identified the following core skills / expertise /competencies of the Directors in the context of the
Company'’s business for effective functioning as given below:

Strate Tech & Gover- People Diversit
Name of the Director / ay Industry Market Future nance, & Talent y
. Gender & Busi- . . . of Per-

Skills Expertise | Expertise | Perspec- | Finance & Under- .

ness X . ; spective

tive Risk standing

Mr. V. Chandrasekaran M Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta M Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai F Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Najib Shah M Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Dr. M. Mathisekaran M Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. Ananjch Narayan M v v v v v v v
Gopalakrishnan

(C) None of the director of the company resigned from the Board in lieu of prioritizing the Limits prescribed for the directors
to hold the No. of directorships in Companies.

2 Committees of the Board of Directors

2.1 Audit committee

(A) Composition of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee as on March 31, 2020, comprised of Four (4) members i.e. Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta - Independent Director
(Chairman), Mr. V. Chandrasekaran - Non-Executive Director, Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai - Independent Director and Mr. Ananth
Narayan Gopalakrishnan - Independent Director

The Chairperson of the Committee is an Independent Director.

Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Chairman of Audit Committee attended the Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on Sep-
tember 30, 2019

(B) Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee approved by the Board as per the provisions of section 177 of The Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 are as follows:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the finan-
cial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the
board for approval, with particular reference to:
e  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.
e Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
e Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
e Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
e Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
e Disclosure of any related party transactions.
e Qualifications in the draft audit report.
5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
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6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case
of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

21. Identification of various risks associated with the operations of the Company such as regulatory risk, business risk, market
risk, etc.

22. Monitoring and reviewing of the risk management plan of the Company;

23. Review of Risk Management Policy as approved by the Board from time to time.

(C) Meetings of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee met 9 times during the financial year 2019-2020 on May 20, 2019, July 16, 2019, July 31, 2019, September
25, 2019, October 15, 2019, November 04, 2019, December 17, 2019, January 07, 2020, and February 07, 2020.

Details of attendance
Name of Directors No. of Audit Committee Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta 9 9
Mr. S.B. Mainak* 6 5
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran 9 9
Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan** 3 3
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai*** 6 6

The Company Secretary of your Company is the secretary to the Audit Committee.
* upto November 04, 2019.
** Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan inducted as member of the Committee on November 04, 2019.
*** Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai inducted as member of the Committee on July 31, 2019.

2.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(A) Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2020, comprised of Four membersi.e. Mr. Najib Shah- Independent
Director, Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta - Independent Director, Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan, Independent Director and
Mr. V Chandrasekaran, Non- Executive Director.
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The Company Secretary of your Company is the secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

(B) Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee approved by the Board as per the provisions of section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as follows:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

4. ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The company shall disclose the
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

5. The quantum of option to be granted under an ESOS per employee and in aggregate in each year;

6. The conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment for misconduct;

7. The exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and that option would lapse on failure to exercise
the option within the exercise period;

8. The specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of termination or resig-
nation of an employee and taking a view on exercise period between the end of the financial year and the date of annual
general meeting;

9. The right of an employee to exercise all the options vested in him at one time or at various points of time within the exercise
period;

10. The procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of options and to the exercise price in case of
corporate actions such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, etc. In this regard following shall be taken into consideration:
a. The number and price of ESOS shall be adjusted in a manner such that total value of the ESOS remains the same after

the corporate action;
b. The vesting period and the life of the options shall be left unaltered as far as possible to protect the rights of the option
holders.

11. The grant, vest and exercise of options in case of employees who are on long leave; and

12. The procedure for cashless exercise of option (if any)

w

(C) Meetings & attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Committee met Seven (7) times during the financial year 2019-2020 on May 20, 2019, June 21, 2019, July 16, 2019, July 31,
2019, August 19, 2019, January 27, 2020 and March 12, 2020.

Details of attendance

Name of Directors No. of Remuneration Committee Meetings held | No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Najib Shah* 3 3
Mr. S.B. Mainak**
Ms. Sadhana Dhamane***
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta
Mr. V. Chandrasekaran®***

Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan*****
* Inducted as Member of Committee w.e.f. July 31, 2019
** Ceased to be member of the Committee due to resignation from Board on February 11, 2020
*** Ceased to be member of the Committee due to resignation from Board on August 08, 2019
*¥*** Inducted as Member of Committee w.e.f. November 04, 2019
*¥**%* Inducted as Member of Committee w.e.f. March 20, 2020
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(D) Remuneration Policy

During the year 2019-20, your Company paid remuneration to its Executive Directors within the limits envisaged under the appli-
cable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors was approved by the Board and
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the limits approved by the shareholders.

To compensate the Executive Directors commensurate to the earnings of the Company and the efforts put in by them for achieving
the same and also in consonance with the existing industry practice, subject to the limits governed by law.

Remuneration to Directors (Amount in Rupees)

No. Name Amount (Rs)
1. Mr. S. B. Mainak, Chairman & Independent Director 19,50,000
2. Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Independent Director 22,50,000
3. Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai, Independent Director 20,00,000
4, Mr. Najib Shah, Independent Director 12,00,000
5. Dr. M Mathisekaran, Independent Director 9,00,000
6. Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan, Independent Director 12,00,000
7. Mr. Rajesh Mokashi, Managing Director & CEO 1,11,27,817
8. Ms. Sadhana Dhamane, Non Executive Director 8,00,000
9. Mr. V. Chandrasekaran, Non Executive Director 20,50,000

Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive directors
Sitting fees: Rs. 1,00,000/- for per Board meeting and Rs. 50,000/-for per committee meeting

The details of the remuneration to the Executive Directors is as follows: (Amount in Rupees)
Particulars Mr. Rajesh Mokashi, Managing Director & CEO
Salary & Allowance 1,01,46,539
Variable Pay (for FY 2017-18) -
Provident Fund Contribution 5,11,570

Perquisite Value — ESOP * _

Leave Encashment -

Leave travel Allowance -
Super Annuation 4,69,708
Total 1,11,27,817

(E) Directors with materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary or business relationship or transaction with the
Company:

Except for drawing remuneration in case of Executive Directors and Sitting Fees in case of Non-Executive Directors, none of the
Directors have any other materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company.

(F) Details of the shareholding of non-executive directors:
None of the Independent Directors & Non-Executive Directors hold shares in the Company.

(G) Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors:

The Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board of Directors excluding the director being
evaluated. The evaluation questionnaire form in respect of each independent director was filled up by the directors. The inde-
pendent directors were evaluated on the basis of criteria such as skills, knowledge, discharge of duties, level of Participation in
the meetings etc.
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2.3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

(A) Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2020 comprised of three members i.e. Mr. V Chandrasekaran, Non-
Executive Director, (Chaiman) Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan, Independent Director and Dr. M Mathisekaran, Independent
Director. The Company Secretary of your Company is the secretary to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. Mr. Navin Jain,
Executive Director & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

(B) Terms of Reference

1. To review the redressal of Investors’ complaints like transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report and
non-receipt of declared dividend, delays in transfer of shares, dematerialisation / rematerialisation of shares etc.

2. To act on behalf of the Board, in the matters connected with issuance of duplicate share certificates, split and consolidation
etc.

3. To oversee performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company and their adherence to service standards and
recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.

4. To review the process of complaint and grievance handling mechanism at periodic intervals.

5. Tofurther delegate all or any of the power to any other employee(s), officer(s), representative(s), consultant(s), professional(s),
or agent(s).

6. To review various measures and initiatives taken for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely
receipts of dividends warrants, annual reports, statutory notices by the shareholders of the company

7. To undertake such other matters as deemed fit and proper for effective discharge of the above responsibilities.

(C) Meetings & attendance of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Committee met Two (2) times during the financial year 2019-2020 on April 26, 2019 and July 12, 2019.

Details of attendance
Name of Directors No. of Stakeholders Committee Meeting held | No. of Meetings attended
Mr. S.B. Mainak# 2 2
Ms. Sadhana Dhamane® # 2 2
Mr. Rajesh Mokashi# ## 2 2

# Mr. S B Mainak ceased to be member of the Committee due to resignation from the Board on February 11, 2020
## Ms. Sadhana Dhamane ceased to be member of the Committe due to resignation from the Board on August 08, 2019
# ## Mr. Rajesh Mokashi ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f. July 31, 2019.

(D) Details of shareholders complaints for FY ended 31.03.2020 are as follows:

No | Description Crcceived | Attonded |  ponding.
1. | Non-receipt of refund order NIL NIL NIL
2. | Non-receipt of Annual Report 82 82 NIL
3. | Non-receipt of dividend 20 20 NIL
4. | Non-receipt of Securities NIL NIL NIL
5. | Non-receipt of refund order (Compliant received through SEBI SCORES) NIL NIL NIL
6. | Non-receipt of dividend (Compliant received through SEBI SCORES) NIL NIL NIL
7 lgl;c:arre];i)pt of Annual Report (Complaint received through Stock NIL NIL NIL
TOTAL 102 102 NIL
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2.4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

(A) Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Committee as on March 31, 2020, comprised three members i.e., Dr. M Mathisekaran, Independent Director, Ms. Sonal
Gunvant Desai - Independent Director, and Mr. V. Chandrasekaran - Non Executive Director.

(B) Terms of Reference
The term of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee approved by the Board as per the provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

1. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the company as specified in schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on these activities.

3. Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

(C) Meetings & attendance of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The Committee met One (1) time during the financial year 2019-20 on February 08, 2020.

Details of attendance

Name of Directors

No. of CSR Meetings held

No. of Meetings attended

Dr. M. Mathisekaran 1 1
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai 1 1
Mr. S B Mainak# 1 1

Mr. V Chandrasekaran

# Mr. S B Mainak ceased to be member of the Committee due to resignation from the Board on February 11, 2020.

2.5. Risk Management Committee

(A) Composition of Risk Management Committee

The Committee as on March 31, 2020, comprised Four members i.e., Dr. M Mathisekaran, Independent Director, Ms. Sonal
Gunvant Desai - Independent Director, Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Independent Director and Mr. Najib Shah, Independent Director.

(B) Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the Committee prescribed by the regulation is as follows:

e All the of members of Risk Management Committee shall consist of members of the Board of Directors

e The Chairperson of the Risk management committee shall be a member of the Board of Directors and Senior Executives of the
listed entity may be members of the committee

e To meet at least once in a year

e To also include the risks associated with cyber security in the IT risk

(C) Meetings & attendance of the Risk Management Committee
The Committee met Two (2) times during the financial year 2019-2020 on September 25, 2019 and December 17, 2019

Details of attendance
Name of Directors No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai 2 2
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta 2 2
Dr. M. Mathisekaran* 1 1
Mr. Najib Shah** 1 1
Mr. V. Chandrasekatan*** 1 1
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* Dr. M. Mathisekaran inducted as member of the Committee w.e.f. November 04, 2019
** Mr. Najib Shah inducted as member of the Committee w.e.f. November 04, 2019
***% Mr. V. Chandrasekatan ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f. November 04, 2019

2.6. Independent Directors Meeting

At present the company has Five independent directors — Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai, Mr. Najib Shah, Dr.
M Mathisekaran and Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan on its Board. During the financial year 2019-2020, one meeting of the
Independent directors was held on May 20, 2019. The meeting was attended by Mr. S.B. Mainak , Ms Sonal Gunvant Desai and
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of the management. The meeting
was conducted to enable the Independent directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company’s affairs and determine their
combined views to be put forth to the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Najib Shah was appointed as Additional Director — Independent on July 17, 2019.
Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan was appointed as Additional Director — Independent on August 19, 2019.
Dr. M Mathisekaran was appointed as Additional Director — Independent on August 19, 2019.

Mr. S B Mainak resigned from the Board on February 11, 2020

3. General Meetings
Details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) and Extra Ordinary General meetings.

Venue Date Time No of special resolutions
passed

Jasubhai Conventional Hall, September 30, 2019 500

a) | Sri Shanmukhananda Fine Arts & Sangeetha Sabha, 6th | (Annual General .m i
Floor, 292 Harbanslal Marg, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022 | Meeting) p-m.
Jasubhai Conventional Hall, September 24, 2018 330

b) | Sri Shanmukhananda Fine Arts & Sangeetha Sabha, 6th | (Annual General .m i
Floor, 292 Harbanslal Marg, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022 | Meeting) p.m.
Jasubhai Conventional Hall, August 1, 2017 (An- 03.30

c) Sri Shanmukhananda Fine Arts & Sangeetha Sabha, 6th | nual General Meet- m i
Floor, 292 Harbanslal Marg, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022 | ing) p-m.

4. Postal Ballot

During FY 2019-2020, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot as required under Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014. No Special resolution is proposed to be
conducted through the Postal Ballot.

5. Related party disclosures

All transactions entered into during the financial year 2019-20 with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act and
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any transaction referred to in Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with related parties which could be considered material under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section
134(3) of the Companies Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. As required under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related
Party Transactions which is available on the website of the Company at www. careratings.com.

6. Details of Non-Compliance
There has been no incidence of non-compliance with any of the legal provisions of law nor has any penalty or stricture been
imposed by SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years.
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7 . Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

Your Company’s Whistle Blower Policy is in line with the provisions of the sub-section 9 and 10 of Section 177 of the Companies
Act and Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. This Policy establishes the
necessary mechanism for employees to report to the management concerns about unethical behaviour or actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. Further, no member of staff has been denied access to the
Audit Committee. The policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company www.careratings.com

8. Other policies
Your Company had adopted the policy for determining material subsidiaries and a policy on materiality of and dealing with
Related Party Transactions. These policies have been uploaded on the website of the Company www.careratings.com

9. Adoption of mandatory and non-mandatory requirements

i.  Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

ii.  Asthe quarterly and half yearly financial results are published in the newspapers and are also posted on the Company’s
website, the same are not being sent separately to the shareholders.

iii. The Company’s financial statements for the year 2019-20 do not contain any Audit Qualification.

iv. The internal auditors of the Company directly report to audit Committee.

10. Means of communication

Your Company’s corporate website www.careratings.com provides comprehensive information to the shareholders. The quarterly
and annual financial results are published in English i.e Business Standard and Marathi daily newspaperi.e Mumbai Lakshadweep.
The quarterly and annual financial results and the press releases issued are also available on your Company’s website www.
careratings.com. Detailed presentations are made to analyst on the Company’s unaudited quarterly as well as audited annual
financial results. These presentations are also uploaded on the Company’s website. The disclosures as required under SEBI
CRA Regulations are uploaded on the Company’s website. The shareholding pattern, updated every quarter is displayed on the
Company’s website.

11. Dividend

In the financial year 2019-2020, the Company had declared three Interim Dividends of Rs. 3/-per share Rs. 8/-per equity share,
and Rs. 6/-per equity share, respectively aggregating to Rs. 17/- per equity share. Further, the Board of Directors recommended
a Final Dividend of Rs. 2.5 /- per equity share subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates that companies shall transfer dividend that has been unclaimed for a period
of seven years from the unpaid dividend account to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). During 2019-2020, the
amount of 12,75,000/- lying in the Initial Public offer (IPO) account pertaining to the financial year 2011-12 was transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). The said amount had remained unclaimed for seven years

12. Subsidiary companies
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. Further, the minutes of the
meetings of board of directors of the subsidiary companies are also placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.

13. Management discussion and analysis report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report have been annexed to the Directors’ Report.

14. Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance

As required by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Auditors’ certifi-
cate with respect to compliance of Corporate Governance have been annexed to the Directors’ Report and will be sent to the Stock
Exchanges at the time of filing of the Annual Report.

15. CEO & CFO certification
As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the CEO and
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CFO certification on the financial statement and the internal control system for financial reporting has been obtained and the
same was reviewed by the Board of Directors.

16. Reconciliation of share capital audit

As stipulated by SEBI, a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is carried out by an independent Practicing Company Secretary on a
quarterly basis to confirm reconciliation of the issued and listed capital, of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode, and
the status of the Register of Members.

17. (A) Disclosures with respect to Demat suspense account / Unclaimed suspense account
The Company does not have any shares lying in its Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account.

17. (B) Certificate from Company Secretary in practice

As required under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, your Company has obtained a certificate from a company secretary in
practice, that none of the Directors on the Board of your Company as on March 31, 2020 is debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of your Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or any such authority. A certificate from a company secretary in practice for the financial year 2019-20 is annexed to this
report as Annexure VI

17. (C) Auditor Fee table
The fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries (on a consolidated basis) to the statutory auditors and its network firm during
the financial year 2019-20 are as under:

Sr. No Services provided Amount Rs

1 Audit Fees 24.30

2 Audit Under Other Statutes 1.20

3 Certifications 0.95

4 Reimbursement of Expenses 0.65
Total 27.10

18. All mandatory requirements as per the Chapter IV of the listing Regulations have been Complied with the company. Details
of compliance with mandatory requirements of SEBI LODR Regulations:

1. Disclosure on website in terms of listing regulations

Item Compliance Status (Yes/No/
NA) refer note below

Details of business Yes

Terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors Yes

Compositions of various committees of board of directors Yes

Code of conduct of board of directors and senior management personnel Yes

Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy Yes

Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors Disclosed in Annual Report

Policy for dealing with related party transactions Yes

Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries Yes

Details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors Yes

Contact information of the designated officials of the listed entity who are responsible for Yes

assisting and handling investor grievances

Email address for grievance redressal and other relevant details Yes
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Financial results

Yes

Shareholding pattern

Yes

Details of agreements entered into with the media companies and/or their associates

Not Applicable

New name and the old name of the listed entity

Not Applicable

Il. Annual Affirmations

Compliance status (Yes/No/NA) refer

Particulars Regulation Number note below
Independent director(s) have been appointed in

terms of specified criteria of ‘independence’ and/ 16(1)(b) & 25(6) Yes
or ‘eligibility’

Board composition 17(1) Yes
Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes
Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes
Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yes
Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
Fees/compensation 17(6) Yes
Minimum Information 17(7) Yes
Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes
Risk Assessment &Management 17(9) Yes
Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes
Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes
Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes
Sgrrnn:]?tsti::n of nomination & remuneration 19(1) & (2) Yes
Egmfnc;:tizi:n of Stakeholder Relationship 20(1) & (2) Yes
Egrrnnr;:]?:ti::n and role of risk management 21(1),(2),(3),(4) Yes
Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes
Policy for related party Transaction 23(1),(5),(6),(7) & (8) Yes
o O A Commitee o,
Approval for material related party Transactions 23(4) Not Applicable
e o o s 2
e G Sovarie ST 100,580
Maximum Directorship & Tenure 25(1) & (2) Yes
Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes
Familiarization of independent Directors 25(7) Yes
Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes
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Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct

from members of Board of Directors and Senior 26(3) Yes
manage- ment personnel

D!sclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive 26(4) Yes
Directors

Polle with respect to Obligations of directors and 26(2) Yes
senior management

Polle with respect to Obligation of Directors and 26(5) Not Applicable
senior management

Obligation with respect to KMPs, Directors and 26(6) Not Applicable
Promoters

Pursuant to Regulation 7(2) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, certificates on half yearly basis have been issued by a qualified practic-
ing Company Secretary confirming the compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

19. Details of Non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance
The Company has complied with all the requirement of Corporate Governance specified under Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015.

20. General Shareholders Information

a) | Annual General Meeting September 08, 2020
Time 03:30 p.m.

The Company is conducting meeting through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA
Circular dated May 5, 2020 and as such there is no requirement to have a venue

Venue for the AGM. For details please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

b) | Financial Year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

Quarterly results will be declared as
per the following tentative schedule:

Financial reporting for the quarter

ending June 30, 2020 On or before August 14, 2020

Financial reporting for the

. fi N 14, 202
quarter ending September 30, 2020 On or before November 020

Financial reporting for the

quarter ending December 31, 2010 On or before February 14, 2021

Financial reporting for the quarter

and year ending March 31, 2021 On or before May 30, 2021

Wednesday, September 02, 2020 to Tuesday, September 08, 2020 (both days in-

c) | Dates of Book Closure .
clusive)

Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2020 as recommend-
d) | Dividend Payment Date ed by the Directors, if declared in the Annual General Meeting will be paid on or
before October 07, 2020.
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e) | Listing on Stock Exchange

The Company got listed on December 26, 2012. The shares of your Company are
listed on:

The BSE Limited

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051

The Annual Listing fees for the financial year 2019-20 have been paid to BSE
Limited and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

f) | Stock Code

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited: 534804
National Stock Exchange of India Limited: CARERATING
ISIN: INE752H01013

g) | Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

KFin Technologies Private Limited
Unit: CARE Ratings Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower - B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, Gachibowli,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad — 500 032.

Tel. No. 040 — 67162222, Fax No. 040 — 23001153

Email: einward.ris@karvy.com, Website: www.karvy.com

Contact Person : Mr. K. S. Reddy & Mr. B. V. Kishore

h) | Share Transfer System

99.99% of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic form. Transfer of
shares is done through the depositories with no involvement of the company.
As regards transfer of shares held in physical form the transfer documents can
be lodged with Kfin Technologies Private Limited (RTA) at the above mentioned
addresses.

Share transfer is normally affected within a period of 15 days from the date of the
receipt of request if all the required documentation is submitted.

i )Market Price Data HIGH/LOW during each month from April 2019 to March 2020.

BSE NSE
PERIOD —2019-2020 HIGH Low HIGH Low
April 2019 1,007.00 975.40 1007.00 975.00
May 2019 989.90 925.00 991.00 921.10
June 2019 1,019.00 905.00 1010.10 900.00
July 2019 950.50 717.05 954.85 717.00
August 2019 718.60 453.00 738.90 451.00
September 2019 563.05 516.55 565.00 515.10
October 2019 560.00 500.10 560.00 500.55
November 2019 551.00 444.50 554.95 443.70
December 2019 651.20 469.75 649.95 470.00
January 2020 726.60 585.50 727.00 585.25
February 2020 719.80 474.00 720.00 474.05
March 2020 496.40 236.45 496.15 235.00

105

1oday ,s10308.110



CARE Ratings Limited e

J) Distribution Schedule and Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2020

Sr. No Category Cases % of Cases Amount % Amount

1 upto 1 -5000 54146 95.80 29100680.00 9.88

2 5001 -10000 1237 2.19 9178170.00 3.12

3 10001 -20000 564 1.00 8098100.00 2.75

4 20001 -30000 198 0.35 4917710.00 1.67

5 30001 -40000 109 0.19 3814520.00 1.29

6 40001 -50000 50 0.09 2333650.00 0.79

7 50001 - 100000 87 0.15 6100780.00 2.07

8 100001 & ABOVE 127 0.22 231068530.00 78.43
Total: 56518 100.00 294612140.00 100.00

k) Shareholding Pattern

Sr. No | Category No. of Shares Held Percentage (%)
| PROMOTERS e e
Il NON-PROMOTERS
a) ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND 118144 0.40
b) BANKS 60459 0.21
c) CLEARING MEMBERS 141106 0.48
d) DIRECTORS 76721 0.26
e) EMPLOYEES 35952 0.12
f) FOREIGN PORTFOLIO - CORP 8660343 29.40
g) FOREIGN PORTFOLIO INVESTORS 9699 0.03
h) HUF 245740 0.83
i) INDIAN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 2931810 9.95
i) BODIES CORPORATES 5345038 18.14
k) MUTUAL FUNDS 4152428 14.09
) NBFC 4150 0.01
m) NATIONALISED BANK 537 0.00
n) NON RESIDENT INDIANS 407192 1.38
o) NRI NON-REPATRIATION 123673 0.42
p) RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 6067378 20.59
q) QlB 1078512 3.66
r) Trusts 2332 0.01
TOTAL 2,94,61,214 100.00

2,94,60,913 equity shares which constitutes 99.99% of the
1) Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity paid up capital as on March 31, 2020 of your Company are held
in electronic mode.
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Registered Office &

CARE Ratings Limited
4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital Road, Off. Eastern
Express Highway, Sion (East), Mumbai

m) Address for Correspondence — 400022
Tel No: 022 - 67543456
Fax No: 022 — 67543457
In view of the nature of the Company’s business viz. providing
n) Plant location rating services, the company operates from the following men-
tioned offices in India.
Ahmedabad Andheri
32, Titanium, Prahaladnagar Corporate Road, A Wing - 1102 / 1103, Kanakia Wall Street, Andheri Kurla Road,
Satellite, Ahmedabad - 380 015 Chakala, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 093.
Tel: +91-79-4026 5656 Tel No.: +91-22-6837 4400
Bengaluru Chandigarh
Unit No. 205 -208, 2nd Floor, Prestige Meridian 1, SCF No. 54-55, First Floor, Phase 11, Sector 65, Chandigarh,
No. 30, M. G. Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka 560001. Mohali - 160062
Tel: +91-80-46625555 Tel: +91-172-490-4000/01
Chennai Coimbatore
Unit No. 0-509/C, Spencer Plaza, 5th Floor, T-3, 3rd Floor, Manchester Square
No. 769, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002. Puliakulam Road, Coimbatore - 641 037.
Tel: +91-44-2849 7812 / 0811 Tel: +91-422-4332399 / 4502399
Hyderabad Jaipur
401, Ashoka Scintilla, 3-6-520, Himayat Nagar, 304, Pashupati Akshat Heights, Plot No. D-91, Madho Singh
Hyderabad - 500 029. Road, Near Collectorate Circle, Bani Park, Jaipur - 302 016.
Tel: +91-40-4010 2030 Tel: +91-141-402 0213 / 14
Kolkata New Delhi
3rd Floor, Prasad Chambers, (Shagun Mall Bldg.) 13th Floor, E-1 Block, Videocon Tower, Jhandewalan Extension,
10A, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata - 700 071. Tel: +91-33- | New Delhi - 110 055.
4018 1600 Tel: +91-11-4533 3200
Pune
9th Floor, Pride Kumar Senate, Plot No. 970, Bhamburda,
Senapati Bapat Road, Shivaji Nagar, Pune - 411 015.
Tel: +91-20- 4000 9000
o) Email care@careratings.com
p) Investor Complaints ID investor.relations@careratings.com
q) Website www.careratings.com

Compliance Officer

Navin Kumar Jain

Company Secretary CARE Ratings Limited

4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital Road, Off. East-
ern Express Highway, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022

Tel No: 022 - 67543456, Fax No: 022 - 67543457
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Pursuant to Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 35 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, compa-
nies are allowed to send to their Members notices/ documents
in the electronic form.

s) Green Initiative ) )
Toenable the Company send its Annual Report, Notice of AGM,
and other documents for the financial year ended March 31,
2020 electronically, Members are requested to update (in case
of change) / register their email IDs with their Depository Par-

ticipants/the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at the earliest.

t) CARE share price vs. NSE NIFTY

Month CARE Close Price (Rs.) (NSE) NSE NIFTY
April 2019 983.35 11,748.15
May 2019 970.40 11,922.80
June 2019 942.70 11,788.85
July 2019 754.95 11,118.00
August 2019 538.00 11,023.25
September 2019 518.50 11,474.45
October 2019 530.70 11,877.45
November 2019 477.45 12,056.05
December 2019 638.95 12,168.45
January 2020 655.20 11,962.10
February 2020 476.15 11,201.75
March 2020 327.35 8597.75
CARE vs NSE Nifty
e Care Close price NSE Nifty
1200 14,000.00
1000 12,000.00
800 10,000.00
8,000.00
600
6,000.00
400 4,000.00
200 2,000.00
0 0.00
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Month CARE Close Price (Rs.) BSE) BSE SENSEX
April 2019 983.45 39,031.55
May 2019 968.35 39,714.20
June 2019 942.45 39,394.64
July 2019 753.65 37,481.12
August 2019 538.75 37,332.79
September 2019 520.50 38,667.33
October 2019 530.45 40,129.05
November 2019 476.10 40,793.81
December 2019 640.25 41,253.74
January 2020 655.45 40,723.49
February 2020 476.25 38,297.29
March 2020 329.55 29,468.49
CARE vs BSE Sensex
e CARE Close Price BSE Sensex
1200 45,000.00
40,000.00
1000 35,000.00
800 30,000.00
25,000.00
600 20,000.00
400 15,000.00
10,000.00
200 5,000.00
0 0.00
9 O O O O O O O O D O O
oy oy g Y o oy s " oy v v v
& Q'b\\ F & &

v) The Company has not received any compliant during the financial year ended 31t March, 2020 relating to Sexual harassment at
Workplace. Further following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the year:

No. of Complaints filed during the year Nil
No. of Complaints disposed off during the year Nil
No. of Complaints pending as on the end of the financial year Nil

w) Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments

Company does not having any outstanding Global Depository receipt, American Depository receipt or Warrant or any Convertible

instrument during the financial year ended 31 March, 2020.

x) Commodity Price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging is not applicable to the Company.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Care Ratings Limited,

Godrej Coliseum, 4th Floor,
Somaiya Hospital Road,

Off Eastern Express Highway,
Sion East, Mumbai 400022.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of CARE RATINGS LIMITED (CIN:L67190MH1993PLC071691) and having registered office at Godrej Coliseum, 4t
Floor, Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai-400022 (hereinafter referred to
as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this certificate, in accordance
with the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of The Securities Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 315t March, 2020 have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment
1 Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta 00020403 22/05/2018
2 Mr. Najib Shah 08120210 17/07/2019
3 Dr. Mathisekaran Madasamy 03584338 19/08/2019
4 Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai 08095343 30/03/2019
5 Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan 05250681 19/08/2019
6 Mr. Venkatadri Chandrasekaran 03126243 15/11/2017

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifi-
cation. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For A. K. Jain & Co.
Company Secretaries

Ashish Kumar Jain
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: July 10, 2020 FCS: 6058, CP: 6124
UDIN: F006058B000438424
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

To
The Board of Directors
CARE Ratings Limited

We, Mr. Ajay Mahajan, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Bharat Adnani, Chief Financial
Officer of Care Ratings Limited (Formerly known as Credit Analysis and Research Limited), to the best of
our knowledge and belief, certify that:

A.  We have reviewed financial statements, the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2020
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
e These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;
e These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in com-
pliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

C. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee
¢  Significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;
¢ Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and
e Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

For CARE RATINGS LIMITED

Ajay Mahajan Bharat Adnani
Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 10, 2020
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DECLARATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
THE COMPANY UNDER REGULATION 17(5)(A) OF SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015.

To,
The Members of CARE Ratings Limited

I, Ajay Mahajan, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of CARE Ratings Limited, hereby confirm
pursuant to Regulation 26(3) read with Para D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that:

The Board of CARE Ratings Limited had laid down a Code of Conduct (Code of Ethics) for all Board members
and Senior Management of the Company. The said code of conduct has also been posted on the Compa-
ny’s website viz. www.careratings.com .

As provided under Regulation 26(3) read with Para D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclo-
sure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby declare that all the Board of Directors and Senior Manage-
ment Personnel of the Company have affirmed the Compliance with the Code of Conduct (Code of Ethics)
for the year ended March 31, 2020.

For CARE RATINGS LIMITED

Ajay Mahajan
Managing Director & CEO

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 17, 2020




AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certificate No.: 0718/2020/ViAg

To the Members of
CARE Ratings Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by CARE Ratings Limited (the
‘Company’), for the year ended March 31, 2020, as per the relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (‘Listing
Regulations’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India
(the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far
as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code
of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Hasmukh Dedhia
Chartered Accountants Partner (F-033494)
FRN: 105146W/W100621 UDIN: 20033494AAAAGF9484

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 10, 2020
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To the Members of
CARE Ratings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

1.

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of CARE Ratings Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehen-
sive Income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder; and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

3.

Attention is drawn to Note 48 of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements which describes the impacts of COVID-19 Pan-
demic on the financial statements as also on business operations of the Company, assessment thereof by the management
of the Company based on its internal, external and macro factors, involving certain estimation uncertainties. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Stan-
dalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the year under report. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Our audit approach

Recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of
revenues and other related balances in accordance with Ind
AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” and other
regulatory requirements

We assessed the entity’s process to comply with the applicable
Ind AS and other regulatory requirements

Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and

operating effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive

testing as follows:

e Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
implementation of the revenue accounting standard.
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The recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures
of revenues and other related balances in accordance with Ind
AS 115 and other regulatory requirements involve significant
judgements and estimation as also timing of recognition by
the management of the Company. Further, the recognition of
revenue involves various complexities with respect to nature
and category of clients of the Company.

We determined this matter to be a key audit matter due to the
complexity associated to comply with the applicable Ind AS and
other regulatory requirements. [Note 1(j) to the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements]

e Evaluated the report of expert on the application of the
standard on the entity as per its accounting policies.

e Evaluatedthereasonableness of the significant judgements
and estimation involved in the process.

e Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts, and
tested the operating effectiveness of the internal control,
relating to timing and extent of recognition of revenue
therefrom based on the policy adopted by the Company.

e Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and
performed the following procedures:

e Read, analysed andidentified the distinct performance
obligations in these contracts.

e Compared these performance obligations with that
identified and recorded by the entity.

e Sample of revenue disaggregated by type and service
offerings was tested with the performance obligations
specified in the underlying contracts.

Regulations - Litigations and claims

The Company is exposed to various laws and regulations. In this
regulatory environment, there is an inherent risk of litigations
and claims. Consequently, provisions and contingent liabilities
disclosures may arise from direct and indirect tax proceedings,
legal proceedings, including regulatory and other government
/ department proceedings, as well as out of investigations by
the authorities.

As at March 31, 2020, the Company’s has ascertained contin-
gent liabilities of Rs. 72.51 Lakhs and also has unascertained
liabilities (refer note 31 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements)

Management applies significant judgement in estimating the
likelihood of the future outcome in each case when consider-
ing whether, and how much, to provide or in determining the
required disclosure for the potential exposure of each matter.

This is due to the highly complex nature and magnitude of the
legal matters involved along with the fact that resolution of tax
and legal proceedings may span over multiple years, and may
involve protracted negotiation or litigation. These estimates
could change substantially over time as new facts emerge and
each legal case progresses.

We determined this matter to be a key audit matter due to
the inherent complexity and magnitude of potential exposures
across the Company and the judgment necessary to estimate
the amount of provisions required or determine the required
disclosures.

Our Audit approach in relation to the matter involved the

following:

e Review the outstanding litigations against the Company for
comparing consistency with the previous years. Enquire
and obtain explanations for movements during the year.

e Readingthe latest correspondences between the Company
and the various tax/legal authorities for significant matters.

e Examined selectively the Company’s legal expenses and
read fully the minutes of the board meetings, in order to
ascertain all cases have been identified.

e With respect to tax matters, involving our tax specialists,
and discussing with the Company’s personnel dealing with
tax matters, their views and strategies on significant cases,
as well as the related technical grounds relating to their
conclusions based on applicable tax laws and precedence.

e Assessing the decisions and rationale for provisions held or
for decisions not to record provisions or make disclosures.

e  For those matters where management concluded that no
provisions should be recognised, considering the adequacy
and completeness of the Company’s disclosures.

e For complex regulatory litigations, reviewing the relevant
correspondence by the Company, studying the matters in
the light of past precedence and views of Company’s legal
advisor as made available by the Company.

e For claims made against the Company but neither
acknowledged nor disclosed, assessed the tenability of
such claims based on reading the basis of such claims
with relevant provisions of the law or regulations and
considering the legal advice obtained by the Company.
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Information other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

5.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information, compris-
ing of the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and such other disclosures related Information, excluding
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and auditor’s report thereon (‘Other Information’). The Other Information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Informa-
tion when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the Other Information and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s re-
sponsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibility of Management’s & Board of Directors for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

6.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. Our audit process in accordance with the SAs is narrated
in detail in Annexure 1 to this report.

Other Matter

8.

Due to complete lockdown, imposed by the Government, to restrict the spread of COVID19, the audit finalization process, for
the year under report, was carried out from remote locations i.e. other than the Office of the Company, based on the data/
details made available and based on financial information/records remitted by the management through digital medium. Our
report is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 2, a statement on the matters specified in para-
graphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020, taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure 3.

g. Interms of provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act, as per the information and explanations given, we report that the
managerial remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors is in accordance with provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements — Refer Note 31 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 32 to the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Hasmukh B Dedhia
Chartered Accountants Partner (F - 033494)
FRN: 105146W/W100621

UDIN: 20033494AAAAEZ3008

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020
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Annexure 1
(referred to in paragraph 7 of Independent Auditors’ Report)

As part of our audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclo-
sures in the standalone Ind AS financial statement made by the Management and Board of Directors

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including the disclo-
sures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most sig-
nificance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Annexure 2
(referred to in paragraph 9 of Independent Auditors’ Report)

i (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) Allfixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular programme
of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. The Company does not hold any inventory or securities as stock in trade, hence clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act,

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of Section 185 and 186 of
the Act in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and
advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public.
Vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to maintain any cost records

as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company examined by
us, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities in India. There are no undisputed statutory dues payable in respect to the above statues, outstanding as
at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

As informed, the Company is not liable to pay Custom Duty and Cess during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Goods and
Service Tax and Cess which have not been deposited on account of any disputes except the following:

Name of the statute Nature Amount (Rs.) Period to which the | Forum wherP: dispute is
of the dues amount relates pending
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 24,66,238 AY 2016-17 Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals)
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 30,55,506 AY 2017-18 Commissioner of Income

Tax (Appeals)
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, there are no loans taken from financial institutions, government and banks nor has the Company issued
any debentures, hence clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and term loans during the year. Hence the provision of clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to it.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under report. Hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Hasmukh B Dedhia
Chartered Accountants Partner (F - 033494)
FRN: 105146W/W100621

UDIN: 20033494AAAAEZ3008

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020
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Annexure 3
(referred to in paragraph 10(f) of Independent Auditors’ Report)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31
March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of CARE
Ratings Limited (‘the Company’) as of that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Stan-
dalone Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2020, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial con-
trols based on the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven-
tion and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with ref-
erence to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial State-
ments for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls
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with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that;

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS Fi-
nancial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, includ-
ing the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Hasmukh B Dedhia
Chartered Accountants Partner (F - 033494)
FRN: 105146W/W100621

UDIN: 20033494AAAAEZ3008

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020
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BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note Number GGy Zl)g;ch £2 et %‘;’;h E5
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 2 7,283.40 7,323.47
Right of use assets 45 862.71 -
Other Intangible Assets 2 117.05 156.49
Intangible Assets under development 2 34.14 -
Financial Assets
Investments 3 25,154.16 27,433.54
Loans 4 554.94 268.30
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 5 7.74 9.44
Other Non-Current Assets 6 29.92 73.42
Total Non-Current Assets 34,044.06 35,264.66
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Investments 10,785.84 18,382.76
Trade Receivables 3,601.74 4,352.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents 392.70 1,832.63
E:lr]ililaBlils:sces other than Cash and Cash 0 9,726.51 220.44
Loans 11 63.72 64.51
Other Current Financial Assets 12 356.14 169.90
Contract Assets 13 30.14 68.70
Current Tax Asset (Net) 14 1,090.21 -
Other Current Assets 15 222.62 246.28
Total Current Assets 26,269.62 25,338.02
Total Assets 60,313.68 60,602.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 16 2,946.12 2,946.12
Other Equity 17 50,211.98 52,019.76
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities 18 648.90 -
Provisions 19 764.84 609.00
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note Number 5L Zl)gzch £4y <90 %‘;;Ch £8y
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 608.97 738.43
Total Equity & Non-Current Liabilities 55,180.81 56,313.31
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other Current Financial Liabilities 21 1,041.50 873.01
Contract Liabilities 22 2,430.48 1,694.01
Other Current Liabilities 23 1,229.21 1,151.59
Provisions 24 431.68 396.91
Current Tax Liability (Net) 25 - 173.85
Total Current Liabilities 5,132.87 4,289.37
Total Equity and Liabilities 60,313.68 60,602.68

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia]
Partner (F-033494)

Mumbai
Date : June 18, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARE Ratings Limited

[Ajay Mahajan]
Managing Director & CEO
DIN No- 05108777

[Adesh Kumar Gupta]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 00020403

[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020

[Najib Shah]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 08120210
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note Number ey gg’dggzﬂgarch WL gg’dsgll\;larch
Income
Revenue From Operations 26 21,910.23 29,735.74
Other Income 27 3,133.60 2,983.40
Total Revenue 25,043.83 32,719.14
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 28 9,669.54 9,354.03
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2&45 690.75 306.39
Finance Cost 29 73.87 -
Other Expenses 30 4,584.98 3,254.23
Total Expenses 15,019.14 12,914.65
Profit before Tax 10,024.69 19,804.49
Tax Expense
Current Tax 37 2,100.00 5,989.64
Deferred Tax Expense 37 (105.83) 316.16
Adjustment of Tax of Earlier Years (19.66) -
Total Tax Expense 1,974.51 6,305.80
Profit after Tax 8,050.18 13,498.68
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss (93.87) (313.29)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 23.62 109.48
profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit & Loss - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (70.25) (203.81)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 7,979.93 13,294.88
Earnings Per Share (Face Value Rs.10/- each)
- Basic 36 27.32 45.82
- Diluted 36 27.32 45.82
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Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CARE Ratings Limited
FRN: 105146 W/ W100621
[Hasmukh Dedhia] [Ajay Mahajan] [Adesh Kumar Gupta]
Partner (F-033494) Managing Director & CEO  Independent Director
DIN No- 05108777 DIN No. - 00020403
[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]
Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020

[Najib Shah]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 08120210
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit before tax 10,024.69 19,804.49
Adjustments for
Income from investments (1,210.42) (1,377.16)
Notional Income on Fair Value of Security Deposits (9.98) -
Unrealized Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss (1,819.47) (1,427.69)
Provision for Compensated Absence 96.31 133.05
Provision for Gratuity 81.61 (24.20)
Provision for Leave Travel Allowance 12.69 26.31
Provision for Bad Debts 712.19 124.75
Bad Debts written off 237.38 64.21
Deferred Lease expenses - 10.40
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 10.03 (2.81)
ESOP Expense 534.51 1,273.73
Profit on sale of investments - (60.62)
Amortisation of bonds 17.09 17.04
Finance cost on Lease Liabilities 73.87 -
Depreciation 690.75 306.39
Operating Profit before working capital changes 9,451.25 18,867.89
Movements in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Financial Assets (9,874.97) (1,014.53)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets 30.83 (45.46)
Decrease/(Increase) in Current Financial Assets 38.56 (0.93)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 23.67 (68.87)
Decrease/(Increase) in Financial Liabilities (76.44) (93.42)
Decrease/(Increase) in Contract Liabilities 736.48 (289.91)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Liabilities 77.62 (150.48)
Total Movements in working capital (9,044.25) (1,663.60)
Taxes paid (3,344.41) (6,127.94)
Net cash from operating activities .............. (1) (2,937.41) 11,076.34
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Income from investments 1,210.42 1,377.16
Sale of fixed assets 22.20 2.81
Purchase of fixed assets & capital advance (385.80) (2,638.91)
Loan Given (300.00) -
Purchase of investments (2,700.00) (16,374.22)
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Redemption of investments 14,252.53 25,738.47
Net cash from investing activities..............(2) 12,099.35 8,105.31
Cash flows from Financing Activities

Dividend and Dividend Tax paid (10,299.95) (19,534.38)
Repayment of Lease Liability (228.05) -
Payment of Interest on Lease Liability (73.87) -
Net cash from financing activities......... (3) (10,601.87) (19,534.38)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1+2+3) (1,439.93) (352.73)
Cash And Cash Equivalents at the Beginning 1,832.63 2,185.36
Cash And Cash Equivalents at the End 392.70 1,832.63

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

CARE Ratings Limited

[Hasmukh Dedhia]
Partner (F-033494)

[Ajay Mahajan]
Managing Director & CEO
DIN No- 05108777

[Bharat Adnani]
Chief Financial Officer
M.No. 112238

Mumbai
Date : June 18, 2020

Mumbai
Date : June 18, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

[Adesh Kumar Gupta]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 00020403

[Navin Jain]
Company Secretary
ACS A10703

[Najib Shah]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 08120210
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity Share Capital
For the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at April, 01, 2019

Changes in Equity Share
Capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2020

2,946.12

2,946.12

For the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at April, 01, 2018

Changes in Equity Share
Capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2019

2,946.12

2,946.12
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2020

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

a. Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve represents nominal value of shares credited at the time of buyback of shares.

b. Securities Premium Reserve
Securities Premium Reserve is credited when the shares are issued at premium. It will be utilized in accordance with the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares, equity related
expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

c. Employees Stock Options Outstanding Reserve
The Company has Share Options Scheme under which option to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to
selected employees. Refer Note 38 for further details of this plan.

d. General Reserve
The Company has transferred a portion of the net profits of the Company before declaring dividends to General Reserve.
Mandatory transfer to General Reserve is not required under the Act, 2013.

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants CARE Ratings Limited

FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia] [Ajay Mahajan] [Adesh Kumar Gupta] [Najib Shah]

Partner (F-033494) Managing Director & CEO  Independent Director Independent Director
DIN No- 05108777 DIN No. - 00020403 DIN No. - 08120210
[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]

Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020
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the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 1:

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

Company Overview:

CARE Ratings Limited (the Company), commenced its operations in April 1993 and has established itself as the leading credit
rating agency of India. The Company provides various credit ratings that helps corporates to raise capital for their various
requirements and assists the investors to form an informed investment decision based on the credit risk and their own risk-
return expectations. The Company has its registered office and head office both located in Mumbai. In addition, CARE Ratings
has regional offices at Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Cochin, Coimbatore, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Kolkata, New
Delhi and Pune.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, the relevant provision of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.

The Standalone financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 18, 2020

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:

i Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss

ii. Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation

iii.  Equity settled share based payments measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current
The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current/ Non-Current classification of
its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

i It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

iii. Itis expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv.  The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2020

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

i It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

iii. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option
of the counterparty does not affect this classification.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(suojepue;s) syuswalels jeloue ULy

c. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit
& Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

d. Capital advances, Capital Work in Progress and Intangibles under development
Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets.
Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct
costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
Expenditure on development eligible for capitalization are carried as intangible assets under development where such assets
are not yet ready for their intended use.

e. Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount over its useful life and is provided on a straight-line
basis over such useful lives as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on additions is being provided on Pro rata basis from the date of such additions.
Depreciation on sale or disposal is provided on Pro rata basis till the date of such sale or disposal.

f. Intangible Assets and Amortization
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses thereon, if any. An
intangible asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future economic benefit attributable to the assets will flow to the
enterprise and where its costs can be reliably measured. The Company determine the amortization period as the period over
which future economic benefit will flow to the Company after taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software is amortized over the period of 3 years.

g. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
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internal/ external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Reversal of impairment losses
recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that impairment losses recognized for the assets no longer
exist or have decreased.

h. Financial Instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instru-
ment of another entity. Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes party to contractu-
al provisions of the relevant instrument.

Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to
the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at Amortised Cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (“FVTOCI”) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
i.  Amortized Cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
In case of financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost, any interest income, foreign exchange gains or
losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii.  Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Afinancial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iii. Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the (l) or (ii) above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Investment in Subsidiaries :
The Company’s equity investments in its Subsidiaries are carried at cost.

Investment in Equity Instruments designated to be classified as FVTOCI

The Company carries certain equity instruments which are not held for trading. The Company has elected the irrevocable
option to measure such instruments at FVTOCI since initial recognition. Movements in fair value of these investments are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and the gain or loss will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on
disposal of these investments. Dividends from these investments are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the
Company’s right to receive dividends is established.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘Other Financial Liabilities’.
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Financial Liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial
recognition as FVTPL: Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at Amortised Cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost on initial recognition.
For the liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to
the short maturity of these instruments.

(suojepue;s) syuswalels jeloue ULy

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial
assets other than those measured at (FVTPL). Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount
equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables, the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the
basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a
financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
Discharged or cancelled or expires.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand that are readily convertible into cash which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

j- Revenue Recognition
Rating Income (Including Surveillance Income)
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured.

Rating income is measured and recognised based on percentage of completion method. Major portion of Initial and surveillance
rating fees is recognised on the date of rating based on efforts and balance portion of it is over the twelve months from the
date of rating. As a matter of prudent policy and on the basis of past experience of recoverability of income, fees in respect of
certain defined categories of clients are recognized when there is reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.

Income on subscription to information services primarily pertains to sale of research reports and the income thereon is
recognized on accrual basis.
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the year ended March 31, 2020

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments viz. investment in PSU Bonds is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Dividend Income

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Sale of Investments
Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment as determined at the end of the previous year is recognised
as profit or loss on sale / redemption on investment on trade date of transaction.

Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ using the modified retrospective method, under which
the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in retained earnings at April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the comparative
information has not been restated.

The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses the contract as, or containing, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether the contract involves the use of an identified
asset, the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Company as a lessee

On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of all the remaining
lease payments, discounted using rate that matches opportunity cost of Investment at April 1, 2019 whereas the Company has
elected to measure right-of-use asset at its carrying amount as if Ind AS 116 had been applied since the lease commencement
date, but discounted using rate that matches opportunity cost of Investment at April 1, 2019. The Company has elected not
to recognise a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for leases for which the lease term ends within twelve months of April 1,
2019 and has accounted for these leases as short-term leases. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For new lease contracts, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease agreements in which it is the lessee in the balance sheet. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using rate that matches opportunity cost of
Investment.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or when the lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a
separate lease. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the related right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs less any lease incentives received.
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Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-use asset are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset or the end of the lease term, whichever is
shorter. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of the underlying property
and equipment. In the balance sheet, the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are presented separately.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liability has been presented in Note 18 “Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities”, Note No. 21 “Other Current Financial
Liabilities” and Right-of-use asset has been presented in Note 2 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Translation of Foreign Currency Items

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the
Balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Non- monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost of foreign currencies are not translated.

. Employee Benefit Expense

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for
gratuity payment to the employees.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method
and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employee’s services.

Re-measurement (comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets, etc.) of defined benefit plans in respect of
post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. Re-measurement recognised in Other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.
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Defined Contribution Plan
Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, for which both the
employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The
contributions as specified under the law are made to the Government Provident Fund monthly.

Other Employee Benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave in the period the
related service is rendered. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Income Taxes:

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in the comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCl is recognised in equity or OCl and not in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

Earnings Per Share
The basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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p. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is

remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never
be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and
is recognised.

. Share Based Payments
Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such
that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments
Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per
share.

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s management to make decisions for

which discrete financial information is available.

Note 1(A):

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas
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of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

a. Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment:
The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an
asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of
a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets

b. Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs for valuation techniques are
taken from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

c. Revenue
The Company recognizes portion of rating fee income commensurate with the efforts involved based on percentage completion
method.
The Company uses various judgments and estimates to assess the efforts required for completion of various activities in the
rating process. Based on assessment, the Company defines the percentage completion to be applied to measure in- come to
be recognized from initial rating and surveillance during the year.
As a matter of prudent policy and on the basis of past experience of recoverability of income, fees in respect of certain defined
categories of clients are recognized when there is reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.

d. Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation
and other employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

e. Expected Credit Losses on Financial Assets
The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of collection.
The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Company’s past history, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

f. Share-Based Payments
The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes model to determine
the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.
This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models
used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 38.

g. Leases
Ind Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the right to use an underlying
asset including optional periods, when an entity is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend (or not to terminate)
a lease. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee to
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exercise the option when determining the lease term. The option to extend the lease term are included in the lease term, if
it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the option. The Company reassess the option when significant events or
changes in circumstances occur that are within the control of the lessee.
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Note 3

Investments - Non Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
S As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Nos Amount Nos Amount

Unquoted:
Investments measured at cost
Equity Instruments:
Subsidiaries
Face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid:
CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited 80,13,500 1,057.84 80,13,500 1,057.84
CARE Advisory Research &Training Limited 44,99,950 450.00 44,99,950 450.00
Face value of NPR 100 each fully paid:
CARE Ratings Nepal Limited 2,55,000 159.91 2,55,000 159.91
Face value of USD 1 each fully paid:
CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited 3,12,001 205.15 3,12,001 205.15
Investment measured at Fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Face value of USD 22,600 each
fully paid:
ARC Ratings Holdings Limited 20 287.27 20 242.10
Face value of RM 1 each fully paid:
Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad 20,00,000 1,093.19 20,00,000 1,123.63
Investment measured at Fair value through Profit &
Loss
0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable
preference shares
CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited 50,00,000 670.94 50,00,000 613.44
Total Unquoted Investments 3,924.30 - 3,852.07
Quoted:
Investment measured at Amortised Cost
Tax free Bonds 3,676.71 3,693.81
Investment measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss
Investment in Various Debt Mutual Funds Schemes 17,553.15 19,887.66
Total Quoted Investments 21,229.86 23,581.47
Total Investments 25,154.16 27,433.54
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 21,229.86 23,581.47
Market Value of Quoted Investments 21,708.47 23,905.84
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 3,924.30 3,852.07
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment - -
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Note 4
Loans - Non Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Unsecured and Considered Good
Loan to CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited (wholly owned 400.00 100.00
subsidiary)
Loans to Employees 50.45 60.97
Security Deposits 104.49 107.33
Total 554.94 268.30
Note 5
Other Non-Current Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Accrued Interest on Loans to Employees 7.74 9.44
Total 7.74 9.44
Note 6
Other Non-Current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Unsecured, considered Good
Capital Advances 14.38 27.05
Others 15.54 46.37
Total 29.92 73.42
Note 7
Investments — Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Quoted:
Investment measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss:
Investment in Various Open - Ended Debt Mutual Funds 6,688.69 18,382.76
Investment in Various Fixed Maturity Plans of Debt Mutual Funds 4,097.15 -
Total Quoted Investments 10,785.84 18,382.76
Total Unquoted Investments - -
Total Current Investments 10,785.84 18,382.76
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 10,785.84 18,382.76
Market Value of Quoted Investments 10,785.84 18,382.76

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments

Aggregate Investment Amount impairment in value of Investment
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Note 8
Trade Receivables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars I ks
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unsecured
Considered good 3,601.74 4,352.80
Significant increase in Credit Risk 1,001.54 226.48
4,603.28 4,579.28
Less: Allowance for credit losses (Refer Note 48) (1,001.54) (226.48)
Total 3,601.74 4,352.80
Note 9
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.01 0.98
Balances with Banks
On Current Account 106.10 1,021.49
Other Bank Balances
Deposit Accounts (less than 3 months) 284.47 810.16
Prepaid Cards 1.12 -
Total 392.70 1,832.63
Note 10
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unclaimed Dividend Account 29.84 22.60
Money Due for Refund of Share Application - 12.62
Fixed Deposits 9,696.67 185.22
Total 9,726.51 220.44
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Note 11
Loans — Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars ICL L
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unsecured and Considered Good
Loan to Employees 38.48 42.16
Security Deposits 25.24 22.35
Total 63.72 64.51
Note 12
Other Current Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Accrued on Investments 322.71 104.79
Interest Accrued on Loans to Employees 2.81 4.24
Other receivables 30.62 60.87
Total 356.14 169.90
Note 13
Contract Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unbilled Revenue 30.14 131.57
Less: Loss Allowance - (62.87)
Total 30.14 68.70
Note 14
Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advance payment of taxes (Net of Provision for tax - Rs. 48,015.43
1,090.21 -
Lakhs)
Total 1,090.21 -
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Note 15
Other Current Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars G0 Gy
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Prepaid Expenses 153.43 143.40
Other Advances 21.30 23.46
Other Receivables 47.89 79.42
Total 222.62 246.28
Note 16
Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs)
i As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised 3,00,00,000 3,000.00 3,00,00,000 3,000.00
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 2,94,61,214 2,946.12 2,94,61,214 2,946.12
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Total 2,94,61,214 2,946.12 2,94,61,214 2,946.12
16(a): List of shareholders holding more than 5% of Paid Up Equity Share Capital
. As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
tﬁiénsurance Corporation Of India and LIC P&GS 29.02,136 9.85% 29.02,136 9.85%
CRISIL Limited 26,22,431 8.90% 26,22,431 8.90%
Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited A/C - o
Aditya Birla Sun Life Dividend Yield Fund 17,87,077 6.07% i i
Frapklln Templeton In\./estment Funds and Franklin i i 22.34,890 759%
India Smaller Companies Fund
Stichting Depositary Apg Emerging Markets Equity P - - 20,14,700 6.84%
*Following companies are covered to calculate more than 5% shareholding.
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars : ;
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Franklin India Smaller Companies Fund - - 10,54,044 3.58%
Franklin Templeton Investment Funds - - 11,80,846 4.01%
Total - - 22,34,890 7.59%
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16(b): The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Nos. Nos.
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214
Add: Shares issued under Employee Stock Options Scheme (ESOS) - -
Equity Shares at the end of the year 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214

16(c): The Company does not have a Holding Company

16(d): Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts, including the terms and amounts:
For details of Shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Company: Refer Note 38.

16(e): Terms/Right attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

16(f): Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Note 17
Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Capital Redemption Reserve 22.50 22.50
Securities Premium Reserve 6,517.63 6,517.63
Employees Stock Options Outstanding Reserve 2,351.56 2,138.63
General Reserve 19,799.18 19,477.59
Retained Earnings 21,419.50 23,776.52
Other Comprehensive Income 101.61 86.89
Total Other Equity 50,211.98 52,019.76

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
A. Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve represents nominal value of shares credited at the time of buyback of shares.
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B. Securities Premium Reserve

“Securities Premium Reserve is credited when the shares are issued at premium. It will be utilized in accordance with the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares, equity related

expenses like underwriting costs, etc.”

C. Employees Stock Options Outstanding Reserve

The Company has Share Options Scheme under which option to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to se-

lected employees. Refer Note 38 for further details of this plan.

D. General Reserve

In earlier, the Company had transferred a portion of the net profits of the Company before declaring dividends to General Re-
serve. Mandatory transfer to General Reserve is not required under the Act.

Note 18
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 45) 648.90 -
Total 648.90 -
Note 19
Provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars GICL 4500
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for Gratuity - Non Current 109.51 40.00
Provision for Compensated Absence - Non Current 655.33 569.00
Total 764.84 609.00
Note 20
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars GICE A0
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred Tax Liability 1,524.47 1,202.63
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 915.07 881.07
Fair Valuation of Investments 609.40 321.56
Deferred Tax Asset 915.50 464.20
Provisions 679.05 452.62
Others 236.45 11.58
Total 608.97 738.43
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Note 21
Other Current Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sundry Creditors for Expenses
(a)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 6.05 33.26
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 62.49 64.32
and small enterprises
Other Liabilities 6.41 -
Unclaimed Dividend 29.84 22.60
Money Due for Refund for Share Application 12.62
Provision for Salary, Performance Related Pay & Commission 691.79 740.21
Lease Liabilities. (Refer Note 45) 244.92 -
Total 1,041.50 873.01
Note 22
(a) Contract Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars GICL 4500
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unearned Revenue 772.86 938.09
Advance from customers 1,657.62 755.92
Total 2,430.48 1,694.01

(b) Revenue recognized that was included in contract liability balance at the beginning of the period:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars G5CL 4500
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rating Income 1,421.52 1,775.68
Total 1,421.52 1,775.68
Note-23
Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars G500 3G
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Statutory Dues 820.20 1,068.46
Provision for expenses 409.01 83.13
Total 1,229.21 1,151.59
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Note 24
Provisions - Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars GG s
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Compensated Absence 109.60 99.62
Provision for Gratuity 207.51 195.41
Provision for Leave Travel Allowance 114.57 101.88
Total 431.68 396.91
Note 25
Current Tax Liability — Net (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars LU 49013
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax and TDS of Rs.) (PY - Net - 173.85
of Advance Tax & TDS FY. 2018-19 Rs.56,161.56 Lakhs)
Total - 173.85
Note 26
(a) Revenue From Operations (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sale of Services
Rating Income (including Surveillance) 21,852.09 29,477.88
Sale of Publications / Information Services 58.14 257.86
Total 21,910.23 29,735.74
Note 26
(b) Revenue recognized from past performance obligations: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rating Income 257.14 304.92
Total 257.14 304.92
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Note 27
Other Income (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Income 579.42 334.50
Dividend Income 658.56 1,042.66
Net gain on sale of investments (net) - 60.62
Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss 1,819.47 1,427.69
Miscellaneous Income 76.15 117.93
Total 3,133.60 2,983.40
Note 28
Employee Benefits Expense (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Salaries and Other Allowances 8,263.03 7,325.58
Contribution to Provident, Gratuity & Other Funds (Refer Note 33) 597.24 486.10
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer Note 38) 534.51 1,273.73
Staff Welfare Expenses 274.76 268.62
Total 9,669.54 9,354.03
Note 29
Finance Cost (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars o s
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Finance cost on Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 45) 73.87 -
Total Finance Cost 73.87 -
Note 30
Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Electricity Charges 128.07 118.66
Postage & Telephone Charges 106.10 105.35
Rent 1.34 297.54
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 210.19 228.09
Directors’ Sitting Fees 123.50 94.50
Insurance Premium 34.99 16.67
Legal Expenses 153.04 28.66
Professional Fees 708.62 255.76
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Note 30
Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Business Development Associate Fees 543.69 725.85
Rates & Taxes 247.66 44.85
Repairs & Maintenance
- Buildings 97.63 94.84
- Others 204.23 162.60
Advertisement and Sponsorship Expenses 1.37 51.27
Security, Housekeeping & Office Supplies 222.77 182.17
Membership & Subscription 87.93 91.68
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 712.19 124.75
Bad Debts written off 237.38 64.21
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit Fees (including Limited Review Fees) 24.30 19.50
- Tax Audit Fees 1.20 1.00
- Other Services 0.95 3.45
- Reimbursement to Auditors 0.65 0.90
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 46) 526.82 383.65
Miscellaneous Expenses 210.36 158.28
Total 4,584.98 3,254.23

Note 31: Contingent Liabilities (Ind AS 37)
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (to the extent not provided for): (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Contingent Liability on account of Income Tax 72.51 62.26

Particulars

B. Pending outcome of adjudication proceedings initiated by Regulator / Government agencies pertaining to certain Credit rat-
ings assigned by the Company to its clients, which is being responded by the Company, the Company has made provision for
penalty of Rs.100 Lakhs in one of the case on prudent basis.

C. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited &
others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic
wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision has
been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal.

Pending decision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact, if any, is not ascertainable and conse-
quently no effect has been given in the accounts.

Note 32: Capital and Other Commitments

The amounts pending on account of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for is 15.32 Lacs (March
31, 2019 — 17.45 Lakhs)
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The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year
end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/accounting standards for material
foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of account.

Note 33: Employee Benefits (Ind AS 19)

A. Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving the services of
the Company and is in accordance with the rules of the Company for payment of gratuity. The Company accounts for the liability
based on actuarial valuation. The Company has created a trust for future payment of gratuities which is funded through gratui-
ty-cum-life insurance scheme of LIC of India.

Inherent Risk on above:
The plan is defined in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, this exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inade-
quate return on underlying plan assets. This may resultin an increase in cost of providing these benefits to the employees in future.
Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risk.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,

2020 2019
(i) Change in Present value of Obligations:
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 890.80 615.81
Current Service Cost 164.15 114.67
Interest Cost 69.39 48.46
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligations Due to change in Financial Assumptions 90.44 71.30
ﬁtszztfnrr;ic()cr-:?ins)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic 2710 69.59
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligations Due to Experience (17.48) 44.24
Benefits Paid (154.07) (73.28)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligations 1,070.33 890.81
(ii) Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:
Opening Fair Value of the Plan Assets 655.38 356.20
Interest income 51.05 28.03
Expected Return on Plan Assets (8.54) 3.49
Contribution by the Employer 209.47 340.94
Benefits Paid (154.07) (73.28)
Closing Fair Value of the Plan Assets 753.29 655.38
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,

2020 2019
(iii) Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation at the end of the period (1,070.32) (890.80)
Fair Value of Plan Assets 753.29 655.38
Net Asset / (Liability) (317.03) (235.42)
(iv) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 164.15 114.67
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations 18.34 20.43
Past Service Cost - -
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 182.49 135.10
(v) Re-measurements recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl):
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 100.06 185.13
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.54 (3.49)
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income(OClI) 108.60 181.64
(vi) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation:
Within the next 12 months 61.41 54.25
Between 1 and 5 years 294.94 244.72
Between 5 and 10 years 449.67 320.62
10 Years and above 1,677.48 1,879.88
(vii) Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:*
Increase present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year 1,070.32 890.80
1% increase in discount rate (94.83) (82.87)
1% decrease in discount rate 111.72 98.00
1% increase in salary escalation rate 73.21 66.89
1% decrease in salary escalation rate (68.91) (64.97)
1% increase in employee turnover rate 17.41 24.13
1% decrease in employee turnover rate (19.71) (27.61)
(viii) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan:
Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2020 2019
(ix) Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.59% 7.79%
Expected Return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 6.59% 7.79%
Turnover Rate 5.00% 4.00%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

Mortality tables (2006-08) (2006-08)
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
(x) Weighted Average duration of Defined benefit obligation 11 14

* The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The present value of the projected benefit obliga-
tion has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as
applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognized in the balance sheet. There was no change in the methods
and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(xi) Basis used to determine Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets:
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments
of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

(xii) Salary Escalation Rate:
Salary escalation rates are determined taking into account seniority, promotion, inflation and other relevant factors.

(xiii) Asset Liability Matching (ALM) strategy:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962,
this generally reduces ALM risk.

(xiv) The Company’s expected contribution during next year is Rs.207.50 Lakhs.

B. Compensated Absences:

“The compensated absences cover the Company’s liability for earned leave. Long term compensated absences are determined
on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method. Short term
compensated absences are provided for based on estimates.

Amount recognized as an expense in respect of Compensated Absences is Rs. 581.38 Lakhs (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 539.66 Lakhs).

C. Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount recognized as an expense and included in Note 28 under the head “Contribution to Provident and other Funds” of
Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs.298.25 Lakhs (March 31, 2019- Rs.250.09 Lakhs)
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D. Superannuation Benefits:

Superannuation Benefits is contributed by the Company to Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) @ 10% of basic salary with

respect to certain employees.

Contribution to Superannuation Fund contribution charged to Statement of Profit & Loss in Note 28 under the head “Contribution

to Provident and other Funds” is Rs. 47.00 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 48.34 Lakhs).

Note 34: Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108):

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of ratings. As per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, specified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, there are no reportable operating or geographical segments applicable to the Company.

Note 35: Related Party Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 24
A. List of Related Parties where control exists:

% Shareholding & Voting Power
Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00%
CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00%
CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited Subsidiary 78.00% 78.00%
CARE Ratings (Nepal) Limited Subsidiary 51.00% 51.00%
B. Other Related Parties with whom there were transactions during the year:
Name of Related Parties ‘ Nature of Relationship
Key Management Personnel:
Mr. S.B Mainak (Upto February 11, 2020) Chairman

Ms. Sadhana Dhamane (upto August 06, 2019) Non-executive Director

Mr. V Chandrasekaran Non-Executive Director

Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director

Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai Independent Director

Mr. Najib Shah (w.e.f. July 17, 2019) Independent Director

Dr. M Mathisekaran (w.e.f. August 19,2019) Independent Director

Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan (w.e.f. August 19, 2019) Independent Director

Mr. Mehul Pandya Executive Director

Mr. Rajesh Mokashi (upto July 17, 2019) Managing Director & CEO

Mr. T.N.Arun Kumar (Upto July 17, 2019) Executive Director

Mr. T.N.Arun Kumar (w.e.f. July 17, 2019) Interim CEO

Mr. NitinKumar Agarwal (Upto July 18, 2019) Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Bharat Assudomal Adnani (w.e.f. August 19, 2019) Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Navin Kumar Jain Executive Director & Company Secretary
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Related Party Relationship Nature of Transactions ICL %;r;h Ely | LG %‘I";h =k
Advance given 9.75 27.05
Loan given 300.00 100.00
Wholly Interest on Loan 25.44 7.48
CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited Owned Reimbursement of Expenses 3.71 1.57
Subsidiary Professional fees 66.25 22.16
Software development 61.91 56.20
Dividend received 0.50 0.52
CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited Subsidiary Royalty income 11.19 6.84
Training Fees paid 2.38 2.88
CARE Advisory Research and Training \évwh:!\é Business Support Services 29.74 23.88
Limited Subsidiary Reimbursement of Expenses 9.06 0.28
Professional Fees 9.38 -
CARE Ratings Nepal Limited Subsidiary Dividend Income 33.55 -
Royalty income 16.02 7.68
D. Outstanding balances: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of the Related Party Relationship Nature of Transactions A;Zt Zl\gggch A;;’t zl\gg;ch

Receivable 23.75 2.18
CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited | /o0 Investments 1,728.78 1,671.28
Subsidiary Loan Advances 400.00 100.00
Consultancy Fees Payable 6.30 7.24
Investments 205.15 205.15

CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited Subsidiary
Royalty Receivable 11.19 6.84
CARE Advisory Research and Training \évwhsgg Investments 450.00 450.00
Limited Subsidiary Receivable/(Payable) (net) 18.83 -0.50
Investments 159.91 159.91

CARE Ratings Nepal Limited Subsidiary
Receivable 19.42 18.26

No amount in respect of the related parties have been written off/back are provided for during the year.
Related party relationship has been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.
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E. Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction/Relationship M:f:I: ;gd;gz 0 M:i:l: ;’;dsgl 9
4 4
Short Term Employee Benefits 400.85 544.58
Other Long Terms Benefits 10.13 20.73
Share Based Payments * 104.80 199.93
Directors’ Sitting Fees 123.50 94.50
Total Compensation 639.28 859.74

Remuneration does not include provision made for gratuity and compensated absence since the same is provided for the Compa-

ny as a whole based on actuarial valuation.

*Share based payments refer to amounts charged to the statement of Profit & Loss account, being charge on ESOP granted to Key
Management Personnel as per ESOS 2017 scheme based on Fair Value method.

Note 36: Earnings per Share (EPS) (Ind AS 33):

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

A) Basic EPS

(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Lacs) 8,050.18 13,498.68

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding(Nos.) 294.61 294.61

Basic Earnings Per Share (i)/(ii) 27.32 45.82

B) Diluted EPS

(i) Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding(Nos.) 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214

(ii) Add: Potential Equity Shares on exercise of option (Nos.) -

(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding for cal- 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214

culation of Dilutive EPS

Diluted EPS {(A)(i)/(B)(iii)} 27.32 45.82

Note 37: Income Taxes (Ind AS 12):

A. Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Current Tax 2,100.00 5,989.64
Deferred Tax (105.83) 316.16
Adjustment of Tax of Earlier Years (19.66) -
Total 1974.51 6305.80

162




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2020

B. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate:

e Annual Report 2019-20

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 34.94%
Tax Effect of Tax Exempt Income (2.39%) (2.29%)
Tax Effect of Non Deductible Expenses 2.92% 5.06%
Tax Effect of Allowances for Tax Purpose (6.00%) (5.87%)
Effective Tax Rate 19.70% 31.84%

The Government of India, on September 20, 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section
115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the
provisions/conditions defined in the said section. The Company has opted to pay the tax under section 115BAA of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Accordingly, (a) the provision for current and deferred tax has been determined at the rate of 25.17%, (b) the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as on April 1, 2019 have been restated at the rate of 25.17%.

Note 38: Share Based Payments (Ind AS 102):

The Company has granted 537908 options to its eligible employees in as per the ESOS Schemes, details are as under:

A. Employees Stock Option Scheme:

Particulars

ESOS 2017

Nos. of Options

5,37,908

Method of Accounting

Fair Value method

Vesting Plan

2 years from the date of grant i.e. September 01,2019

Exercise Period

2 years after the vesting period i.e. September 01,2021

Grant Date

September 01,2017

Exercise Price (Per Share)

Rs.1,139/- per share

Fair Value on the date of Grant of Option (Per Share)

Rs.1,506.65/- per share

Method of Settlement

Equity

B. Movement of Options granted:

R As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
ESOS (2017) ESOS (2017)

Options Outstanding at beginning of the year 4,77,458 5,24,108
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Lapsed during the year 61,838 46,650
Options Outstanding at the end of the year 4,15,620 4,77,458
Options unvested at the end of year - -
Options exercisable at the end of the year 4,15,620 4,77,458
Weighted Average exercise price 1,139 1,139

i. ESOS 2017: The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is Nil years

(Previous Year: 0.42 years).
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The ESOS compensation cost is amortized on a straight line basis over the total vesting period of the options. Accordingly for ESOS
2017,an amount of Rs.534.51 Lacs (Previous Year Rs.1,273.73 Lacs) has been charged to the current year Statement of Profit and
Loss.

C. Fair Valuation:
The fair value of the options used to compute proforma net profit and earnings per share have been done by an independent
valuer on the date of grant using Black - Scholes Formula. The key assumptions and the Fair Value are as under:

Particular ESOS 2017

Risk Free Interest Rate (%) 6.39%
Option Life (Years) 3 years
Expected Volatility 31.80%
Expected Dividend Yield (%) 1.86%
Weighted Average Fair Value per Option Rs.565.79

D. Details of the liabilities arising from the Share based payments were as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Total Carrying Amount 2,351.56 2,138.63

Note 39: Financial Instruments: Disclosure (Ind AS 107):

A. Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Ind AS 107): (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Financial assets at Amortized cost:

Investment (Non-Current) 3,676.71 3,693.81
Loans (Non-Current) 554.94 268.30
Loans (Current) 63.72 64.51
Trade Receivables 3,601.74 4,352.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents 392.70 1,832.63
Other Bank Balances 9,726.51 220.44
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 7.74 9.44
Other Current Financial Assets 356.14 169.90
Contract Assets 30.14 68.70
Financial assets at Fair Value through P&L:

Investment (Non-Current) 18,224.09 20,501.10
Investment (Current) 10,785.84 18,382.76
Financial assets at Fair Value through OCI:

Investment (Non-Current) 1,380.46 1,365.73
Total 48,800.73 50930.12
Financial liabilities at Amortized cost:

Other Current Financial Liability 1,041.50 873.01
Other Non-Current Financial Liability 648.90 -
Total 1690.40 873.01
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B. Investments in equity instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
As on March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020, The Company has investments in ARC Ratings holding Limited of 20 Ordinary
Shares of USD 22,600 each and 20,00,000 ordinary shares of RM 1 each in Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad. The Company
has opted to designate these investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income since these investments are
not held for trading.

The fair value of each of these investments are as below: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Financial assets at Fair Value through OCI:

- Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad 1,093.19 1,123.63
- ARC Ratings Holdings Limited 287.27 242.10
Total 1,380.46 1,365.73

The Company has received Rs.32.92 Lacs (Previous Year Rs.42.70 Lacs) as Dividend from Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad
and has recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss under Note 27 - Other Income. There has been no transfer in investment
during any period.

Note 40: Fair Value measurement (Ind AS 113):

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorizes the values into 3 levels. The inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1:
This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on Company specific estimates. The investment in mutual
funds are valued using the closing Net Asset Value based on the mutual fund statements received by the Company. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2

Level 3:

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. The fair
valuation of investment in Equity Shares of Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad and ARC Ratings Holdings Limited and invest-
ment in Preference share of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited is classified under Level 3. The details are given in the table below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As at March 31, 2020

Investments measured at:

Fair Value through OCI - - 1,380.46
Fair Value through Profit and Loss 6,688.69 21,650.30 670.94
Amortised cost 3,676.72 - -
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As at March 31, 2019

Investments measured at:

Fair Value through OC - - 1,365.73
Fair Value through Profit and Loss 18,382.76 19,887.66 613.44
Amortised cost 3,693.81 - -

The Company has utilized the expertise of the in-house team to value the investments in Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad.
For investment in Preference Shares of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited, the Company has availed services of in-house valua-
tion team and registered external valuer. The auditors have relied upon the reports provided by the said valuers.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e The fair values of the quoted investments/units of mutual fund schemes are based on market price/net asset value at the
reporting date.

e For Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad, valuation is based on average of book value method and price to earnings method.

e The Company had adopted discounted cash flow Method for Valuation of Investments in ARC Ratings Holdings Ltd.

e  For Investment in Preference share investment in CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited, valuation is done based on Black &
Scholes option pricing Model and discounted cash flow method. Market Coupon Rate and Volatility are the significant unob-
servable inputs. Discount rate used are: March 31, 2020: 7.80% and March 31, 2019: 8.40% 0.5% decrease in discount rate
will result in increase in fair value by Rs..6.67 Lacs. Similarly, 0.5% increase in discount rate will result in decrease in fair value
by Rs.6.61 Lacs.

e The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. The discount rates
used is based on management estimates.

Note 41: Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Ind AS 107):

The Company is a Debt Free Company. The principal financial liabilities of the Company comprise of Other liabilities and Provisions
which arise on account of normal course of business. The Company’s principal financial assets include Investments, Trade Receiva-
bles, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances.

The Company is exposed to Market Risk, Credit Risk, and Liquidity Risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the manage-
ment of these risks. The Company’s senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appro-
priate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives.

The Management of the Company updates its Board of Directors on periodic basis about various risks to the business and status of
various activities planned to mitigate the risk.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

A. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of such financial instrument will be impacted because of vari-
ous financial and non-financial market factors. The financial instruments affected by market risk include the investment in Mutual
Funds and investment in Equity Shares of companies incorporated and operating outside India.

There is no Interest rate risk since the Company does not hold any financial instrument whose fair value or future cash flows will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USD, MRF and MUR on financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The
exposure to foreign currency for all other currencies are not material. The Company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars A i i
Currenc g mount in : Amount in
y Amount in FC INR Amount in FC INR

Other Receivable MUR 6.06 11.19 3.56 6.68
Trade Receivables usb 0.15 11.45 0.03 2.00
Bank Balances

SBI Maldives — MRF Account MRF 0.47 1.92 0.47 1.92
SBI Maldives - USD Account usb 0.01 0.41 0.01 0.41

Foreign Currency Sensitivity on unhedged exposure:

1% increase in foreign exchange rate will have the following impact on profit before tax: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
MUR 0.11 0.07
usbD 5.04 5.34
MRF 0.02 0.02

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount.

B. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating (primarily Trade Receivables), investing and financing
activities including Mutual Fund Investments, Investment in Debt Securities, Bank Balance, Deposits with Bank, Security Deposits,
Loans to Employees and other financial instruments.

The Company measures and manages its Credit Risk by diversification of its surplus funds into various mutual fund schemes based
on its investment policy.

Total Trade receivable & Contract assets as on March 31, 2020 is Rs. 3,631.87 Lacs (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 4,214.92 Lacs).
The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer.

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix
to mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for
longer period and involves higher risk.

As per the provision matrix receivables are classified into different bucket based on the overdue period, buckets range from 12
months - 18 months, 18 months - 24 months and more than 24 months. The norms of provisioning on the same range are from
50% - 100% (which was 25% - 100% in previous year). The management, on a case to case basis may decide to provide or write of
at a higher rate with reasons whenever felt necessary.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Opening Provision 289.35 164.60
Add: Provided (utilised) during the Year (Refer Note 48) 712.19 124.75
Closing Provision 1,001.54 289.35

C. Liquidity Risk

Liquidityriskisthe risk that the Companywillnotbeableto meetitsfinancial obligationsasthey falldue. The cash flows and liquidity
of Company is monitored under the control of the management. The objective is to ensure that Company’s surplus fund are not kept
idleandinvestedinthefinancialinstrumentsonly afteradequate review of suchinstrumentand approval ofthe management.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities & investments based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 Less than 1 Year 1to 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Other Financial Liabilities 1,041.50 648.90 - 1,690.40
Total 1,041.50 648.90 - 1,690.40
Investments in:
Mutual Funds 10,785.84 17,553.15 - 28,338.99
Tax Free Bonds - 1,815.33 1,861.38 3,676.71
Preference shares of Subsidiaries - 670.94 - 670.94
Other Companies - 1,380.46 - 1,380.46
Non-current Loans - 554.94 - 554.94
Other Non-current Financial Assets - 7.74 - 7.74
Trade Receivables 3,601.74 - - 3,601.74
Cash and Cash Equivalents 392.70 - - 392.70
E:Eil;;zftr;ces other than Cash and Cash 9,724.04 547 i 9,726.51
Current Loans 63.72 - - 63.72
Other Financial Assets 356.14 - - 356.14
Contract Assets 30.14 - - 30.14
Total 24,954.32 21,985.03 1,861.38 48,800.73
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 Year 1to 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Other Financial Liabilities 873.01 - - 873.01
Total 873.01 - - 873.01
Investments in:
Mutual Funds 18,382.76 19,887.66 - 38,270.42
Tax Free Bonds - 1,823.52 1,870.29 3,693.81
Preference shares of Subsidiaries - 613.44 - 613.44
Other Companies - 1,365.73 - 1,365.73
Non-current Loans - 268.30 - 268.30
Other Non-current Financial Assets - 9.44 - 9.44
Trade Receivables 4,352.80 - - 4,352.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,832.63 - - 1,832.63
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash 220.44 - - 220.44
Equivalents
Current Loans 64.51 - - 64.51
Other Financial Assets 169.90 - - 169.90
Contract Assets 68.70 - - 68.70
Total 25,091.74 23,968.09 1,870.29 50,930.12
Note 42: Distribution made and proposed (Ind AS 1): (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31, 2020 31, 2019
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2019:Rs. 12/- per share & Interim
Dividend for the period ended till March 31, 2020 Rs. 17/- per share (March 31, 8,543.75 10,900.65
2019: Rs.37 per share)
DDT on final dividend 1,756.19 2,240.66
Total Dividend paid 10,299.94 13,141.31
Proposed dividends on Equity shares: - -
{,I\zz,l.i:v;fgglf;r I’;fs\.elgt/e-a;eerni(;(:e(;n March 31, 2020: Rs.2.50/- Per share, 736.53 3,535.35
DDT on proposed dividend - 726.70
Total dividend proposed 736.53 4262.05

Note 43: Capital Management (Ind AS 1):

The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity. The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital

requirements.
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The cash surplus are currently invested in income generating Mutual funds units, Fixed Deposits and Government Securities which
in line with its Investment Policy. Safety of Capital is of prime importance to ensure availability of capital for operations. Invest-
ment objective is to provide safety and adequate return on surplus funds.

The Company does not have any borrowings.

Note 44: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from October 2, 2006,
certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019

Particulars

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the

6.05 33.26
year end

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) , along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the
accounting year

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 0.00

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding 0.00 -
the interest specified under this Act.

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 45: Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group adopted IND AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on Aprill,
2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of
initial application. Consequently, the group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at
the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to
be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use’ asset of Rs.1,099.58 Lacs and a lease
liability of Rs.1,121.87 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to Rs.22.29 Lacs was debited to retained
earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the operating profit, net profit for the period and earnings per
share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end
date.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on
the date of initial application.

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
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4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, for all contracts
as on April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

The opportunity cost of investment rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 7.25% for a period varying from 1 to
5 years.
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1,099.58
Prepaid Rent Expense 42.26
Additions -
Deletions -
Depreciation 279.14
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 862.70

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 279.14
Interest expense on lease liabilities 73.87
Expense relating to short-term leases 1.34
Total 354.35

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Current Lease Liabilities 244.92
Non-Current Lease Liabilities 648.90
Total 893.82

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1,121.87
Additions -
Deletions -
Finance Cost accrued during the period 73.87
Payment of Lease Liabilities 301.92

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 893.82
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Less than one year 244.92 294.22
One to Five years 648.90 988.10

More than Five years

Note 46: Corporate Social Responsibility

Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is Rs. 388.71 Lacs (Previous Year Rs.381.28 Lacs). Amount

spent during the year on the following:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2020

PM Cares Fund 200.00
Project Balgruh (Somaiya Group) 20.00
Akshaya Patra Foundation ( Mid day Meal) 11.00
Help A Child (Somaiya Group) 19.00
Pratham 16.80
NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited 30.00
Girivanvasi Educational Trust (Somaiya Group) 6.00
Seva Sahayog Foundation 11.25
Meljol 20.00
Seva Sahayog Foundation 12.58
Seva Sahayog Foundation 27.19
The Fine Arts Society, Chembur 23.00
Concern India Foundation 20.00
Concern India Foundation 25.00
Save the Children India 17.50
Save the Children India 7.50
Sri Sathya Sai Health & Education Trust 6.00
Rotary Club of Navi Mumbai (Vashi) 3.50
Rotary Club of Navi Mumbai (Vashi) 0.50
Bombay Hospital Trust 50.00
Total 526.82

Note 47: Disclosure as per Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

a. Details of Inter-Corporate Loans / Guarantees granted during the year as below:
During the year FY 19-20 till March 31, 2020, the Company had granted loan amounting to Rs.300 Lacs (closing balance -

Rs.400 Lacs) to its wholly owned subsidiary CARE Risk Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
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Details of Investment made during the year as below: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of the Compan Holding / Subsidi- Year Ended March | Year Ended March
pany ary / Associate 31, 2020 31,2019
CARE Ratings (Nepal) Limited Subsidiary - -
CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited Subsidiary - -
CARE Risk Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary - -
Credit Advisory Research & Training Limited Subsidiary - -
Note 48

The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its financial statements based on the internal and external
information upto the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company expects to recover the carrying amounts
of its investments, intangible assets, trade receivables & other assets. The Company will continue to closely monitor the future
economic conditions and assess its impact on its financial statements. Due to current situation, the Company has made an accel-
erated provision of Rs.700 Lacs on account of trade receivables.

Considering the Company’s nature of business, management does not anticipate any serious challenges/ significant impact on
continuity of its business.

Note 49
Corresponding figures of previous financial year has been regrouped/rearranged to conform to current year’s grouping.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants CARE Ratings Limited

FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia] [Ajay Mahajan] [Adesh Kumar Gupta] [Najib Shah]

Partner (F-033494) Managing Director & CEO  Independent Director Independent Director
DIN No- 05108777 DIN No. - 00020403 DIN No. - 08120210
[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]

Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020
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To the Members of
CARE Ratings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of CARE Ratings Limited (‘the Holding Company’), its
Subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2020, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder; and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

3. Attention is drawn to Note 48 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements which describes the impacts of COVID-19
Pandemic on the financial statements as also on business operations of the Group, assessment thereof by the management
of the Holding Company based on its internal, external and macro factors, involving certain estimation uncertainties. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Con-
solidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters
Recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures

Our audit approach

We assessed the entity’s process to comply with the applicable

of revenues and other related balances in accordance with
Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” (new
accounting standard) and other regulatory requirements

Ind AS and other regulatory requirements

Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and

operating effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive

testing as follows:

e Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
implementation of the revenue accounting standard.
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The recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures
of revenues and other related balances in accordance with Ind
AS 115 and other regulatory requirements involve significant
judgements and estimation as also timing of recognition by the
management of the Holding Company. Further, the recognition
of revenue involves various complexities with respect to nature
and category of clients of the Holding Company.

We determined this matter to be a key audit matter due to the
complexity associated to comply with the applicable Ind AS
and other regulatory requirements. [Note 1(h) to the Consoli-
dated Ind AS Financial Statements]

e Evaluated the reasonableness of the significant
judgements and estimation involved in the process.

e Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts, and
tested the operating effectiveness of the internal control,
relating to timing and extent of recognition of revenue
therefrom based on the policy adopted by the Company.

e Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and
performed the following procedures:

e Read, analysed and identified the
performance obligations in these contracts.

e Compared these performance obligations with that
identified and recorded by the entity.

e Sample of revenue disaggregated by type and service
offerings was tested with the performance obligations
specified in the underlying contracts.

distinct

Regulations - Litigations and claims

The Holding Company is exposed to various laws and regula-
tions. In this regulatory environment, there is an inherent risk
of litigations and claims. Consequently, provisions and contin-
gent liabilities disclosures may arise from direct and indirect
tax proceedings, legal proceedings, including regulatory and
other government / department proceedings, as well as out of
investigations by the authorities.

As at March 31, 2020, the Holding Company’s has ascertained
contingent liabilities of Rs. 72.51 Lakhs and also has unascer-
tained liabilities (refer note 32 to the Consolidated Ind AS Fi-
nancial Statements)

e Management applies significant judgement in estimating
the likelihood of the future outcome in each case when
considering whether, and how much, to provide or in
determining the required disclosure for the potential ex-
posure of each matter. This is due to the highly complex
nature and magnitude of the legal matters involved along
with the fact that resolution of tax and legal proceedings
may span over multiple years, and may involve protract-
ed negotiation or litigation. These estimates could change
substantially over time as new facts emerge and each legal
case progresses.

We determined this matter to be a key audit matter due to
the inherent complexity and magnitude of potential exposures
across the Holding Company and the judgment necessary to
estimate the amount of provisions required or determine the
required disclosures.

Our Audit approach in relation to the matter involved the
following:

e Review the outstanding litigations against the Holding
Company for comparing consistency with the previous
years. Enquire and obtain explanations for movements
during the year.

e Reading the latest correspondences between the Holding
Company and the various tax/legal authorities for
significant matters.

e Examined selectively the Holding Company’s legal
expenses and read fully the minutes of the board meetings,
in order to ascertain all cases have been identified.

e With respect to tax matters, involving our tax specialists,
and discussing with the Company’s personnel dealing
with tax matters, their views and strategies on significant
cases, as well as the related technical grounds relating
to their conclusions based on applicable tax laws and
precedence.

e Assessing the decisions and rationale for provisions held or
for decisions not to record provisions or make disclosures.

e For those matters where management concluded that
no provisions should be recognised, considering the
adequacy and completeness of the Holding Company’s
disclosures.

e For complex regulatory litigations, reviewing the relevant
correspondence by the holding company, studying the
matters in the light of past precedence and views of the
Holding Company’s legal advisor as made available by the
Holding Company.
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e  For claims made against the Holding Company but neither
acknowledged nor disclosed, assessed the tenability of
such claims based on reading the basis of such claims
with relevant provisions of the law or regulations and
considering the legal advice obtained by the Holding
Company.

Information other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

5. The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information,
comprising of the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and such other disclosures related Information,
excluding the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon (‘Other Information’). The Other Infor-
mation is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Informa-
tion when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. When we read the Other Information and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement there-
in, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s
responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibility of Management’s and Board of Directors for Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

6. The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Holding Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appro-
priate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complete-
ness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Management and Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid. In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Company’s Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opin-
ion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
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material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. Our audit process in accordance with the SAs is narrat-
ed in details in Annexure 1 to this report.

Other Matters

8.

10.

We did not audit the financial statements of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited and CARE Advisory Research & Training Limit-
ed, subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 2663.70 Lakh as at March 31, 2020, total revenues of Rs.
1987.77 Lakh and net cash outflow of Rs. 0.57 Lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of provisions of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements of CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited and CARE Ratings (Nepal) Limited, subsidi-
ary companies incorporated in Mauritius & Nepal respectively whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 1,295.18
Lakh as at March 31, 2020, total revenues of Rs. 776.99 Lakh and net cash inflows of Rs. 144.19 Lakh for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. These financial statements have been audited by
the other auditors as per the requirements of the applicable reporting standards of those countries and have been convert-
ed as per the requirements of Ind AS by the management of the Holding Company. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of provisions of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
other auditors and the financial statements/ financial information certified by the Management.

Due to complete lockdown imposed by the Government to restrict the spread of COVID19, the audit finalization process, for
the year under report, was carried out from remote locations i.e. other than the Office of the Holding company, based on the
data/details made available and based on financial information/records remitted by the management through digital medi-
um. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2020,
taken on record by the Board of Directors and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting,
refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure 2’ to this report which is based on the Auditor’s Report of the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries incorporated in India.

177

(pPa3eP110SU0)) SJUBWB)L]S [eldueRUl



CARE Ratings Limited e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i.  The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group — Refer Note 32 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements;

ii.  Provision has been made in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts —
Refer Note 33 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India

h. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and based on the reports of the statutory
auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during
the current year by the Group to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuner-
ation paid to any director by the Group is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented

upon by us.
For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Hasmukh B Dedhia
Chartered Accountants Partner (F - 033494)

FRN: 105146W/W100621
UDIN: 20033494AAAAEZ3008

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020
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Annexure 1
(referred to in paragraph 7 of Independent Auditors’ Report)

As part of our audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Review of the audit financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by us and communicating with the respective statutory
auditors of such subsidiaries as per the framework of provisions of SA 600, “Using the work of another Auditor”

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

e From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Annexure 2
(referred to in paragraph 11(f) of Independent Auditors’ Report)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31
March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of CARE
Ratings Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial con-
trols system with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effec-
tively as at 31 March, 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
‘Guidance Note’).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its as-
sets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with ref-
erence to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial con-
trols with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that;

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Ind AS Fi-
nancial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the Company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, in-
cluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidat-
ed Ind AS Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Con-
solidated Ind AS Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Hasmukh B Dedhia
Chartered Accountants Partner (F - 033494)
FRN: 105146W/W100621

UDIN: 20033494AAAAEZ3008

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020
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as at March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
Number 2020 2019
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipments 2 7,356.58 7,367.47
Right of use assets 46 1,074.99 -
Goodwill on consolidation 795.03 795.03
Other Intangible Assets 84.25 147.14
Intangible Assets under Development 2 51.87 -
Financial Assets
Investments 3 22,610.32 24,947.20
Loans 4 177.22 192.88
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 5 7.74 9.44
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 98.12 70.53
Other Non-Current Assets 7 20.17 46.37
Total Non-Current Assets 32,276.29 33,576.06
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Investments (Current) 11,285.46 18,919.00
Trade Receivables 4,089.38 4,725.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 699.47 1,982.16
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 10,757.86 1,037.18
Loans 12 70.07 66.00
Other Current Financial Assets 13 332.20 184.03
Contract Assets 14 867.94 560.74
Current Tax Assets (Net) 15 1,221.54 125.85
Other Current Assets 16 302.20 336.20
Total Current Assets 29,626.12 27,937.07
Total Assets 61,902.41 61,513.13
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 17 2,946.12 2,946.12
Other Equity 18 50,380.27 52,051.30
Non-Controlling Interest 324.63 237.55
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities 19 830.80 -
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
Number 2020 2019
Provisions 20 829.09 642.37
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 609.49 740.86
Total Non-Current Liabilities 55,920.40 56,618.20
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Other Current Financial Liabilities 22 1,195.72 927.93
Other Current Liabilities 23 1,443.02 1,333.92
Contract Liabilities 24 2,868.21 2,038.55
Provisions 25 450.39 405.36
Current Tax Liability (Net) 26 24.67 189.17
Total Current Liabilities 5,982.01 4,894.93
Total Equity and Liabilities 61,902.41 61,513.13

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia]
Partner (F-033494)

Mumbai
Date : June 18, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARE Ratings Limited

[Adesh Kumar Gupta]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 00020403

[Ajay Mahajan]
Managing Director & CEO
DIN No- 05108777

[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020

[Najib Shah]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 08120210
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
Number 2020 2019
Income
Revenue From Operations 27 24,364.03 31,896.91
Other Income 28 3,146.76 3,039.21
Total Income 27,510.79 34,936.12
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 29 10,927.37 10,280.67
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 776.79 333.04
Finance Charges 30 92.75 -
Other Expenses 31 5,304.62 4,149.63
Total Expenses 17,101.53 14,763.34
Profit before Exceptional Item and Tax 10,409.26 20,172.78
Exceptional Items - -
Profit before Tax Expense 10,409.26 20,172.78
Tax Expense 36
Current Tax 2,213.86 6,024.03
Deferred Tax Expense (132.90) 341.97
Adjustment of Tax of Earlier Years (19.66) -
Total Tax Expense 2,061.30 6,366.00
Profit after Tax 8,347.96 13,806.78
Profit for the period attributable to:
Non-Controlling interest 110.95 59.55
Owners of the Parent 8,237.01 13,747.23
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss (103.36) (315.74)
iici))rl)r:;:zrg IS)S(SReIating to Items that will not be reclassified 26.26 110.16
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit & Loss (11.93) 0.19
(ii) Ir.1come Tax Relating to Items that will be reclassified to 3.00
profit & Loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (86.03) (205.39)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Non-Controlling interest (1.96) -
Owners of the Parent (84.07) (205.39)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8,261.93 13,601.39

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:

184




e Annual Report 2019-20

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
Number 2020 2019
Non-Controlling interest 108.98 59.56
Owners of the Parent 8,152.95 13,541.83
Earnings Per Share (Face Value Rs.10/- each) 37
- Basic 27.96 46.66
- Diluted 27.96 46.66
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants CARE Ratings Limited

FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia] [Ajay Mahajan] [Adesh Kumar Gupta] [Najib Shah]

Partner (F-033494) Managing Director & CEO  Independent Director Independent Director

DIN No- 05108777 DIN No. - 00020403 DIN

[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]
Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020

No. - 08120210
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash flows from Operating Activities

Profit before tax 10,409.26 20,172.78
Adjustments for

Income from investments (1,278.51) (1,443.10)
Gain on sale of Investment - (60.62)
Notional Income on Fair Value of Security Deposits (11.28) (11.01)
Unrealized Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit & Loss (1,761.97) (1,427.69)
Gain/(Loss) on defined benefit plan (315.74)
Deferred Lease Expense - 10.40
Provision for Doubtful Debts 769.24 -
Bad Debts written off 262.01 -
Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Fixed Assets 10.03 (2.81)
ESOP Expense 534.51 1,273.73
Amortization of Premium 17.08 17.04
Finance cost on Lease Liabilities 92.75 -
Depreciation 776.79 333.04
Operating Profit before working capital changes 9,819.91 18,546.02
Movements in working capital

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (394.72) (801.90)
Decrease/(Increase) in Non-Financial Assets 60.21 (158.98)
Decrease/(Increase) in Financial Assets (10,162.76) (732.04)
Decrease/(Increase) in Non-Financial Liabilities 109.10 314.15
Decrease/(Increase) in Financial Liabilities 808.02 (220.87)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 186.72 168.99
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions for Current Liabilities 45.03 (21.65)
Total Movements in working capital (9,348.40) (1,452.30)
Taxes paid (3,451.87) (6,237.48)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (1) (2,980.36) 10,856.24
Cash flows from Investing Activities

Income from investments 1,278.51 1,443.10
Sale of fixed assets 22.20 2.81
Purchase of fixed assets (457.91) (2,622.03)
Purchase of investments (2,700.00) (17,870.41)
Sale of investments 14,250.63 27,308.36
Net cash from investing activities (l1) 12,393.43 8,261.83
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash flows from Financing Activities
Dividend and Dividend Tax paid (10,333.50) (19,534.49)
Transfer to/from Retained Earnings - (0.59)
Repayment of Lease Liability (269.53) -
Payment of Interest on Lease Liability (92.74) -

Net cash used in financing activities (lll)

(10,695.77)

(19,535.08)

Effects of Un-realized Exchange gain on Cash & Cash Equivalents

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (I + Il + 111) (1,282.70) (417.01)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning 1,982.16 2,399.17
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End 699.46 1,982.16

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

CARE Ratings Limited

[Hasmukh Dedhia]
Partner (F-033494)

[Ajay Mahajan]
Managing Director & CEO
DIN No- 05108777

[Bharat Adnani]

Mumbai Chief Financial Officer
Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

[Adesh Kumar Gupta]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 00020403

[Navin Jain]
Company Secretary
ACS A10703

[Najib Shah]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 08120210
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity Share Capital

For the year ended March 31, 2020 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Balance as at April, 01, 2019 Changes in Equity Share Balance as at March 31,
Capital during the year 2020

2,946.12 - 2,946.12
For the year ended March 31, 2019 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Balance as at April, 01, 2018 Changes in Equity Share | Balance as at March 31, 2019

Capital during the year
2,946.12 - 2,946.12
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The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
a. Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve represents nominal value of shares credited at the time of buyback of shares.

b. Securities Premium Reserve
Securities Premium Reserve is credited when the shares are issued at premium. It is utilized in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares, equity related expenses like
underwriting costs, etc.

c. Employees Stock Options Outstanding Reserve
The Company has Share Options Scheme under which option to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to
selected employees. Refer Note 38 for further details of this plan.

d. General Reserve
In Earlier years, the Company has transferred a portion of the net profits of the Company before declaring dividends to General
Reserve. Mandatory transfer to General Reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached Report of even date

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants CARE Ratings Limited

FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia] [Ajay Mahajan] [Adesh Kumar Gupta] [Najib Shah]

Partner (F-033494) Managing Director & CEO  Independent Director Independent Director
DIN No- 05108777 DIN No. - 00020403 DIN No. - 08120210
[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]

Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020
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Note 1:
Group Overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Group Overview:

CARE Ratings Limited (‘the Holding Company’ or ‘the Company’ or ‘CARE’), commenced its operations in April 1993 has established
itself as the leading credit rating agency of India. The Company provides the various credit ratings that the corporates to raise
capital for their various requirements and assists the investors to form an informed investments decision based on the credit
risk and their own risk-return expectations. The Company has its registered office and head office both located in Mumbai. In
addition, CARE Ratings has regional offices at Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Cochin, Coimbatore, Hyderabad,
Jaipur, Kolkata, New Delhi and Pune.

The details of subsidiaries are as under:

Name of the Company : CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited (“CRSPL”)
Country of Incorporation: India
Ownership in % either directly or through Subsidiaries: 100%

The Financial year for the above subsidiary company is uniform and ends on March 31 every year.

Name of the Company: CARE Ratings (Africa) Private Limited (“CRAF”)
Country of Incorporation: Mauritius
Ownership in % either directly or through Subsidiaries: 78%

The Financial year for the above subsidiary company is uniform and ends on March 31 every year.

Name of the Company: CARE Advisory Research & Training LTD (“CART”)
Country of Incorporation: Mumbai
Ownership in % either directly or through Subsidiaries: 100%

The Financial year for the above subsidiary company is uniform and ends on March 31 every year.

Name of the Company: CARE Ratings Nepal Ltd (“CRNL”)
Country of Incorporation: Nepal
Ownership in % either directly or through Subsidiaries: 51%

The Financial year for the above subsidiary company is 16th July to 15th July, however the accounts for the purpose of consolidation
are prepared from April 2019 to March 2020.

The financial statements are for the group consisting of the company & its subsidiaries.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
a. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, the relevant provision of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 18 2020.
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b. Basis of preparation of Accounts:
Basis of Preparation:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:
i. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss.
ii. Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation;
iii. Equity settled share based payments measured at Fair value.

(pPa3eP110SU0)) SJUBWB)L]S [eldueRUl

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Functional and Presentation Currency:
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the presentation currency of the Group.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current
The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current/ Non-Current classification of its
Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

i It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

iii. Itis expected to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv.  The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

i It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

iii. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. ~ The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option
of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit
& Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

An item of PEE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.
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d. Capital Advance, Capital Work in Progress and Intangibles under development
Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets.
Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct
costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
Expenditure on development eligible for capitalization are carried as intangible assets under development where such assets
are not yet ready for their intended use.

e. Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount over its useful life and is provided on a straight line
basis over such useful lives as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on additions is being provided on Pro rata basis from the date of such additions.
Depreciation on sale or disposal is provided on Pro rata basis till the date of such sale or disposal.

Depreciation on fixed assets in CRSPL & CRNL are provided on written down value method using the rates arrived at based on
useful lives as provided in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 & 25% respectively. Adjustments to the fixed assets of the
subsidiary to bring in line with the accounting policy of the holding company at the time of consolidation are not done, since
the impact of the same is not material.

f. Intangible Assets and Amortization
Intangible assets are accounted at fair value based on evaluation reports of experts less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses thereon, if any. An intangible asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future economic
benefit attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and where its costs can be reliably measured. The Group determine
the amortization period as the period over which future economic benefit will flow to the Group after taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software are amortized over the period of 3 years.

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software is stated at their cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets (software) developed in house are accounted at the cost incurred in developing the
intangible asset.

g. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/ external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Reversal of impairment losses
recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that impairment losses recognized for the assets no longer
exist or have decreased.

h. Revenue Recognition
Rating Income (Including Surveillance Income)
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Income is recognized based on percentage complete method. Major portion of Initial and surveil-
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lance rating fees will be recognized on the date rating based on efforts and balance portion of it is over the 12 months from
the date of rating.

Income on subscription to information services primarily pertains to sale of research reports and the income thereon is rec-
ognized on accrual basis.

License, Implementation and Customization fees

License, Implementation and Customization fees are recognized on proportionate work completion basis as per the terms of
the contract. Proportion of work completion is determined as a proportion of costs incurred to date to the total estimated cost
to complete the contract. Provision for expected loss is recognized immediately when it is probable that the total estimated
costs will exceed total contract value.

Fee from other service accounted for on accrual basis.
Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognized over the term of maintenance.

Training Fees
Income from Training services is recognized on accrual basis.

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments viz. investment in PSU Bonds is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Dividend Income

Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Sale of Investments
Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment as determined at the end of the previous year is recognized
as profit or loss on sale / redemption on investment on trade date of transaction.

Financial Instruments

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity. Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes party to contractual
provisions of the relevant instrument.

Initial Recognition:

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to
the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (“FVTOCI”) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of following

e The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets.

e The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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(a) Amortized Cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

In case of financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost, any interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(b) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(c) Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the (a) or (b) above categories is measured at FVTPL.

Investment in Equity Instruments designated to be classified as FVTOCI:

The Group carries certain equity instruments which are not held for trading. The Group has elected the irrevocable option to
measure such instruments at FVTOCI since initial recognition. Movements in fair value of these investments are recognized
in Other Comprehensive Income and the gain or loss will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of
these investments. Dividends from these investments are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the Group’s right to
receive dividends is established.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial
recognition as FVTPL: Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost on
initial recognition. For the liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets
other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). Expected credit losses are measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the finan-
cial instrument)

For trade receivables Group applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. The Group calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical
credit loss experience.
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De-recognition of financial assets:

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a partof a
financial liability) is derecognized from the Group’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expires.

j. Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand that are readily convertible into cash which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

(pajep10su0)) sjuswalels [elouLRULy

k. Lease
Effective April 1, 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ using the modified retrospective method, under which the
cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in retained earnings at April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the comparative
information has not been restated.

The Group, at the inception of a contract, assesses the contract as, or containing, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether the contract involves the use of an identified
asset, the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
of use; and the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Group as a lessee

On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Group recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of all the remaining
lease payments, discounted using rate that matches opportunity cost of Investment at April 1, 2019 whereas the Group has
elected to measure right-of-use asset at its carrying amount as if Ind AS 116 had been applied since the lease commencement
date, but discounted using rate that matches opportunity cost of Investment at April 1, 2019. The Group has elected not to
recognise a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for leases for which the lease term ends within twelve months of April 1,
2019 or leases of low value assets and has accounted for these leases as short-term leases. The lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

For new lease contracts, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
agreements in which it is the lessee in the balance sheet. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using rate that matches opportunity cost of In-
vestment.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, exten-
sion or termination option or when the lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the related right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, any lease pay-
ments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

197




CARE Ratings Limited e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for

198

the year ended March 31, 2020

Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-use asset are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset or the end of the lease term, whichever is
shorter. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of the underlying property
and equipment. In the balance sheet, the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are presented separately.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liability has been presented in Note 19 “Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities”, Note No. 22 “Other Current Financial
Liabilities” and Right-of-use asset has been presented in Note 2 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Translation of Foreign Currency Items

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency de-
nominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the
Balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, Non- monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost of foreign currencies are not translated.

. Employee Benefit expense

Defined benefit plan:

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation/superannuation. In case of the Holding Company, the gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved
gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. In case of Subsidiaries, the gratuityLiability is unfunded.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method
and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.
Re-measurement recognized in OCl is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

The defined benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

In respect of foreign subsidiaries there are no employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit plans

Defined contribution plan:

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The eligible employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, for which both the Employees
and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions
as specified under the law are made to the Government Provident Fund monthly.
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Other employee benefits:

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave in the period the
related service is rendered. Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date

. Income Taxes:

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in the comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Minimum Alternative Tax

Minimum alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or OCl is recognized in equity or OCI and not in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and they relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
Temporary difference can be utilized. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and asset are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

. Earnings Per Share
The basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the
Equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. Claims against the Group where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are
not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never
be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and
is recognized.

. Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share based
payments transactions are set out in Note 38.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss such
that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

the Share Based Payments Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per
share.

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s management to make decisions for which
discrete financial information is available.

Based on the management approach, the management evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources based on
an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Note 1(A): Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

a. Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment:
The Group uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/
component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a
revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

(pajep10su0)) sjuswalels [elouLRULy

b. Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques like Net Asset Method. The inputs to
these models are taken from the financial statements of the companies in which Group has invested. These are considered
as non-observable market inputs whereby a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

c. Revenue Recognition
The Group recognizes portion of rating fee income commensurate with the efforts involved based on percentage completion
method. The Group uses various judgments and estimates to assess the efforts required for completion of various activities in
the rating process. Based on assessment, the Group defines the percentage completion to be applied to measure income to
be recognized from initial rating and surveillance during the year.

The Group’s assessment of percentage completion is as follows:
As a matter of prudent policy and on the basis of past experience of recoverability of income, fees in respect of certain defined
categories of clients are recognized when there is reasonable certainty of ultimate collection

d. License, Implementation and Customization fees are recognized on proportionate work completion basis

Proportion of work completion is determined as a proportion of costs incurred to date to the total estimated cost to complete
the contract. Provision for expected loss is recognized immediately when it is probable that the total estimated costs will
exceed total contract value.

e Fee from other service accounted for on accrual basis.

e Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognized over the term of maintenance.

e Income from Training Services rendered is recognized on accrual basis.

e. Expected Credit Losses on Financial Assets
The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of col-
lection. The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

f. Share-based payments
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes model to determine the fair
value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determi-
nation of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.

This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life
of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for
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estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 34

Defined benefits Plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation
and other employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Leases

Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the right to use an underlying asset
including optional periods, when an entity is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend (or not to terminate) a lease.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option
when determining the lease term. The option to extend the lease term are included in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain
that the lessee will exercise the option. The Group reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances
occur that are within the control of the lessee.
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Note 3:
Investments - Non Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
T As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Unquoted:
Face value of USD 22,600 each fully paid:
ARC Ratings Holdings Limited 20 287.27 20 242.10
Face value of RM 1 each fully paid:
Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad 20,00,000 1,093.19 20,00,000 1,123.63
Total Unquoted Investments 1,380.46 1,365.73
Quoted:
Investment measured at Amortized Cost
Tax free Bonds 3,676.71 3,693.81
Investment measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss -
Investment in Various Fixed Maturity Plans of Debt Mutual 17,553.15 19,887.66
Funds
Total Quoted Investments 21,229.86 23,581.47
Total Investments 22,610.32 24,947.20
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 21,229.86 23,581.47
Market Value of Quoted Investments 21,708.47 23,905.84
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 1,380.46 1,365.73
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment - -
Note 4
Loans (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars - ;;,tzozo Ty Z:,tzow
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loan to Employees 50.45 60.97
Security Deposits 126.77 131.91
Total 177.22 192.88
Note 5
Other Non-Current Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars - ;;,tzozo Ty 3?2019
Accrued Interest on Loans to Employees 7.74 9.44
Total 7.74 9.44
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Note 6
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred Tax Asset 121.77 70.53
MAT Credit Entitlement 52.18 52.19
Fixed Assets - 2.59
Provisions allowed under tax on payment basis 69.59 15.75
Others - -
Deferred Tax Liability (23.65) -
Others (23.65) -
Total 98.12 70.53
Note 7
Other Non-Current Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capital Advances 4.63 -
Prepaid Expenses 15.54 46.37
Total 20.17 46.37
Note 8
Investments — Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars it 31, 2020 o 31, 2019
Quoted
Investment measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss:
Investment in Various Open - Ended Debt Mutual Funds 7,188.31 18,919.00
Investment in Various Fixed Maturity Plans of Debt Mutual Funds 4,097.15 -
Total Quoted Investments 11,285.46 18,919.00
Total Unquoted Investments = -
Total Current Investments 11,285.46 18,919.00
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 11,285.46 18,919.00
Market Value of Quoted Investments 11,285.46 18,919.00
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments - -
Aggregate Amount impairment  in value of Investment - -
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Note 9
Trade Receivables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Marci? ;:,tzozo Marcl? Z;,tzow
Unsecured
Considered Good 4,089.38 4,725.91
Significant increase in Credit Risk 1,094.36 262.24
Total Debtors 5,183.74 4,988.15
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss (Refer Note 48) (1094.36) (262.24)
Total 4,089.38 4725.91
Note 10
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Marc;:\ ssg,tzozo Marcﬁ;‘;,t 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.20 0.99
Balances with Banks
On Current Account 289.37 1,138.73
Other Bank Balances
Deposit Accounts (Less than 3 months) 407.78 842.44
Prepaid Cards 1.12 -
Total 699.47 1,982.16
Note 11
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars eI L
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Unclaimed Dividend Account 29.84 22.60
Money Due for Refund of Share Application - 12.62
Bank Deposit Accounts 10,569.51 903.36
Lien marked Deposit 158.51 98.60
Total 10,757.86 1,037.18
Note 12
Loans (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans to Employees 38.48 42.16
Security Deposits 31.59 23.84
Total 70.07 66.00
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Note 13
Other Current Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As at
(eI March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Accrued on Investments 329.39 115.86
Interest Accrued on Loans to Employees 2.81 4.24
Other receivables - 63.93
Total 332.20 184.03
Note 14
Contract Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As at
(eI March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unbilled Revenue 867.94 623.61
Less: Loss Allowance - (62.87)
Total 867.94 560.74
Note 15
Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Repletios March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advance payment of taxes 1,221.54 125.85
(Net of provision for tax Rs.95.52 Lacs (PY Rs.74.08 Lacs)
Total 1,221.54 125.85
Note 16
Other Current Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Rl March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Prepaid Expenses 158.38 164.28
GST, Other taxes and Statutory Deposits 42.84 44.62
Other Advances 56.80 46.43
Other Receivables 44.18 80.87
Total 302.20 336.20
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Note 17 3
Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs) e
As at As at %
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 8
Number Amount Number Amount %
Authorized %
3,00,00,000 3,000.00 3,00,00,000 3,000.00 =2
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
2,94,61,214 2,946.12 2,94,61,214 2,946.12
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Total 2,94,61,214 2,946.12 2,94,61,214 2,946.12

17(a): List of shareholders holding more than 5% of Paid Up Equity Share Capital

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Life Insurance Corporation Of India and LIC P&GS Fund 29,02,136 9.85% 29,02,136 9.85%
CRISIL Limited 26,22,431 8.90% 26,22,431 8.90%
Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited A/C - Aditya o
Birla Sun Life Dividend Yield Fund 17,87,077 6.07% i i
Franklin Templet.on Inves:cment Funds and Franklin India i i 22.34,890 7 59%
Smaller Companies Fund
Stichting Depositary APG Emerging Markets Equity - - 20,14,700 6.84%

*Following companies are covered to calculate more than 5% shareholding.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Franklin India Smaller Companies Fund - - 10,54,044 3.58%
Franklin Templeton Investment Funds - - 11,80,846 4.01%
Total - - 22,34,890 7.59%
17(b): The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below: (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Nos. Nos.
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214
Add: Shares issued under Employees Stock Options Scheme (ESOS) -
Equity Shares at the end of the year 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214

17(c): The Company does not have a Holding Company.

17(d): Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts, including the terms and amounts:
For details of Shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Group: Refer Note 38
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17(e): Terms/Right attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors

is subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

Note 18

Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Capital Redemption Reserve 22.50 22.50
Securities Premium Reserve 6,517.63 6,517.63
Employees Stock Options Outstanding Reserve 2,351.56 2,138.63
General Reserve 19,796.93 19,475.35
Retained Earnings 21,609.65 23,816.91
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (15.91) (6.61)
Other Comprehensive Income 97.91 86.89
Total 50,380.27 52,051.30

The Description of the Nature and Purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

a. Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve represents nominal value of shares credited at the time of buyback of shares

b. Securities Premium Reserve

Securities Premium Reserve is credited when the shares are issued at premium. It is utilized in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares, equity related expenses like

underwriting costs, etc.

c. Employees Stock Options Outstanding Reserve

The Company has Share Options Scheme under which option to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to

selected employees. Refer Note 38 for further details of this plan.

d. General Reserve

In earlier years, the Company has transferred a portion of the net profits of the Company to General Reserve before declaring
dividends. Mandatory transfer to General Reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 19
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Ao i
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 46) 830.80 -
Total 830.80
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Note 20
Provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for Compensated Absence 655.33 569.00
Provision for Gratuity 173.76 73.37
Total 829.09 642.37
Note 21
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 917.61 883.53
Fair Valuation of Investments 609.40 321.56
Others 0.51 -
Deferred Tax Liability 1,527.52 1,205.09
Provision for Compensated Absence 195.04 269.24
Provision for Gratuity 79.79 82.86
Provision for Doubtful Debts 252.07 101.11
Others 391.13 11.01
Deferred Tax Asset 918.03 464.23
Total 609.49 740.86
Note 22
Other Current Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sundry Creditors for Expenses
(a)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 6.05 33.26
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than microenterprises and small 149.73 61.46
enterprises
Other Liabilities 4.35 0.37
Unclaimed Dividend 29.84 22.60
Money Due for Refund for Share Application - 12.62
Provision for Salary, Performance Related Pay & Commission 716.32 797.62
Lease Liabilities 289.43
Total 1,195.72 927.93
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Note 23
Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars G500 G0
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Other Liabilities 849.15 1,097.34
Statutory Dues 0.51 20.32
Provision for Expenses 593.36 216.26
Total 1,443.02 1,333.92
Note 24
Contract Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars G50 G901
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unearned Revenue 973.95 1,130.75
Advance from Customers 1,894.26 907.80
Total 2,868.21 2,038.55
Revenue recognized that was included in contract liability balance at the beginning of the period (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars G0 I
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rating Income 1,421.52 1,775.68
Total Other Equity 1,421.52 1,775.68
Note 25
Provisions — Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars LS GHCE
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for Compensated Absence 113.41 106.37
Provision for Gratuity 209.48 197.11
Provision for Staff Bonus 12.93 -
Provision for Leave Travel Allowance 114.57 101.88
Total 450.39 405.36
Note 26
Current Tax Liability (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 450U GICL
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax & TDS - Nil) 24.67 189.17
(Previous Year - Net of Advance Tax & TDS - Rs.56,161.57 Lacs)
Total 24.67 189.17
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Note 27
Revenue From Operations (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sale of Services
Rating Income (including Surveillance) 22,544.36 29,859.43
Fee for Consultancy Services 289.86 304.65
Fees for License & implementation fees 1,445.91 1,459.34
Sale of Publications / Information Services 58.14 257.86
Training Fees 25.76 15.26
Other Operating Revenue - 0.37
Total 24,364.03 31,896.91
Revenue recognized from past performance obligations: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rating Income 257.14 304.92
Total 257.14 304.92
Note 28
Other Income (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Income 623.17 383.02
Dividend Income 655.34 1,060.09
Notional Income on Fair Value of Security Deposits 1.30 -
Net gain on sale of investments - 60.62
Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss 1,761.97 1,427.69
Miscellaneous Income 104.98 107.79
Total 3,146.76 3,039.21
Note 29
Employee Benefits Expense (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Salaries and Other Allowances 9,453.68 8,190.77
Contribution to Provident, Gratuity & Other Funds (Refer Note 32) 653.63 530.91
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer Note 36) 534.51 1,273.73
Staff Welfare Expenses 285.55 285.26
Total 10,927.37 10,280.67
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Note 30
Finance Cost (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Finance cost on Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 46) 92.75 -
Total 92.75 -
Note 31 : Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Electricity Charges 132.73 124.55
Postage & Telephone Charges 118.82 115.39
Rent 14.01 337.45
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 441.06 434.17
Directors’ Sitting Fees 124.42 95.92
Insurance Premium 37.23 18.33
Note 31
Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Legal Expenses 153.53 29.04
Professional Fees 790.69 314.16
Business Development Associate Fees 543.69 732.06
Rates & Taxes 260.18 33.97
Repairs & Maintenance
Buildings 97.63 94.84
Others 218.50 171.26
Advertisement and Sponsorship Expenses 51.44 71.25
Security, Housekeeping & Office Supplies 239.90 192.98
Membership & Subscription 87.93 91.68
Corporate Training Expenses 5.63 8.12
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 769.24 132.68
Bad Debts written off 262.01 64.21
Commission 155.39 362.01
Auditors Remuneration 36.34 34.56
Corporate Social Responsibility 526.82 383.65
Miscellaneous Expenses 237.43 307.35
Total 5,304.62 4,149.63
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Note 32
Contingent Liabilities (Ind AS 37)
A. Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (to the extent not provided for): (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As at
egeuiel March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Contingent Liability on account of Income Tax 72.51 62.26

B. Pending outcome of adjudication proceedings initiated by Regulator / Government agencies pertaining to certain Credit rat-
ings assigned by the Company to its clients, which is being responded by the Company, the Company has made provision for
penalty of Rs.100 Lakhs in one of the case on prudent basis.

C. Guarantees given by Bank on behalf of the Group in respect of lien marked Deposits for 158.50 Lacs (Previous Year Rs.98.60
Lakhs)

D. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited &
others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion
in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this
decision has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal.

Pending decision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact, if any, is not ascertainable and con-
sequently no effect has been given in the accounts.

Note 33: Capital and Other Commitments
Amounts pending on account of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for (net of advances) is
Rs.3.97 Lacs (March 31, 2019 - Nil).

The Group has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year
end, the Group has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/accounting standards for material
foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of account.

Note 34: Employee Benefits (Ind AS 19)

(A) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving the services
of the Company and is in accordance with the rules of the Company for payment of gratuity. The Group accounts for the liability
based on actuarial valuation.

Inherent Risk on above:

The plan is defined in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, this exposes the Group to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, in- adequate
return on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to the employees in future.
Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risk.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Change in Present value of Obligations:
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 922.78 640.18
Current Service Cost 190.55 121.87
Interest Cost 71.52 50.21
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss - 2.45
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligations Due to change in Financial Assumptions 99.92 71.30
ﬁzzﬂzséo(l']Gsalns)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic 2710 69.59
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligations Due to Experience (17.48) 44.24
Benefits Paid (155.65) (77.06)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligations 1,138.74 922.78
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:
Opening Fair Value of the Plan Assets 655.38 356.20
Interest income 51.05 28.03
Expected Return on Plan Assets - 3.49
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (8.54) -
Contribution by the Employer 213.43 344.72
Benefits Paid (155.65) (77.06)
Closing Fair Value of the Plan Assets 755.67 655.38
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet
:r:zssgrtic\)/jlue of the funded defined benefit obligation at the end of (1,138.75) (922.78)
Fair Value of Plan Assets 755.69 655.38
Net Asset / (Liability) (383.06) (267.40)
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 190.55 121.87
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations 20.47 20.43
Past Service Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 211.02 142.30
Re-measurements recognized in Other Comprehensive Income(OClI):
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period) 108.58 185.13
Changes in Financial Assumptions 0.04 3.81
Changes in Demographic Assumptions
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Experience Adjustments 0.92 (0.78)
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.54 (3.49)
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income(OCI) 118.08 184.67
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation:
Within the next 12 months 62.82 55.17
Between 1 and 5 years 299.96 247.52
Between 5 and 10 years 459.93 325.20
10 Years and above 1,735.46 1,903.56
“Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:”*
Increase/(Decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at
the end of the year
1% increase in discount rate (38.53) (54.90)
1% decrease in discount rate 188.88 134.84
1% increase in salary escalation rate 147.69 102.34
1% decrease in salary escalation rate (11.12) (36.30)
1% increase in employee turnover rate 82.12 56.11
1% decrease in employee turnover rate 46.90 4.35
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan
Insurer Managed Funds** 100% 100%
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.59% - 6.84% 7.78%-7.79%
Expected Return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 6.59% - 6.84% 7.79%
Turnover Rate 5% 4%-5%
Mortality tables Indian Assured Lives | “Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08) | Mortality (2006-08)"

& (2012-14)

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 6%-7% 6%-7%
Retirement age 60 Years 59 years
Weighted Average duration of Defined benefit obligation 11-20.29 14-18.09

* The plan is defined in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, this exposes the Group to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, in- adequate
return on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to the employees in future.
Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risk.

** Status of CARE Ratings & CRSPL is funded & unfunded respectively.
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Basis used to determine Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets:
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments
of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations

Salary Escalation Rate:
Salary escalation rates are determined taking into account seniority, promotion, and other relevant factors.

Asset Liability matching strategy

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962,
this generally reduces ALM risk.

The Group’s expected contribution during next year is Rs. 211.64 Lacs.

B. Compensated Absences:

The compensated absences cover the Group’s liability for earned leave. Long term compensated absences are determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method. Short term compensated
absences are provided for based on estimates. Amount recognized as an expense in respect of Compensated Absences is Rs.587.56
Lacs (March31, 2019-Rs.539.66 Lacs).

C. Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount recognized as an expense and included in Note 26 under the head “Contribution to Provident and other Funds” of
Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs.333.87 Lacs (Previous Year - Rs. 294.90 Lacs).

D. Superannuation Benefits:

Superannuation Benefits is contributed by the Company to Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) @ 10% of basic salary with
respect to certain employees.

Contribution to Superannuation Fund contribution charged to Statement of Profit & Loss in Note 24 under the head “Contribution
to Provident and other Funds” is Rs.36.42 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. Rs.48.34 Lacs)

Note 35: Related Party Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 24 (TBU)
A. Related Parties with whom there were transactions during the year:

Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship

Key Management Personnel:

Mr. S.B Mainak (Upto February 11, 2020) Chairman

Ms. Sadhana Dhamane (upto August 06, 2019) Non-executive Director

Mr. V Chandrasekaran Non-Executive Director

Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director

Ms. Sonal Gunvant Desai Independent Director

Mr. Najib Shah (w.e.f. July 17, 2019) Independent Director

Dr. M Mathisekaran (w.e.f. August 19,2019) Independent Director

Mr. Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnan (w.e.f. August 19, 2019) Independent Director

Mr.Rajesh Mokashi (upto July 17, 2019) Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Mehul Pandya Executive Director

Mr. T.N.Arun Kumar (Upto July 17, 2019) Executive Director

Mr. T.N.Arun Kumar (w.e.f. July 17, 2019) Interim CEO

Mr. NitinKumar Agrawal (Upto July 18, 2019) Chief Financial Officer
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Mr. Bharat Assudomal Adnani (w.e.f. August 19, 2019)

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Navin Kumar Jain

Executive Director & Company Secretary

B. Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Group:

Nature of Transaction/Relationship Marc253§t 2020 Marcﬁggt 2019

4 4
Short Term Employee Benefits 400.85 544.58
Other Long Terms Benefits 10.13 20.73
Share Based Payments * 104.80 199.93
Directors Sitting Fees 124.10 95.62
Total Compensation 639.88 860.86

Remuneration does not include provision made for compensated absence, gratuity since the same is provided for the company as
a whole based on independent actuarial valuation except to the extent of amount paid.

*Share based payments refer to amounts charged to the statement of Profit & Loss account, being charge on ESOP granted to Key
Management Personnel as per ESOS 2017 scheme based on Fair Value method.

Note 36
Income Taxes (Ind AS 12)
A. Income tax recognized in Statement of Profitand Loss:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current Tax 2,213.86 6,024.03
Deferred Tax (132.90) 341.97
Adjustment of Tax of Earlier Years (19.65) -
Total 2,061.31 6,366.00
B. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 34.94%
Tax Effect of Tax Exempt Income (2.35%) (2.28%)
Tax Effect of Non Deductible Expenses 2.80% 5.06%
Tax Effect of Allowances for Tax Purpose (5.82%) (6.16%)
Effective Tax Rate 19.80% 31.56%

The Government of India, on September 20, 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section
115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the
provisions/conditions defined in the said section. The Company has opted to pay the tax under section 115BAA of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Accordingly, (a) the provision for current and deferred tax has been determined at the rate of 25.17%, (b) the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as on April 1, 2019 have been restated at the rate of 25.17%.
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Note 37

Earnings per Share (EPS) (Ind AS 33):
Particulars Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2020 31, 2019

A) Basic EPS
(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Lacs) 8,237.01 13,747.24
(ii) Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding (Nos.) 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214
Basic Earnings Per Share (i)/(ii) 27.96 46.66
B) Diluted EPS
(i) Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding (Nos.) 2,94,61,214 2,94,61,214
(ii) Add: Potential Equity Shares on exercise of option (Nos.) - -
I()iiiil)Lj;{\\/l(ZigEP;’cSed average number of Equity Shares Outstanding for calculation of 2.94,61,214 2.94,61,214
Diluted EPS {(A)(i)/(B)(iii)} 27.96 46.66

Note 38
Share Based Payments (Ind AS 102)

The Group had granted 5,37,908 stock options to its eligible employees in as per the ESOS Schemes, details are as under:

A. Employees Stock Option Scheme :

Particulars

ESOS 2017

Nos. of Options

5,37,908

Method of Accounting

Fair Value method

Vesting Plan

2 years from the date of grant i.e. September 01,2019

Exercise Period

2 years after the vesting period i.e. September 01,2021

Grant Date

September 01,2017

Exercise Price (Per Share)

Rs.1139/- per share

Fair Value on the date of Grant of Option (Per Share)

Rs.1506.65/- per share

Method of Settlement Equity
B. Movement of Options granted:
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ESOS (2017) ESOS (2017)

Options Outstanding at beginning of the year 4,77,458 5,24,108
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Lapsed during the year 61,838 46,650
Options Outstanding at the end of the year 4,15,620 4,77,458
Options unvested at the end of year - -
Options exercisable at the end of the year 4,15,620 4,77,458
Weighted Average exercise price 1,139 1,139
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i) ESOS 2017: The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is Nil Years
(Previous Year - 0.42 years).

The ESOS compensation cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the total vesting period of the options. Accordingly, for
ESOS 2017, an amount of Rs.534.51 Lacs (Previous Year 1,273.73 Lacs) has been charged to the current year Statement of Profit
and Loss. In respect of ESOS 2013, an amount of Nil (Previous Year Nil ) has been charged to the current year Statement of Profit
and Loss.

C. Fair Valuation:
The fair value of the options used to compute proforma net profit and earnings per share have been done by an independent
valuer on the date of grant using Black - Scholes Formula. The key assumptions and the Fair Value are as under:

Particular ESOS 2017

Risk Free Interest Rate (%) 6.39%

Option Life (Years) 3 years

Expected Volatility 31.80%

Expected Dividend Yield (%) 1.86%

Weighted Average Fair Value per Option Rs.565.79

D. Details of the liabilities arising from the Share based payments were as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particular As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Total Carrying Amount 2,351.56 2,138.63

Note 39: Financial Instruments: Disclosure (Ind AS 107):

A. Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Ind AS 107): (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particular G50 250
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial assets at Amortized cost:
Investment (Non-Current) 3,676.72 3,693.81
Loans (Non-Current) 177.22 192.88
Loans (Current) 70.07 66.00
Trade Receivables 4,089.38 4,725.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents 699.46 1,982.16
Other Bank Balances 10,757.86 1,037.18
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 7.74 9.44
Other Current Financial Assets 332.20 184.03
Contract Assets 867.94 560.74
Financial assets at Fair Value through P&L:
Investment (Non-Current) 17,553.15 19,887.66
Investment (Current) 11,285.46 18,919.00
Financial assets at Fair Value through OCI:
Investment (Non-Current) 1,380.46 1,365.74
Total 50,897.66 52,624.55
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Particular As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial liabilities at Amortized cost:
Other Non-Current Financial Liability 830.80 -
Other Current Financial Liability 1,195.72 927.93
Total 1,195.72 927.93

B. Investments in equity instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

As on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, The Group has investments in ARC Ratings holding Limited of 20 Ordinary Shares of
USD 22,600 each and 20,00,000 ordinary shares of RM 1 each in Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad. The Group has opted to
designate these investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income since these investments are not held for trading.

The fair value of each of these investments is as below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular i 50

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial assets at Fair Value through OCI:
- Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad 1,093.19 1,123.64
- ARC Ratings Holdings Limited 287.27 242.10
Total 1,380.46 1,365.74

The Group has received Rs.32.92 Lacs (Previous Year March 2019 Rs.42.70 Lacs) as Dividend and has recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss under Note 28 - Other Income. There has been no transfer in investment during any period.

Note 40: Fair Value measurement (Ind AS 113):
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Group has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorizes the values into 3 levels. The inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1:
This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The investments in
mutual funds are valued using the closing Net Asset Value based on the mutual fund statements received by the Group. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level2

Level 3:

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. The fair
valuation of investment in Equity Shares of Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad and ARC Ratings Holdings Limited is classified
under Level 3. The details are given in the table below:
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at March 31, 2020

Investments measured at

Fair Value through OCI - - 1,380.46
Fair Value through Profit and Loss 7,188.31 21,650.29 -
Amortized cost 3,676.72 - -

As at March 31, 2019

Investments measured at

Fair Value through OCI: - - 1,365.74
Fair Value through Profit and Loss: 18,919.00 19,887.66 -
Amortized cost 3,693.81 - -

For financial instruments other than covered above, their carrying values approximate their fair values.

The Group has utilized the expertise of the in-house team to value the investments in Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad and
ARC Ratings Holdings Limited. For investment in Preference Shares of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited, the Group has availed
services of in-house valuation team. The auditors have relied upon the reports provided by the said valuers.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e The fair values of the quoted investments/units of mutual fund schemes are based on market price/net asset value at the
reporting date.

e  For Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad, valuation is based on average of book value method and price to earnings method.

e The Group had adopted Net Asset Method for Valuation of Investments in ARC Ratings Holdings Ltd.

e  For Investment in Preference share investment in CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited, valuation is done based on Black &
Scholes option pricing Model and discounted cash flow method. Market Coupon Rate and Volatility are the significant unob-
servable inputs. Discount rate used are: March 31, 2020: 7.80% and March 31, 2019: 8.40%

0.5% decrease in discount rate will result in increase in fair value by Rs.6.67 Lacs. Similarly, 0.5% increase in discount rate will
result in decrease in fair value by Rs.6.61 Lacs.

Note 41: Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Ind AS 107):

The Group is a Debt Free Group. The principal financial liabilities of the Group comprise of Other liabilities and Provisions which
arise on account of normal course of business. The Group’s principal financial assets include Investments, Trade Receivables, Cash
and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances.

The Group is exposed to Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The senior management ensures that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk
objectives.

The Management of the Group updates its Board of Directors on periodic basis about various risks to the business and status of
Various activities planned to mitigate the risk.
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

A. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of such financial instrument will be impacted because of various
financial and non-financial market factors. The financial instruments affected by market risk include the investment in Mutual
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Funds and investment in Equity Shares of companies incorporated and operating outside India. The investment in mutual funds
are fair valued using the closing Net Asset Value based on the mutual fund statements received by the Group at the end of each
Reporting period.

There is no Interest rate risk since the Group does not hold any financial instrument whose fair value or future cash flows will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USD, MRF, LKR and MUR on financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The exposures to foreign currency for all other currencies are not material. The Group does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Currency Amount in FC Amount Rs. in Amount in FC Amount Rs. in
Lacs Lacs
Trade Receivables usD 6.73 507.53 5.61 387.74
Trade Receivables LKR 89.58 34.62 89.58 35.05
Unbilled Revenue usD 8.88 669.42 6.89 477.49
Unbilled Revenue LKR 5.19 2.00 5.19 2.03
Other Receivable MUR 6.06 11.19 3.50 6.84
Bank Balances
SBI Maldives - USD account usD 0.47 1.92 0.01 0.41
SBI Maldives - MRF account MRF 0.01 0.41 0.47 1.92
Foreign Currency Sensitivity on un-hedged exposure:
1% increase in foreign exchange rate will have the following impact on profit before tax: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particular 0 i
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
usD 14.66 11.84
MRF 0.00 0.02
MUR 0.11 0.07
LKR 0.37 0.37

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount.

B. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating (primarily Trade Receivables), investing and financing activities
including Mutual Fund Investments, Investment in Debt Securities, Bank Balance, Deposits with Bank, Security Deposits, Loans to
Employees and other financial instruments.

Total Trade receivables and Contract Assets as on March 31, 2020 is Rs.4,957.32 Lacs (March 31, 2019 is Rs.5,286.66 Lacs)

The Group does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer.

As per simplified approach, the Group makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to
mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer
period and involves higher risk.
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As per the provision matrix receivables are classified into different bucket based on the overdue period, buckets range from 12
months - 18 months, 18 months - 24 months and more than 24 months. The norms of provisioning on the same range are from
25% - 100%. The management, on a case to case basis may decide to provide or write of at a higher rate with reasons whenever
felt necessary.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Opening Provision 325.11 206.04
Add: Provided/(Utilised) during the Year (Refer Note 48) 769.25 119.07
Closing Provision 1,094.36 325.11

Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Deposit:

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have
been made with the PSU Banks.

Investments of surplus funds are made only based on Investment Policy of the Group. Investments primarily include investment in
units of mutual funds, Bonds issued by Government/ Semi Government Agencies/ PSU etc. These Mutual Funds and Counterpar-
ties have low credit risk.

C. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The cash flows and liquidity of
Group is monitored under the control of the management. The objective is to ensure that Group’s surplus fund are not kept idle
and invested in the financial instruments only after adequate review of such instrument and approval of the management.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously monitoring forecasted and actual periodic cash
requirement and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group generally has investments and liquids funds more than its forecasted and current liabilities and has not faced shortage of
funds at any point of time. The Liquidity risk on the Group is very less.

The table below summarized the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities & Investments based on contractual undis-
counted payments.
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 Less than 1 Year 1to 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Other Current Financial Liabilities 1,195.72 830.80 - 2,026.51
Total 1,195.72 830.80 - 2,026.51
Investments in:
Mutual Funds 11,285.46 17,553.15 - 28,838.61
Tax Free Bonds - 1,815.33 1,861.38 3,676.72
Other Companies - 1,380.46 - 1,380.46
Non-current Loans - 177.22 - 177.22
Other Non-current Financial Assets - 7.74 - 7.74
Trade Receivables 4,089.38 - - 4,089.38
Cash and Cash Equivalents 699.47 - - 699.47
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As at March 31, 2020 Less than 1 Year 1to 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Eglr:il;al?;zlr?tr;ces other than Cash and Cash 10,755.39 547 i 10,757.86
Loans 70.07 - - 70.07
Other Financial Assets 332.20 - - 332.20
Contract Assets 867.94 - - 867.94
Total 28,099.91 20,936.37 1,861.38 50,897.67
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 Year 1to 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Other Current Financial Liabilities 927.93 - - 927.93
Total 927.93 - - 927.93
Investments in:
Mutual Funds 18,919.00 19,887.66 - 38,806.66
Tax Free Bonds - 1,823.51 1,870.29 3,693.81
Other Companies - 1,365.74 - 1,365.74
Non-current Loans - 192.88 - 192.88
Other Non-current Financial Assets - 9.44 - 9.44
Trade Receivables 4,725.91 - - 4,725.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,982.16 - - 1,982.16
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash 1,037.18 - - 1,037.18
Equivalents
Loans 66.00 - - 66.00
Other Financial Assets 184.03 - - 184.03
Contract Assets 560.74 - - 560.74
Total 27,475.02 23,279.23 1,870.29 52,624.55
Note 42: Distribution made and proposed (Ind AS 1): (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particular Year Ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2020 2019
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2019:Rs. 12/- per share &
Interim Dividend for the period ended till March 31, 2020 Rs. 17/- per share 8,543.75 10,900.65
(31st March ,2019: Rs.37 per share)
DDT on final dividend 1,756.19 2,240.66
Total Dividend paid 10,299.94 13,141.31
Proposed dividends on Equity shares:
razlcc::\gie;g1f;):r|;c2(izy/e;r;ZS::je;)n March 31, 2020: Rs.2.50/- Per share, 736.53 3,535.35
DDT on proposed dividend - 726.70
Total dividend proposed 736.53 4,262.05
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Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and are not recognized as a liability

(including Divided Distribution Tax thereon) as at March 31 of respective year.

Note 43: Capital Management (Ind AS 1):

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakeholders

and (b) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

attributable to the equity holders.

As at March 31, 2020, the Group has only one class of equity shares. Consequent to such capital structure the Group allocates its
surplus funds for distribution of dividend and reinvestment as per the its investment policy for long term business plans

Note 44: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006,
certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the year end

6.05

33.26

Amount of interest paid by the Group in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) ,
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the accounting year

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year

0.00

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under this Act.

0.00

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with

the Group and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 45: Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108):

The Group has following business segments, which are its reportable segments. Operating segment disclosures are consistent
with the information provided to and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision maker.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

; For the year ended March 31, 2020
g others | Yottt
Segment Revenue
Revenue from Services 22,602.50 1,881.70 - 24,484.20
Total Revenue (A) 22,602.50 1,881.70 - 24,484.20
Less: Inter Segment Revenue if any (B) - (120.17) - (120.17)
Total Segment Revenue (C = A-B) 22,602.50 1,761.53 - 24,364.03
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For the year ended March 31, 2020

ot omes | et | o
Segment Results (Profit Before Interest, 8,106.37 25.66 - 8,132.03
Depreciation & Tax)
Less: Depreciation & Amortization (711.44) (65.34) - (776.79)
Total Segment Result (D) 7,394.93 (39.69) - 7,355.24
Less: Finance Costs (78.55) (14.20) - (92.75)
Less : Other un-allocable corporate expenses - - - -
Add: Other Income - - 3,146.76 3,146.76
Profit Before Exceptional Item & Tax 7,316.38 (53.89) 3,146.76 10,409.25
Exceptional Items - Income/Expenses - - - -
Profit Before Tax 7,316.38 (53.89) 3,146.76 10,409.25
Tax Expenses
- Current Tax - - 2,213.86 2,213.86
- Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) - - (132.90) (132.90)
- Adjustment of Tax of Earlier Years - - (19.66) (19.66)
Profit for the year 7,316.38 (53.89) 1,085.46 8,347.96
Segment Assets 25,066.75 2,144.85 - 27,211.60
Un-allocable Assets - - 34,690.81 34,690.81
Total Assets 25,066.75 2,144.85 34,690.81 61,902.41
Segment Liabilities 7,537.25 714.14 - 8,251.39
Un-allocable Liabilities - - - -
Total Liabilities 7,537.25 714.14 - 8,251.39
Capital Employed 17,529.50 1,430.71 34,690.81 53,651.02
Capital Expenditure 435.60 86.58 - 522.18
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year Ended March 31, 2019

S lodrenices | OMrs |y | ol
Segment Revenue
Revenue from Services 30,117.29 1,873.07 - 31,990.36
Total Revenue (A) 30,117.29 1,873.07 - 31,990.36
Less: Inter Segment Revenue if any (B) - (93.45) - (93.45)
Total Segment Revenue (C = A-B) 30,117.29 1,779.62 - 31,896.91
;:i?;?;:i;“gsﬁ(;mﬁt Before Interest, 17,073.15 393.45 - 17,466.61
Less: Depreciation & Amortization (307.77) (25.26) - (333.04)
Total Segment Result (D) 16,765.38 368.19 - 17,133.57
Less: Finance Costs - - - -
Less : Other un-allocable corporate expenses - - -
Add: Other Income - - 3,039.21 3,039.21
Profit Before Exceptional Item & Tax 16,765.38 368.19 3,039.21 20,172.78
Exceptional Items - Income/Expenses - - - -
Profit Before Tax 16,765.38 368.19 3,039.21 20,172.78
Tax Expenses
- Current Tax - - 6,024.03 6,024.03
- Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) - - 341.97 341.97
Profit for the year 16,765.38 368.19 (3,326.79) 13,806.78
Segment Assets 15,399.61 1,452.30 - 16,851.91
Un-allocable Assets - - 44,661.23 44,661.23
Total Assets 15,399.61 1,452.30 44,661.23 61,513.14
Segment Liabilities 5,807.12 471.06 - 6,278.18
Un-allocable Liabilities - - - -
Total Liabilities 5,807.12 471.06 - 6,278.18
Capital Employed 9,592.49 981.25 44,661.23 55,234.97
Capital Expenditure 2,570.72 51.30 - 2,622.03

229

(pa1ep110SU0)) SJUBWRYL]S |eloURUL



CARE Ratings Limited e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 46

Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group adopted IND AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on Aprill,
2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of
initial application. Consequently, the group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at
the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to
be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use’ asset of Rs.1,099.58 Lacs and a lease
liability of Rs.1121.87 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to Rs.22.29 Lacs was debited to retained
earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the operating profit, net profit for the period and earnings per
share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied asingle discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on
the date of initial application.

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly for all contracts
as on April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.
The opportunity cost of investment rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 7.25% for a period varying from 1to 5

years.
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020: (Rs. in Lakhs)
particulars e feasehold premises.
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1,270.67
Prepaid Rent Expense 42.69
Additions 90.83
Deletions -
Depreciation 329.20
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1,074.99
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020:
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 329.20
Interest expense on lease liabilities 92.75
Expense relating to short-term leases 1.34
Expense relating to leases of low value assets -
Total 423.29
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The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Current Lease Liabilities 289.43
Non-Current Lease Liabilities 830.80
Total 1,120.23

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1,292.96
Additions 90.83
Deletions -
Finance Cost accrued during the period 92.75
Payment of Lease Liabilities (356.31)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1,120.23

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Less than one year 289.43 335.02

One to Five years 830.80 997.39

More than Five years - -

Total 1,120.23 1,332.41
Note 47

Disclosure in terms of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Net Assets Shatre in Profit or Share in Other Share in Total
i.e. Total Assets minus omprehensive omprehensive
(i.e. Total A i (Loss) C hensi C hensi
Total Liabilities) Income Income
Dartictiars As a % of Asa % Asa %
":_.sozsgg I:')-f Conso- of Other of Total
dated Net Amount | li-dated | Amount | Compre- | Amount | Compre- | Amount
Assets Profit / hensive hensive
Loss Income Income
Holding:
CARE Ratings Limited 99.68% | 53,158.10 97.73% 8,050.19 83.57% (70.24) 97.88% 7,979.94
Subsidiaries:
Indian:
Efis:te Li:':}'t‘e § Solutions 039% |  210.41 0.37% 30.50 8.15% (6.85) 0.29% 23.65
;ATF:;?::]‘QSL?% t'zsea“:h 1.10%|  585.26 0.00% 0.21 0.00% - 0.00% 0.21
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Note 47
Disclosure in terms of Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Net Assets Sharei X Share in Other Share in Total
. . are in Profit or . .
(i.e. Total Assets minus (Loss) Comprehensive Comprehensive
Total Liabilities) Income Income
Particulars o As a % of Asa % Asa %
ACson/; I?-f Conso- of Other of Total
dated Net Amount | li-dated | Amount | Compre- | Amount | Compre- | Amount
Assets Profit / hensive hensive
Loss Income Income
Foreign:
CARE Ratings (Africa) 0.98% 520.53 2.01% |  165.83 0.00% . 2.03%  165.83
Private Limited
fi/?nﬁfeza“"gs Nepal 1.25% |  667.76 1.84%|  151.97 0.00% - 1.86% |  151.97
Non-Controlling Interests
included in respective | (0.61%)| (324.63)| (1.35%)| (110.95) = (2.34%) 1.96 | (1.34%)| (108.98)
subsidiaries
Eliminations (2.80%) | (1,491.04) |  (0.62%) (50.73) 10.62% (8.93) |  (0.73%) (59.66)
Total 100.00% | 53,326.39 | 100.00% | 8,237.01 | 100.00% (84.06) | 100.00% | 8,152.95
Note 48:

The Group has assessed the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its Consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on the internal
and external information upto the date of approval of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and the Group expects to
recover the carrying amounts of its investments, intangible assets, trade receivables & other assets. The Group will continue to
closely monitor the future economic conditions and assess its impact on its Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Due to
current situation, the Group has made an accelerated provision of Rs.700 Lakhs on account of trade receivables.
Considering the Group’s nature of business, management does not anticipate any serious challenges/ significant impact on

continuity of its business.

Note 49:

Corresponding figures of previous financial year has been regrouped/rearranged to conform to current year’s grouping.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARE Ratings Limited

For Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105146 W/ W100621

[Hasmukh Dedhia]
Partner (F-033494)

[Ajay Mahajan]
Managing Director & CEO
DIN No- 05108777

[Adesh Kumar Gupta]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 00020403

[Najib Shah]
Independent Director
DIN No. - 08120210

[Bharat Adnani] [Navin Jain]
Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : June 18, 2020 M.No. 112238 ACS A10703
Mumbai

Date : June 18, 2020
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Cﬁéﬁ Ratings

Professional Risk Opinion

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) OF CARE Ratings Limited will be held on Tuesday,
September 08, 2020 at 03.30 P.M., Indian Standard Time (“IST”), through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/
OAVM”) facility to transact following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the Audited standalone financial statements and the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 together with the report of the Board of Directors and report of the Auditors
thereon and other reports.

To confirm payment of three interim dividends, aggregating to ¥. 17/- per equity share and to declare a final dividend of
. 2.50/- per equity share for the financial year 2019- 2020.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. V Chandrasekaran (DIN: 03126243), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Increase in the authorized share capital of the Company and consequent amendment to Memorandum of Association
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 4, 13 and 61 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for
the time being in force) read with the Articles of Association of the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby
accorded to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from 2. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores only) divided
into 3,00,00,000 (Three Crores) equity shares of 3. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to . 35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Crores
only) divided into 3,50,00,000 (Three Crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of %. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and consequently,
the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered and substituted by the
following as new Clause V and shall be read as follows:

V. The Authorised share capital of the Company is . 35,00,00,000- (Rupees Thirty Five Crores only) divided into 3,50,00,000
equity shares of . 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each with the rights, privileges and conditions attached thereto as are provided
by the Articles of Association of the Company for the time being with power to increase and reduce the capital of the
Company and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively
such preferential, deferred, qualified, special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company for the time being and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Companies Act, 2013 or provided by the Articles of Association of the
Company for the time being.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board is hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as in its absolute discretion, it may consider necessary, expedient, or desirable including
printing of the new Memorandum of Association and necessary filings with the Registrar of Companies.”

Appointment of Mr. Ajay Mahajan (DIN: 05108777) as Director, liable to retire by rotation

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Appointmentand Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force) and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ajay Mahajan (DIN:05108777), who was
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appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effective from April 15, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the
Company, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, who in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing in terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing his candidature for
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

6. Appointment and approval of remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan (DIN: 05108777) as the Managing Director & CEO
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read together with Schedule V and the Rules
framed thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”)
(including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s) thereto or enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof for the time being in force, and on the
basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Ajay Mahajan
(DIN: 05108777) as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company, for a period of 5 (five) years
with effect from April 15, 2020 to April 14, 2025 on such terms and conditions of appointment including the payment of
remuneration, perquisites & other benefits as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice, with liberty to
the Board of Directors (including its Committee thereof) to alter and vary the terms & conditions of the said Appointment in
such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors (including its Committees thereof) and Mr. Ajay Mahajan.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan for a period of One year from April 15, 2020 to April
14, 2021 as above, may exceed five percent of the net profits of the Company (computed in accordance with the Act), but
shall in no case exceed ten percent of the net profits of the Company (computed in accordance with the Act), notwithstanding
that the annual aggregate remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan may exceed the limits prescribed under the Act;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms and conditions of remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto
which shall be deemed to form part hereof and in the event of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year or years,
the remuneration comprising salary, perquisites and other benefits and emoluments approved herein be continued to be
paid as minimum remuneration to Mr. Ajay Mahajan for a period not exceeding One year subject to the requisite approval
of the shareholders, if required; and

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall
be deemed to include any committee which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its power
including the powers conferred by this Resolution) be and is hereby authorised to vary and/or revise the remuneration of Mr.
Ajay Mahajan (DIN: 05108777) as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) of the Company within the overall
limits under the Act and to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining necessary approvals (statutory or otherwise), in
relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and execute deeds, applications,
documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this Resolution”.

7. Grant of Employee Stock Options to the employees of the Company under CARE Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act
2013 read with rules framed thereunder, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as “the SBEB Regulations”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and in accordance with
circulars / guidelines issued by SEBI, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter
referred to as “SEBI (LODR) Regulations) (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment or
substitution thereof, for the time being in force), subject to such other consent, approval, if any, including rules/regulations/
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guidelines, etc. issued by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, RBI and SEBI, pursuant to approval
of the Board of Directors of the Company and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject
to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from such regulatory authority(ies) and subject to
such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by such regulatory authority(ies), while granting such
approvals, permissions and sanctions, the approval and consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
respectively to the ‘CARE Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020’ (hereinafter referred to as the “ESOP 2020”/ “Scheme”) and
to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include
any committee, including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board under Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any other Committee which the Board may constitute to act as the “Compensation Committee”
under the SBEB Regulations or their delegated authority and to exercise its powers, including the powers, conferred by
this Resolution) to create, grant, offer, issue and allot from time to time, in one or more tranches, not exceeding 10,00,000
(Ten lakh only) Employee Stock Options (“Option(s)”), the salient features of which are set out in the Statement annexed to
this Notice, to or for the benefit of such person(s), who are in permanent employment of the Company, in India or out of
India including any Director thereof, whether whole time or otherwise (other than Independent Directors and a director(s)
who either himself or through his relative or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of the
outstanding equity shares of the Company) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Employee” or “Employees”), as may be
decided by the Board under the Scheme, exercisable into not more than 10,00,000 (Ten lakh only) Equity Shares of face value
of Z. 10/- each fully paid up, representing 3.39 % of the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company,
on such terms and in such manner as the Board may decide in accordance with the provisions of the law or regulations issued
by the relevant regulatory authority(ies).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the number of Options that may be granted to any Employee of the Company, during any one year
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the Issued Capital of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company in the manner aforesaid shall rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing Equity Shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, stock split/
consolidation etc., if any additional Equity Shares are required to be issued by the Company to the Option grantees for the
purpose of making a fair and reasonable adjustment to Options granted earlier, the above ceiling of 10,00,000 (Ten lakh only)
Equity Shares shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such additional Equity Shares issued.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the grant of Options shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions as regards price,
payment, application, allotment etc. as decided by the Board from time to time in accordance with the SBEB Regulations.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as stock split/consolidation etc., then the number of Shares
to be allotted and the exercise price payable by the Option grantees under the Scheme shall automatically stand reduced or
augmented, as the case may be, in the same proportion as the present face value of . 10/- per Equity Share shall bear to the
revised face value of the Equity Shares of the Company after such stock split/consolidation, without affecting any other rights
or obligations of the said allottees.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall take necessary steps for listing of the Equity Shares of the Company allotted under
the Scheme on the Stock Exchange(s), where the shares of the Company are listed, as per the provisions of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, the SBEB Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations as may be applicable.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to any creation, offer, grant and allotment of securities, the Board
be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to evolve, decide upon and bring into effect the Scheme and to make
modifications, changes, variations, alterations or revisions in the said Scheme as it may deem fit, from time to time in its
sole and absolute discretion, not unfavorable or prejudicial to the allottees under the Scheme except due to change in laws/
regulations, and in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company, the SBEB Regulations and any other applicable laws or to suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time
to time as may be desirable for such purpose and with power on behalf of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or
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doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members
of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as may, at its
absolute discretion, deems necessary including authorizing or directing the Board to appoint various intermediaries, experts,
professionals, independent agencies and other advisors, consultants or representatives, being incidental to the effective
implementation and administration of the Scheme as also to prefer applications to the appropriate Authorities, Parties and
the Institutions for their requisite approvals, if any, required by the SEBI / Stock Exchange(s), and all other documents required
to be filed in the above connection and to settle all such questions or difficulties whatsoever which may arise and take all such
steps and decisions in this regard.”

8. Grant of Employee Stock Options to the employees of the Subsidiary Companies of the Company under CARE Employee
Stock Option Scheme 2020’

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act
2013 read with rules framed thereunder, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as “the SBEB Regulations”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and in accordance with
circulars / guidelines issued by SEBI, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter
referred to as SEBI (LODR) Regulations) (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment or
substitution thereof, for the time being in force), subject to such other consent, approval, if any, including rules/regulations/
guidelines, etc. issued by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, RBI and SEBI, pursuant to approval
of the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include
any committee, including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board under Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any other Committee which the Board may constitute to act as the “Compensation Committee”
under the SBEB Regulations or their delegated authority and to exercise its powers, including the powers, conferred by
this Resolution) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from such regulatory
authority(ies) and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by such regulatory
authority(ies), while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, the approval and consent of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to Board to extend the benefits of the ‘CARE Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020’
(hereinafter referred to as the “ESOP 2020”/ “Scheme”), referred to in the Special Resolution under Item No. 7 of this Notice,
also to or to the benefit of such person(s) who are permanent employees of subsidiary companies of the Company, whether
working in India or outside India, and / or to the directors of the subsidiary companies of the Company, whether whole-time
or not but excluding independent director(s) of the subsidiary companies and to such other persons as may be decided by
the Board and / or permitted under SBEB Regulations (hereinafter referred to as “Employees”) but excluding director(s)
who either himself or through his relative or through anybody corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of
the outstanding equity shares of the Company, to the intent that the number of Securities offered under ESOP 2020 to the
Employees of the subsidiary companies shall be subsumed in the aggregate limit of 10,00,000 (Ten lakh only) equity shares of
the face value of . 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each set out in the Special Resolution under Item No. 7 of this Notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the number of Options that may be granted to any Employee of the Company, during any one year
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the Issued Capital of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company in the manner aforesaid shall rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing Equity Shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, stock split/
consolidation etc., if any additional Equity Shares are required to be issued by the Company to the Option grantees for the
purpose of making a fair and reasonable adjustment to Options granted earlier, the above ceiling of 10,00,000 (Ten lakh only)
Equity Shares shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such additional Equity Shares issued.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the grant of Options shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions as regards price,
payment, application, allotment etc. as decided by the Board from time to time in accordance with the SBEBI Regulations.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as stock split/consolidation etc., then the number of Shares
to be allotted and the exercise price payable by the Option grantees under the Scheme shall automatically stand reduced or
augmented, as the case may be, in the same proportion as the present face value of . 10/- per Equity Share shall bear to the
revised face value of the Equity Shares of the Company after such stock split/consolidation, without affecting any other rights
or obligations of the said allottees.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall take necessary steps for listing of the Equity Shares of the Company allotted under
ESOP 2020 on the Stock Exchange(s), where the shares of the Company are listed, as per the provisions of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, the SBEB Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations as may be applicable.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to any creation, offer, grant and allotment of securities, the Board
be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to evolve, decide upon and bring into effect the Scheme and to make
modifications, changes, variations, alterations or revisions in the Scheme as it may deem fit, from time to time in its sole
and absolute discretion, not unfavorable or prejudicial to the allottees under the Scheme except due to change in laws/
regulations, and in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company, SBEB Regulations and any other applicable laws or to suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to
time as may be desirable for such purpose and with power on behalf of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members
of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as may, at its
absolute discretion, deems necessary including authorizing or directing the Board to appoint various intermediaries, experts,
professionals, independent agencies and other advisors, consultants or representatives, being incidental to the effective
implementation and administration of the Scheme as also to prefer applications to the appropriate Authorities, Parties and
the Institutions for their requisite approvals, if any, required by the SEBI / Stock Exchange(s), and all other documents required
to be filed in the above connection and to settle all such questions or difficulties whatsoever which may arise and take all such
steps and decisions in this regard.”

Grant of Employee Stock Options equal to or more than 1 % of the issued capital of the Company to the identified employees
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act
2013 read with rules framed thereunder, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as “the SBEB Regulations”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and in accordance with
circulars / guidelines issued by SEBI, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter
referred to as “SEBI (LODR) Regulations) (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment or
substitution thereof, for the time being in force), subject to such other consent, approval, if any, including rules/regulations/
guidelines, etc. issued by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, RBI and SEBI, pursuant to approval
of the Board of Directors of the Company and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from such regulatory authority(ies)
and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by such regulatory authority(ies), while
granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, the approval and consent of the members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be
deemed to include any committee, including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board under
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other Committee which the Board may constitute to act as the “Compensation
Committee” under the SBEB Regulations or their delegated authority and to exercise its powers, including the powers,
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conferred by this Resolution) to create, grant, offer, issue and allot from time to time, in one or more tranches, 5,00,000
(Five lakh only) Employee Stock Options (“Option(s)”) to Mr. Ajay Mahajan, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company under the CARE Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (hereinafter referred to as the “ESOP 2020”/ “Scheme”)
exercisable into 5,00,000 (Five lakh only) equity shares of face value of . 10/- each fully paid up, during any one year, equal
to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all
acts, matters, deeds and things and to take all steps and to do all things and give such directions as may be necessary, expedient

or desirable and also to settle any question or difficulties that may arise in such manner and the Board / such authorised
person in its/his absolute discretion may deem fit and take steps which are incidental and ancillary in this connection.”

By the Order of Board

Navin Kumar Jain

Date: Mumbai Executive Director & Company Secretary
Place: August 10, 2020

NOTES:

1.
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In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio
visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. National Securities Depositories
Limited (‘NSDL’) will be providing facility for voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the AGM through VC / OAVM
facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure for participating in the meeting through VC / OAVM is explained at Note
No. 8 below and is also available on the website of the Company at www.careratings.com

As the AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM, the facility for appointment of Proxy by the Members is not available for
this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Companies Act” or the
“Act”) with respect to Item Nos. 4 to 9 of the notice set out above is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors have considered
and decided to include Item Nos. 4 to 9 given above as Special Business in the forthcoming AGM, as they are unavoidable in
nature.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM
through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent by
email through its registered email address to investor.relations@careratings.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 issued by MCA and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 issued by SEBI, the financial statements including Report of Board of Directors,
Auditor’s report or other documents required to be attached therewith and the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic
mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company or the Depositories/Depository Participant(s).

Process for registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and user id/password for e-voting: Members holding shares
in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses with the Company are requested to update their email
addresses by writing to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company KFin Technologies Private Limited (“KFintech”)
at einward.ris@kfintech.com along with the copy of the signed request letter mentioning the name and address of the
Member, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), self-attested copy of the PAN card, and self-attested copy
of any document (eg.: Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the address of the Member. Members
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holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email addresses with the relevant Depository
Participants. In case of any queries / difficulties in registering the e-mail address, Members may write to einward.ris@kfintech.
com.

The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20, is available on the website of the Company at
www.careratings.com, on the website of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM:

8.

10.

11.

12.

The Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM provided by NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com by
using their remote e-voting login credentials and selecting the EVEN for Company’s AGM. The link for VC / OAVM will be
available in Members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have
the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the
remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the notice. Further Members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the
e-voting system of NSDL.

The facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM and will be
available for Members on first come first served basis.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in or use Toll free no.: 1800-
222-990 or contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager- NSDL at pallavid@nsdl.co.in or at telephone number 022-24994545/ or
Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager — NSDL at amitv@nsdl.co.in or at telephone number 022-24994360.

Please note that participants connecting from Mobile devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio / Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable
Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

The Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section
103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS DURING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

13.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN,
mobile number at investor.relations@careratings.com from September 01, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) to September 04, 2020 (5:00
p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability
of time for the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time
for the AGM.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM:

14. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management

15.

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended), the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the
e-voting services provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice.

Members may cast their votes on electronic voting system from any place (remote e-voting). The remote e-voting period
commences on Friday, September 04, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Monday, September 07, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). During
this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Tuesday, September 01, 2020 i.e.
cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
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16. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Ashish Jain (Membership No. 6058 and CP No. 6124) of M/s A.K. Jain & Co.,
Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

17. Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote through
e-voting during the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ par-
ticipate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

18. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on
the cut-off date. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for information purpose
only.

19. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. How-
ever, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password
for casting the vote.

20. The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are explained herein below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
i.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.

ii. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’
section.

iii. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen.

iv. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can

proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

iv. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares Your User ID is:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
a) For Members who hold shares | For example:
in demat account with NSDL. if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example:
if your Beneficiary [D is 12%*#**kxdoikkxdx then your user |D i 12 ##*kdoiskoxsdon®

b) For Members who hold shares
in demat account with CDSL.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example:
if your folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

c) For Members holding shares in
Physical Form.

v.  Your password details are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicat-
ed to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf
file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned in Note No. 6 above.
If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) op-

tion available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of
NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

viii. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

iX.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

Vi,
Vii.
vViii.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on
Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and
whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you
wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under:

a. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.
b. Only those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not casted their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
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through e-voting system in the AGM.

c. Members who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

d. For details of the person who may be contacted for any assistance connected with the facility for e-voting on the day
of the AGM, please refer Note No. 10 above

Other information:

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.
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It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost CARE to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries relating to e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-vot-
ing user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the AGM,
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or Managing Director or
a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

The results of the electronic voting shall be declared to the Stock Exchanges after the conclusion of AGM. The results along
with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall also be placed on the website of the Company at www.careratings.com and on the website
of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statements, shall be available for inspection
through electronic mode, upon the request being sent on investor.relations@careratings.com.

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write
to the Company on or before September 07, 2020 through email on investor.relations@careratings.com. The same will be
replied by the Company suitably.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, September 02, 2020
to Tuesday, September 08, 2020 (both days inclusive) for ascertaining the names of the Members to whom the dividend, if
declared at the AGM, is payable.

The dividend, if declared at the AGM, will be paid as follows:

a.  Forshares held in physical form - to those Members whose names appears in the Register of Members on the close of
the day on Tuesday, September 8, 2020; and

b.  For shares held in dematerialized form - to those beneficiaries, whose names are furnished by the National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited as beneficial owners on the close of the day on
Tuesday, September 1, 2020.

counts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, KFin
Technologies Private Limited cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form
for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participant by the
Members. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates
immediately to the Company/ KFintech.




31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.
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The details as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the director seeking re-ap-
pointment/appointment under item No. 3 & 5 respectively of this Notice, is annexed.

Members who wish to claim dividends, which had remained unpaid are requested to contact the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents, KFin Tech. Members are requested to note that the amount of dividend which remains unclaimed for a period of 7
years from the date of such transfer to the unpaid dividend account of the Company, will be transferred along with the under-
lying shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) as per Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act. Members
are requested to claim their unclaimed dividends immediately to avoid transfer of the said dividends and underlying shares to
the IEPF. Members may note that the dividend and shares transferred to IEPF could be claimed by the concerned sharehold-
ers from IEPF Authority after complying with the procedure prescribed under the Investors Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,
Members holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with KFintech. In respect of
shares held in dematerialize form, the nomination may be filed with the respective Depository Participants.

The Members of the Company had approved the appointment of M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the
Statutory Auditors at the 23 AGM of the Company which is valid till 28th AGM of the Company to be held in 2021. In accor-
dance with the Act, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every AGM.

SEBI has mandated that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form from April 01, 2019, except
in case of transmission and transposition of securities. In view of the same and to avail various benefits of dematerialisation,
Members are advised to dematerialise shares held by them in physical form and for ease in portfolio management.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN
to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical
form can submit their PAN to the Company / KFintech.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(“THE ACT”)

Item No. 4

At present the Aurhorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.30,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty crore only) divided into 3,00,00,000
(Three crores) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. Existing Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 29,46,12,140 /-
(Rupees Twenty Nine Crore Forty Six Lakh Twelve Thousand One Hundred and Forty only). In addition to this options outstanding/
issued as per the ESOS, 2017 are 4,15,620 no. of shares. Hence the existing Authorized Share Capital is almost consumed.

To encourage and motivate employees of the Company it is thought that the employees may be granted options. Further The
Company, in order to meet its growth objectives and to strengthen its financial position, may required to generate long term
resources by issuing securities It is, therefore decided that subject to the approval of the members, authorized capital of the
Company be increased suitably.

Hence, it is proposed to increase the Authorised capital shall increase from existing . 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crore only)
divided into 3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) equity shares of . 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to . 35,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty five crore
only) divided into 3,50,00,000 (Three crores Fifty Lakhs equity shares of . 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, ranking pari-passu in all
respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.”

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Company to seek the approval of the members for increase in the
authorized share capital and for the alteration of capital clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives, are in any way concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has appointed Mr. Ajay
Mahajan (DIN: 05108777) as an Additional Director of the Company under Section 161(1) of the Act read with Article 119 of the
Articles of Association, with effect from April 15, 2020. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Ajay Mahajan holds office only
upto the date of the forthcoming AGM.

A notice has been received from a member proposing Mr. Ajay Mahajan as a candidate for the office of Director of the Company.

The Board recommends his appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation. In compliance with the provisions of Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Mr. Ajay Mahajan as a Director is now being placed before the Members for
their approval.

In view of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item
no. 5 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members.

None of the directors and/or key managerial personnel of your Company and their relatives, except Mr. Ajay Mahajan are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also appointed Mr. Ajay
Mahajan (DIN: 05108777) as “Managing Director & CEQ” of the Company with effect from April 15, 2020 for a period of five years
from April 15, 2020 to April 14, 2025, upon the terms & conditions hereinafter indicated, subject to approval of the Members.

Mr. Ajay Mahajan, aged 52 years, has a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Electrical & Electronics Engineering from BITS Pilani,

and MBA from FMS (where he was a Gold medalist) and is also CFA Charter holder from CFA Institute, USA. He is a widely
experienced banker with 30 years of experience; worked in organizations like Bank of America where he started his career in 1990
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and went on to becoming MD & Country Head of Global Markets Group. In Bank of America, he also led the initiative of building
the first 100% foreign owned NBFC in the country to do primary dealership and credit fixed income. Thereafter, he worked in
various entrepreneurial assignments including being a part of the management team at inception of Yes Bank in 2004, building
UBS’ maiden branch in India in 2008 and then working in a hugely transformative role in IDFC which converted from being an
Infrastructure Financing NBFC to a full service commercial bank. Ajay spent the 7 years at IDFC Bank, building teams, systems,
processes and cutting-edge technologies to support the wholesale bank’s growth. Brief resume of Mr. Ajay Mahajan, nature of
his expertise in specific functional areas, names of companies in which he holds directorships and memberships / chairmanships
of Board Committees and shareholding etc. as stipulated under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations , are provided as an Annexure to this
notice.

Pursuant to Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Act, the remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan has been recommended
and approved for a period of one year effective from April 15, 2020 to April 14, 2021 by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and subsequently by the Board of Directors.

CARE Ratings’ consolidated and standalone revenues have seen a decline in the last two years, with FY20 witnessing a steep
reduction, owing to loss of a few significant accounts in the NBFC sector post the crisis that engulfed the sector since August, 2018.
The overall macroeconomic conditions too have been downbeat with growth slowing down significantly in FY20. Further, there
have been specific management and regulatory challenges faced by your company in the wake of investigations. This led to the
firm seeking and appointing a CEO from the market for the very first time in its history.

The outbreak of the COVID’19 pandemic has meant that economic growth this year is widely expected to be negative
notwithstanding the measures taken by the RBI and Government to boost liquidity and access to funding in critical sectors. But
this is unlikely to lead to a revival as new projects, brownfield expansion and capital expenditure shall remain muted which will
impact overall borrowing through bank loans and capital market instruments and hence, the rating business.

Our subsidiaries are in nascent stages of growth and demand for risk solutions and advisory services is subdued in these times.
Therefore, revenue guidance for this year would tend to be in the same trajectory as the last year. While all efforts will be made to
achieve last year’s revenues, the net profitability of the CARE Group is likely to be lower than the last year. The fresh plans being
put in place will bear fruition only with a lag.

Under these circumstances, we are moving a special resolution to the shareholders to enhance the ceiling of remuneration for
MD & CEO to 10% of net profits for one year and based on the performance of the Company, approval for remuneration for his
remaining tenure will be taken subsequently.

The remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan may exceed the limits prescribed under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The approval of the Members pursuant to Section 197(1) of the
Act, (including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s) thereto or enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), is sought for the remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan as the Managing Director & CEO of the Company for
the period of 1(One) year w.e.f. from April 15, 2020 to April 14, 2021. The details of the proposed remuneration are set out below:

e Salary: CTC of Rs.3,75,00,000/- p.a. (Rupees Three Crore Seventy Five Lakh only) (Per Annum)

e Onetime Performance Bonus equivalent to 1% of consolidated PAT of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 subject to
a minimum of Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore)

e Yearly Commission equivalent to 1% of consolidated PAT with effect from financial year 2021-22. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee may decide on the amount of pay out.

e In addition to salary as above, he will also be entitled for 5,00,000 (Five Lakh only) Employee Stock Options under the
Employees Stock Option Scheme to be introduced by the Company after getting approval of the shareholders in general
meeting. The ESOP price would be Rs.340/- per share.

The Special Resolution proposed to be passed is an enabling resolution, permitting the Company to pay the fixed remuneration
even during absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, in compliance with Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013. Provided that the maximum yearly remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Mahajan shall not exceed 10% of
consolidated PAT.
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The ESOP so granted will vest as given below:

e 1/3rd (1,66,667) on completion of One year from the date of grant

e 1/3rd (1,66,667) on completion of Two years from the date of grant

e 1/3rd (1,66,666) on completion of Three years from the date of grant

e The Exercise period for ESOPs would be two years from the date of vesting

Other Benefits/perquisites:

Category A:

i. Gratuity not exceeding one month’s salary for each completed year of service subject to the Group Gratuity Scheme of the
Company.

ii. Medi-claim policy for self and dependent family members

iii. Directors & Officers Liability Insurance policy as per the scheme of the Company

iv. Group Personal Accident Policy as per the scheme of the Company

Category B:

i. Costof Car and Telephone for personal use (Cost of car and mobile phone for office work will be covered by the Company and
not to be counted for the purpose of perquisite).

ii. Leave: Ordinary Leave with full pay and allowances as per the Rules of the Company. Such leave will be permitted to be ac-
cumulated in accordance with the Company’s rules and procedures in force from time to time. Casual and sick leave will be
admissible as per rules of the Company. MD will also be entitled to encashment of leave as per rules of the Company.

iii. General: Such other benefits as are made available by the Company to other members of the staff from time to time.

The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms & conditions of appointment of Mr. Ajay Mahajan
under Section 190 of the Act.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Shri Ajay Mahajan’s vast knowledge
and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution, set out at Item No. 6 of this
Notice relating to his appointment as a Managing Director & CEO of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 15th April, 2020
to 14th April, 2025 (both the days inclusive) and remuneration payable to him for the period of 1(One) year w.e.f. from April 15,
2020 to April 14, 2021 as a Special Resolution for your approval.

Except, Mr. Ajay Mahajan, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution, set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice. Mr. Ajay Mahajan is not related to any other Director
or KMP of the Company.

Item No. 7 & 8

Equity based compensation is considered to be an integral part of the employee compensation across sectors which enables
alignment of personal goals of the employees with organizational objectives by participating in the ownership of the Company
through stock based compensation scheme. The Company believes in rewarding person(s) who are in permanent employment
of the Company, in India or out of India including any Director thereof, whether whole time or otherwise and present and future
permanent employees and directors (whether whole-time or not) of its subsidiary companies (existing and future, in India or
outside India), other than Independent Directors and a director(s) who either himself or through his relative or through anybody
corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the Company, which will lead the
Company on the growth path based on continuous hard work, dedication and support. The objective of the ESOP 2020 is to
provide an incentive to attract and retain the key employees by way of rewarding their performance and motivate them to
contribute to the overall corporate growth and profitability.

Accordingly, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”), the Board of Directors (“the
Board”) of the Company at its meeting held on August 10, 2020 approved introduction of the ESOP 2020 subject to the approval of
the Members of the Company and the provisions of the SBEB Regulations, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and other applicable laws
and authorised the Committee constituted by the Board under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 to formulate the detailed
terms and conditions of the ESOP 2020 and to administer and implement the ESOP 2020 in accordance with the provisions of the
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SBEB Regulations. All questions of interpretation of the ESOP 2020 shall be determined by the Committee and such determination
shall be final and binding.

The ESOP 2020 is formulated in accordance with SBEB Regulations. In accordance with the terms of these resolutions and the
ESOP 2020, the Options would be granted in one or more tranches as may be decided by the Committee, from time to time.
The Company seeks the Members’ approval in respect of the ESOP 2020 and grant of Options to the eligible employees of the
Company and its subsidiary/ies (existing and future) as decided on this behalf from time to time in due compliance of Regulation
6 of the SBEB Regulations.

The salient features of ESOP 2020 are set out as per SEBI circular and are as under:

a.

Brief description of the scheme - ESOP 2020

Keeping in view the aforesaid objectives, the ESOP 2020 contemplates grant of options to the eligible employees of the Com-
pany and eligible employee of the Subsidiary Company(ies). After vesting of options, the eligible employees earn a right (but
not obligation) to exercise the vested options within the exercise period and obtain equity shares of the Company subject to
payment of exercise price and satisfaction of any tax obligation arising thereon.

The Committee shall act as Compensation Committee for the administration of ESOP 2020. All questions of interpretation
of the ESOP 2020 shall be determined by the Committee and such determination shall be final and binding upon all persons
having an interest in ESOP 2020.

Total number of Options to be granted

10,00,000 (Ten lakh only) Options exercisable into an aggregate of 10,00,000 (Ten lakh only) Equity Shares in the Company of
face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up, would be available for grant to the eligible employees of the Company and eligible
employee of the Subsidiary Company(ies) aggregately under ESOP 2020, in one or more tranches.

Vested options lapsed due to non-exercise and/or unvested options that get cancelled due to resignation / termination of
the employees or otherwise, would be available for being re-granted at a future date in accordance with the applicable law.

In case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger and sale of division, and others, a fair and reason-
able adjustment needs to be made to the stock options granted. Accordingly, if any additional equity shares are required to
be issued pursuant to any corporate action, the above ceiling of stock options or equity shares shall be deemed to increase in
proportion of such additional equity shares issued subject to compliance of the SEBI SBEB Regulations, wherever applicable.

Identification of class of employees entitled to participate in ESOP 2020
Following classes of employees are eligible:

i. 5,00,000 (Five lakh only) Options exercisable into an aggregate of 5,00,000 (Five lakh only) Equity Shares in the Company
of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up, to Mr. Ajay Mahajan, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company as per his terms of appointment

ii. 5,00,000 (Five lakh only) Options exercisable into an aggregate of 5,00,000 (Five lakh only) Equity Shares in the Company
of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up, to eligible employees of the Company and of the Subsidiary Company(ies) as
per the scheme of ESOP 2020 as approved by the Committee.

Provided however that the following persons shall not be eligible for ESOP 2020:

a) anemployee who is a “Promoter” or belongs to the “Promoter Group” as defined in the SBEB Regulations; or

b) a Director who either by himself or through his relatives or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly holds more
than 10% of the issued and subscribed Equity Shares of the Company; or

c¢) Independent Directors.

Requirements of vesting, period of vesting and maximum period within which the Options shall be vested

The Committee may, at its discretion, lay down certain parameters such as work performance, period of service, rank or
designation and such other parameters on the achievement of which such Options would vest and the proportion in which
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Options granted would vest subject to the minimum vesting period of 1 (one) year. However, the vesting period of 5,00,000
(Five lakh only) Options to be granted to Mr Ajay Mahajan shall be as follows:

1/3rd (1,66,667) on completion of one year from the date of grant

1/3rd (1,66,667) on completion of second year from the date of grant
1/3rd (1,66,666) on completion of third year from the date of grant.

Also, vesting is case of various scenarios such as death, permanent incapacitation, retirement, voluntary resignation, termina-
tion of employment for cause or without cause etc. shall be governed by the terms of the scheme of ESOP 2020.

e. Exercise price or pricing formula
The exercise price per stock option shall not be less than face value of equity share and shall not exceed market price of the
equity share of the Company (as may be applicable) or such other price as the Board or the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee may, at its sole discretion, approve and determine as on date of grant of option. However, in respect of 5,00,000
(Five lakh only) Options to be granted to Mr Ajay Mahajan, the Exercise Price shall be the price INR 340/- per share pursuant
to terms of his appointment as a Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Further, the grantee shall
bear the tax liability arising our of grant of options.

f. Exercise period and the process of Exercise
The vested Options shall be eligible for exercise on and from the date of vesting. The vested Options need to be exercised
within a maximum period of 2 (two) years from the date of vesting of such Options. The vested Option shall be exercisable
by the Employees who desire to exercise such Options in such manner prescribed by the Committee from time to time. The
Options shall lapse if not exercised within the specified exercise period.

g. Appraisal process for determining the eligibility under ESOP 2020
The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the employees will be decided by the Committee from time to time.
The employees would be granted Options under ESOP 2020 based on parameters such as work performance, period of ser-
vice, rank or designation and such other parameters as may be decided by the Committee from time to time.

h. Maximum number of Options to be issued per employee and in aggregate
The number of Options that may be granted to any specific employee under the scheme of ESOP 2020 shall not exceed the
number of Shares equivalent to 1% of the Issued Share Capital of the Company per grant and in aggregate except for 5,00,000
(Five lakh only) Options to be granted to Mr Ajay Mahajan pursuant to terms of his appointment as a Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company for which specific approval from members of the Company through a separate special
resolution is sought as set out in Item No. 8 of this Notice.

i. Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under ESOP 2020
Apart from grant of Options as stated above, no monetary benefits are contemplated under ESOP 2020.

j- Whether ESOP 2020 is to be implemented and administered directly by the Company or through a trust
ESOP 2020 will be implemented by the Company directly as per the SBEB Regulations

k. Whether ESOP 2020 involves new issue of shares by the Company or secondary acquisition by the trust or both
ESOP 2020 contemplates only new issue of Securities by the Company

I. The amount of loan to be provided for implementation of ESOP 2020 by the Company to the trust, its tenure, utilisation,
repayment terms, etc.
The Company will not provide any loan for implementation of ESOP 2020.

m. Maximum percentage of Secondary Acquisition that can be made by the trust for the purpose of the scheme
Not Applicable

n. Accounting and Disclosure Policies
The Company shall follow the relevant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS), prescribed from time to time, including the
disclosure requirements.
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0. Method of valuation of Options
The Company shall adopt ‘fair value method’ for valuation of Options as prescribed under Guidance Note or under any Ind-AS,
as applicable, notified by appropriate authorities from time to time.

Regulation 6(1) of SBEB Regulations requires that every employee stock option scheme shall be approved by the members of the
Company by passing a Special Resolution in a General Meeting. Further, as ESOP 2020 will entail further issue of shares, consent
of the members is required by way of a Special Resolution pursuant to Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the Special Resolution set out at Iltem No. 7 of this Notice is proposed for approval by members.

As per Regulation 6(3) of SBEB Regulations, a separate special resolution is required to be passed if the benefits of an employee
stock option scheme are to be extended to employees of the subsidiary company(ies). Accordingly, the Special Resolution set out
at Item Nos. 8 of this Notice is proposed for approval by members.

The Options to be granted under ESOP 2020 shall not be treated as an offer or invitation made to public for subscription of
securities of the Company. The ESOP 2020 conforms to the SBEB Regulations.

Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives who may be granted Options under ESOP 2020 may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in the Special Resolutions at Item Nos. 7 and 8 of this Notice. Save as aforesaid, none of
the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the said Special Resolutions.

The Board commends the Special Resolutions set out at Item Nos. 7 and 8 of this Notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 9

Pursuant to terms of appointment of Mr. Ajay Mahajan as a Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company as
set out at Item No. 5 of this explanatory statement to the Notice and Considering the scale of business of the Company and the
responsibilities on Mr. Ajay Mahajan, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the Board at its meeting
held on August 10, 2020 based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, has
recommended for approval of the shareholders, the grant of Employee Stock Options equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company in any one year under ‘CARE Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020’ (“ESOP 2020”) to Mr. Ajay Mahajan,
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the details of which are mentioned in the proposed resolution as
set out in Item No. 9 of this Notice.

CARE Ratings wanted to hire a leader with a record of strong entrepreneurial quality considering the transformational role the
new MD & CEO was expected to play at the company. However, given the difficult times for the industry and company, we did not
have the ability to pay a market based compensation for this position fully in cash.

Hence it was decided by the NRC of the Board that the compensation should be a mix of cash and stock options so as not to
put financial pressure on the company at this point of time. Accordingly it was decided to compensate the MD & CEO through
two parts — one part as cash compensation in the form of a fixed salary and fixed first year incentive and second part as 500,000
ESOPs at the strike price of 340 rupees. This we believe will also help to align his market expectations with the performance of
the company.

Except, Mr. Ajay Mahajan, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution at Item No. 9 of the Notice. Mr. Ajay Mahajan is not related to any other Director or

KMP of the Company.

The Board commends the Special Resolutions set out at Item No. 9 of this Notice for approval by the members.
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Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the following information is furnished about the Directors
proposed to be re-appointed/appointed.

Name of the Director

Mr.. V Chandrasekaran
(DIN: 03126243)

Mr. Ajay Mahajan
(DIN: 05108777)

Age (Years) 63 52
Nationality Indian Indian
Eg;‘i dofﬁrSt Appointment on the November 15, 2017 April 15, 2020
Shareholding in the Company NIL NIL
Qualification FCA & B. Com MBA

Brief resume and Expertise in
specific functional area

He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and
retired Executive Director (Investment) LIC of
India. He has more than 3 decades of expe-
rience in Life Insurance Finance, Housing Fi-
nance and Mutual Fund Investment, with ad-
equate exposure to a gamut of Investments.
Also involved in Investment decision making
processes, Investment Monitoring & Ac-
counting and Investment Research and Risk
Management. He is also a Board Member of
various companies.

He has around three decades of experience
in the banking sector, and was with Bank
of America for a very long time, then with
UBS, Yes Bank and IDFC First Bank. He has
also worked in various entrepreneurial as-
signments in BFSI segment. Detailed given in
Item No. 6 in the explanatory statement.

Terms & Conditions of re-ap-

during the year

pointment/ variation of NA As per Item No. 6
Remuneration
Remuneration last drawn NA NA
e  Tamilnadu Newsprint and Paper Ltd.
e Aditya Birla Housing Finance Ltd.
Directorships held in other Com- | ¢  LICHFL Asset Management Co Ltd.
panies (excluding Directorship | ¢ Legal Entity Identifier India Ltd. NA
in private and companies under | ¢  Tata Asset Management Ltd.
Section 8 of the Companies Act, | ©  Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary Ltd.
2013) e Aditya Birla Renewables SPV1 Ltd.
e  TATA Investment Corporation Limited
e CARE Ratings Limited
Chairman/Membership in
committees of the Board of Di- 5- Chairmanships NA
rectors of other Listed Company 3- Memberships
in which he/she is a Director
Inter-se relationship with other
directors/ Key Managerial Per- NIL NIL
sonnel
No. of Board meetings attended 13 (Thirteen) NA

Date: Mumbai
Place: August 10, 2020
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By the Order of Board

Navin Kumar Jain
Executive Director & Company Secretary
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